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Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board [the “Board] of directors (“Directors”) of TS
Wonders Holding Llimited ("Company” or ‘TS Wonders"), it is my
pleasure fo present fo you the annual report of the Company and its

subsidiaries [collectively, “Group”) for the financial year ended 31

December 2019 ["FY2019").

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Llooking back, the Group braced through FY2019 with various
economic uncertainty arising from, among others, the United States of
America-People’s Republic of China frade fensions and Brexit. On the
local front, the Ministry of Trade and Industry [“MTI") reported that the
Singapore economy grew 0.7% yearonyear in 2019, slower than
the 3.4% growth in 2018. MTI estimated that the Singapore economy
contracted by 2.2% on a yearonyear basis in the first quarter of
2020, reversing the 1.0% growth in the preceding quarter. On a
quarteron-quarter seasonally adjusted annualised basis, the economy
shrank by 10.6%, a sharp pullback from the 0.6% growth in the

previous quarter.

Notwithstanding these challenges faced, the Group remains profitable.
The Group's revenue for FY2019 was approximately S$61.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately S$2.5 million or 4.2%
as compared to the revenue for the previous year of approximately
$$58.6 million. In line with the increase in revenue, the Group reporfed
gross profit for FY2019 of approximately $$15.5 million, representing
an increase of approximately $$1.2 million or 8.1% as compared to
the gross profit for the previous year of approximately S$14.3 million.
Cross profit margin was relafively stable at approximately 24.4% to
25.3% for the two years ended 31 December 2019 respectively.

The Group's profit for the year for FY2019 was approximately $$2.9
million, representing an increase of approximately $$0.8 million or
36.1% as compared to the profit for the year for the previous year of
opproximote|y S$2.1 million. Assuming that the |isting expenses for
the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 were excluded, the
adjusted profit before taxation of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 will amount to approximately $$4.9 million compared
fo profit before taxation of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 of approximately $$6.6 million. Although there was an increase
in revenue and gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2019,
the adjusted profit before taxation for the year was 26.6% or S$1.7
million lower than the previous year mainly due fo the increase in
administrative expenses and selling and distribution expenses.
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Chairlady’s Statement
EBRE

Further explanation of the Group's financial performance for FY2019 is
provided in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ secfion of this

annual report.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

looking forward, the Group expects further challenges ahead. The
MTI had downgraded the gross domesfic product growth forecast
of Singapore for 2020 to between -4.0% to -1.0%. The overall
macroeconomic environment remains challenging in 2020 amid the
coronavirus outbreak which has not shown signs of slowing, crash of
the crude oil prices, escalating frade fensions and geopolifical risks
and uncerfainty over the outcome of the upcoming United States of
America election, among others. The Group continues fo monitor the
coronavirus outbreak very closely as its priority is always the wellbeing
of its consumers and staff while concurrently, the Group continues to
stay focused on implementing ifs business objectives.

The Group's business obijectives are to maintain sustainable growth in
its business and create longterm shareholders” value. With the Group's
long established corporate brand, “Tai Sun”, together with a diversified
portfolio of other food brands under the Group, namely “Nature’s
Wonders”, "UCA” and “Treatz”, the Group has differentiated itself from
its competitors in the snacks industry, in particular, nuts and chips.

The Group intends fo achieve a higher growth in the future by
expanding and strengthening its market position in the snacks industry,
through expansion of product range and production capacity by
leveraging ifs branding and production capability.

The Group believes that demand for snack products with less sugar,
artificial sweefeners and flavourings such as savoury snacks will remain
resilient even during challenging economic environment as consumers
become more health conscious.

DIVIDENDS

After due consideration of the uncertain macroeconomic outlook
ahead, the Directors have resolved not to recommend any dividend
for FY2019 even though the Group was profitable. Nonetheless,
the Group's dividend policy has not changed and the Directors will
continue to assess whether to recommend dividend in the next financial
period.
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Chairlady’s Statement
EFRE

APPRECIATION B

On behalf of my fellow Directors, | would like to extend my gratitde ANAZBRERESZ2C BHBMEINGHRE
to our sfaffs for their devotion and faithful commitment and valued FWARBERFREBEHNBRTELF-

cusfomers and business associates for their steadfast support.

To our shareholders, we thank you for your confidence in TS Wonders.  FEARER M E © B B T HTS WondersZ T HIfE
We shall commit ourselves to creating sustainable shareholders” value xR FIFE NG E AT IFENRREBEREBRED
and strong financial performance. TSR -

last but not least, my heartfelt appreciation also goes to my fellow & RATROLBEHEDEBES  RABREZEAR
Directors for their guidance, advice and insight in steering the Group S BIMATEBR FREMNIEE - BERRER -

forward.

Rl

Mes. Lim Seow Yen JEFITIMAR L
Chairlady and Executive Director M’J‘ E- o
Hong Kong, 30 March 2020 B —_E_TF=A=+H
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Financial Highlights

I HEE

KEY ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

REBEEXRNEIERAR

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—2—hF ZZZT—RK —F—+F ZZE-)N\F —E-NEF
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
¥ oo s oT N o ¥ oo F 3 T
Revenue g 50,304,930 57,326,980 55,511,946 58,581,851 61,058,604
Gross profit EF 10,555,273 13,952,278 13,627,409 14,318,933 15,472,139
Listing expenses a1tk 3 = = - (2,912,780) (785,196)
Profit before taxation B B4 A& 4,077,664 6,813,873 7,202,451 3,714,906 4,082,824
Income fax expense Frisfif X (809,278)  (1,102,476)  (1,228,531) (1,577,912)  (1,174,453)
Profit for the year FREF 3,268,386 5,711,397 5,073,920 2,136,994 2,908,371

KEY ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF #ZAMBRAXRNEEEHE

FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December
®R+=ZB=+—H

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E—HEF —F-R —E—+F —E-N\F —E-hF
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
¥ oo s T 0% T ¥ oo 3 i3 T
Non-current assets FEREBEE 18,776,765 17,867,605 19,638,211 19,425,751 22,423,508
Current assefs MEEE 22,077,976 22,492,812 24,740,281 26,620,755 41,724,508
Current liabilities mEEE 12,623,476 10,429,218 10,785,787 10,272,099 8,247,741
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 3,654,158 2,931,311 1,970,878 1,931,663 4,316,388
Total equity T ARE 24,577,107 26,999,888 31,621,827/ 33,842,744 51,583,887
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Financial Highlights

MEHE
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS TEKEER
As at 31 December
®R+=ZBA=+—H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—ET—hF ZE-RF ZE—EF ZE-NF ZZE-hEF
(times) (times) (times) (times) (times)
(%) (%) (%) (%) (£%)
Current ratio mENE R 1.7 2.2 2.3 2.6 5.1
Gearing ratfio BEXRBENRE
(Note) GES 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—T-hE ZE—RE ZE—tF ZE-)N\HF ZEB-IE
(%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
(%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
Gross profit margin -~ EFI = 21.0 24.3 24.5 24.4 25.3
Profit before taxation  B& 4 Bl s F1| &
margin 8.1 11.9 13.0 6.3 6.7
Profit for the year F N A =X
margin 6.5 10.0 10.8 3.6 4.8
Return on tofal assets 484 & [B] 3 1 8.0 14.2 13.5 4.6 4.5
Return on equity e % 8] i 13.3 21.2 18.9 6.3 5.6
Note: P 5

Cearing ratfio is calculated as sum of bank and other borrowings divided by EE&EL EILZAERE BHMBRITREMERAE
tofal equity as af the respective reporting dates. RIAERBRRGTE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group which is headquartered in Singapore is primarily focused
on the production, packaging and sale of nuts and chips with frack
record of more than 50 years. The Group's core products include
roasted nuts, baked nuts, potato chips and cassava chips. The Group's
products have been sold and disfributed to over 10 countries, including
Singapore, Malaysia, the People's Republic of China (the "PRC"),
India, the United Kingdom and Indonesia. The Group principally
sells ifs products on a wholesale basis o (i) key account customers
which include supermarkets, hotels, airline and original equipment
manufacturer (OEM) customers; and (i) distributors.

The Group is committed to delivering high quality and safe food
products and continuously meeting consumers’ expectations and
complying with legal requirements. It implements comprehensive
and strict quality assurance procedures throughout all stages of the
production, from the procurement of raw materials to the packaging
and delivery of the finished products. In this regard, the Group
has been accredited with various certifications in relation to quality
management and food safety.

The Group's revenue increased by approximately $$2.5 million
or 4.2% from approximately $$58.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately S$61.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to increased orders from
cerfain OEM cusfomers as they introduced new products fo the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Products

The Group's revenue was primarily derived from the sale of nuts and
chips. The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December

2019:

EEETRR ST

Em

ARENKEEEREBRRRESEROHE
FRIGIBE-F—N\F+-A=+—AR-F
—nE+Z A=+ AR AR BN RS

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t+-HLE=EE

2019 2018

—E-0F —B-N\F
% % S$ %
K T Bl st B
Nuts 2R 46,966,438 76.9% 45,449,831 77.6%
Chips Zh 11,651,116 19.1% 10,735,841 18.3%
Others (Note) Hity (M) 2,441,050 4.0% 2,396,179 4.1%
Tofal @t 61,058,604 100.0% 58,581,851 100.0%

Note: Others mainly refer to items such as disposable towels which were
normally sold together with nuts and chips products to food and
beverages companies.

The sale of nuts and chips products accounted for approximately
76.9% and 19.1% of revenue respectively for the year ended
31 December 2019. The product mix between the sale of nuts and
chips were relatively stable for the two years ended 31 December

2019.

fier: EtEZZEHMABTARREKHAFRHFEER
RREBEFEGRE-—HHHENYR 0—REE
Mo

HE-_Z— L &F+A=+—BHLFE &
REREZREMNEEED IMGKREL76.9%%
191% - HEBRRZRFERAGREEZEZ
—NEFTZA=ZT—HIEMEFERFEEEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

Geographical location

The Group's products are sold and distributed to customers in over
10 countries. The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue
by geographical location of end customers for the years ended

31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019:

BNV E

AEENERHERDHE THBIOEBRRNE
F-T&RBINBEZE_FT-NF+_A=1t—HBEK
“E-NAFT AT HLEFERREREPI
R E B ey K ER AR AR -

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t+-HLE=EE

2019 2018
“B-NE —T-N\E
S$ % S$ %
KT BAL HAE T BAL
Singapore GiRIE 36,495,611 59.8% 34,452,732 58.8%
Malaysia BRAD 15,184,101 24.9% 14,397,645 24.6%
The PRC fincluding Hong Kong] ~ # Bl (BHEE %) 5,416,606 8.9% 5,088,182 8.7%
Others [Nofe] Heb (i) 3,962,286 6.4% 4,643,292 7.9%
Total M5t 61,058,604 100.0% 58,581,851 100.0%
Note:  Others include India, the United Kingdom and Indonesia. sk : HiBEDE ZBEKHRE-

The Group's products were largely sold in Singapore and Malaysia
which accounted for approximately 59.8% and 24.9% of total revenue
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2019. The composition
of sales by geographical location of end consumers for the year ended
31 December 2019 was relatively stable as compared to the previous

year ended 31 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit

The following table sefs forth a breakdown of the Group's gross profit
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019

EERED 3L

EZR

TREJBE-_ZT-N\F+_A=T—BR=-ZF
—ﬂ¢+_ﬂ_+ B L FEARKEENFA

For the year ended 31 December

BEtZA=T-HLHFE

2019 2018
ZB-hE it SaiN:2
Gross Profit Gross Profit
Revenue  Gross Profit margin Revenue Gross Profit margin
6 7 YIRS Wz £H EME
s$ §$ % S$ s$ %
g T 3R 7T BAl T AR BOK
Nuts BR 46,966,438 11,776,815 251% 45,449,831 10,808,515 23.8%
Chips 2k 11,651,116 2,994,081 257% 10,735,841 2,953,256 27.5%
Others it 2,441,050 701,243 28.7% 2,396,179 557,162 23.3%
Total @t 61,058,604 15,472,139 25.3% 58,581,851 14,318,933 24.4%
The pricing of the Group's nuts and chips producs are generally based AEERBRREEREMNTEREERNBIHTF
on prices comparable to competitors for similar products. MEEMNAIELLRERETE -
The Group's gross profit margin for nuts increased from approximately AEBMNBEREFEAHBEE_T—NF+ A

23.8% for the year ended 31 December 2018 fo approximately
25.1% for the year ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to lower
average cost of certain raw nuts, as the Group purchased in bulk from
its suppliers.

The Group's gross profit margin for chips decreased from approximately
27.5% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
25.7% for the year ended 31 December 2019 mainly due fo increase
in raw potato prices as unpredictable weather conditions in the United
States of America and Europe negatively impacted supply of potato
crops.

Overall, the Group's gross profit margin for the year ended
31 December 2019 was relatively stable compared to the year ended

31 December 2018

=t— EIJJ:EEE‘J%UQS.S%iEE%zé_ZC NEF
T-A=+—BLEFENN251% TBZTHAER
AEBBEHEHERARBENSE TERRNTY
XA

AEENZRENERABEZE T N\F+ A
=+- EIJJ:EEE’J%UQZS%/U@i%z —E-NF
+7ﬂ_+*5¢$fﬁﬁ%@257% TBREAR
%l&@i)\\ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂkﬁ“ﬂﬁ
HEELTEEPE EHLFS %{EWL/EE

BEm
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

Overall performance in 2019

According fo the Ministry of Trade and Industry [MTI), the Singapore
economy expanded by 0.7%, slower than the 3.4% growth recorded
in 2018.

Economic performance in the first quarter of 2020

MTI estimated that the Singapore economy contracted by 2.2% on
a yearonvyear basis in the first quarter of 2020, reversing the 1.0%
growth in the preceding quarter. On a quarteron-quarter seasonally
adjusted annualised basis, the economy shrank by 10.6%, a sharp
pullback from the 0.6% growth in the previous quarter.

Economic outlook for 2020

On 17 February 2020, MTI had downgraded the gross domestic
product ["GDP") growth forecast of Singapore for 2020 to 0.5 to
1.5%", with growth expected at around 0.5%, the mid-point of the
forecast range due to, among others, the outbreak of the coronavirus
disease ("Covid-19") that has affected PRC, Singapore and many
countries around the world.

On 26 March 2020, MTI further downgraded the GDP growth
forecast of Singapore for 2020 to "-4.0 to -1.0%" as the Covid-19
outbreak has escalated and led to a significant deferioration in the
economic situation both externally and domestically.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group expects the
macroeconomic environment fo remain challenging amid the Covid-19
outbreak which has not shown signs of slowing, crash of the crude oil
prices, escalating frade tensions and geopolitical risks and uncertainty
over the outcome of the upcoming United States of America election,
among others.

The Group confinues to monitor the coronavirus outbreak very closely
as its priority is always the well-being of its consumers and staff while
concurrently, the Group continues to sfay focused on implementing ifs
business objectives.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's business objectives are fo mainfain sustainable growth
in its business and create longterm shareholders’ value. The Group
intends to achieve a higher growth in the future by expanding and
strengthening its markef position in the snacks industry, through
expansion of product range and production capacity by leveraging ifs
branding and production capability.

The Group believes that demand for snack products with less sugar,
arfificial sweefeners and flavourings such as savoury snacks will remain
resilient even during challenging economic environment as consumers

become more health conscious.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately $$2.5 million
or 4.2% from approximately $$58.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately S$61.1
ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to increased orders from

million for the year
cerfain OEM cusfomers as they intfroduced new products fo the market.

Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales increased by approximately S$1.3 million
or 3.0% from opproximoﬂe|y S5$44.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately S$$45.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to the increase in cost of
materials as the Group acquired more materials to fulfill increased
orders from its customers during the year, consistent with the increase in
revenue.

Gross profit

The Group's total gross profit increased by approximately S$1.2
million or 8.1% from opproximofe|\/ S$14.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately $S$15.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 in line with the increase in revenue.
The Group's overall gross profit margin was relatively stable at
approximately 24.4% to 25.3% for the two years ended 31 December
2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
=REY S

Other income

The Group's other income increased by approximately $$22,000 or
approximately 14.9% from approximately $$150,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately $$172,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to increase in interest income
from unutilised net proceeds from the Company’s share offer.

Other gains and losses

The Group reported other losses of approximately S$64,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019 compared to other gains of
approximately $$139,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018
mainly due to fair value loss from the revaluation of investment property
due to oversupply of similar properties within the vicinity.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately $$0.6
million or 22.2% from approximately $$2.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to opproximofe|y S$3.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to advertising and promotional
activities to further promote the Group's products.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately $$2.2 million or
approximately 40.6% from approximately $$5.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately $$7.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to increase in staff cost due to
increase in staff headcount and increment of salaries and allowances
to staffs and directors, and professional fees incurred by the Company
in conjunction with its listing status.

Listing expenses

The Group incurred and recognised listing expenses of approximately
$$785,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 compared to
approximately $$2.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
following its successful listing on the Stock Exchange on the Llisting
Date.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately $$29,000 or 18.9% from
approximately $$154,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately $$183,000 for the ended 31 December 2019 mainly
due fo interest on lease liabilities arising from the Group's rightofuse
assefs which was partially offset by decrease in interest on bank and
other borrowings.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense decreased from approximately S$1.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately S$1.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 even though profit before
taxation for the year ended 31 December 2019 of approximately
S$4.1
ended 31 December 2018 of approximately $$3.7 million. This was

million was higher than the profit before taxation for the year

mainly due fo lower expenses, mainly the listing expenses, not being
deductible for fax purposes, following the Company’s successful listing
on the Stock Exchange on the listing Dafe and overprovision of tax in
prior year.

Assuming that the listing expenses which was not deductible for tax
purpose, were excluded for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2019, the adjusted profit before taxation of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 will amount to approximately $$4.9
million compared to profit before taxation of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 of approximately $$6.6 million. The
adjusted profit before taxation of the Group was lower for the year
ended 31 December 2019 compared to the previous year mainly due
to the increase in administrative expenses and selling and distfribution
expenses as discussed above.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year increased by approximately S$0.8 million or 36.1%
from approximately $$2.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately $$2.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 mainly due fo lower listing expenses and income fax expense

which were incurred during the year as discussed above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
=REY S

Assuming that the listing expenses which was not deductible for tax
purpose, were excluded for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2019, the adjusted profit before taxation of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 will amount to approximately $$4.9
million compared to profit before taxation of the Group for the year

ended 31

adjusted profit before taxation of the Group was lower for the year

December 2018 of approximately $S$6.6 million. The

ended 31 December 2019 compared fo the previous year mainly due
fo the increase in administrative expenses and selling and distribution
expenses as discussed above.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group's source of funds comprises of a combination of internally
generated funds, bank and other borrowings and net proceeds from the
share offer. As part of the Group's liquidity risk management, the Group
monitors its working capital to ensure that ifs financial obligations can
be met when due by [i) ensuring healthy bank balances and cash for
payment of s shortterm working capital needs; |ii) monitoring frade
receivables and its aging monthly and following up closely to ensure
prompt payment from customers; and [iii) monitoring bank and finance
lease payments.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Group's current rafio, being
current assefs over current liabilites was 2.6 times and 5.1 fimes

respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's bank borrowings amounted
to approximately S$$2.8 million, which was lower as compared to
approximately $$5.0 million as at 31 December 2018. The Group
maintained a relatively low gearing rafio, based on inferestbearing
bank and other borrowings divided by net assefs, at approximately O. 1
fimes as at 31 December 2019

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019, the Group
provided performance guarantee to cerfain customers with balances
amounted to approximately $$0.4 million and $$0.3 million
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group has pledged leasehold building, freehold land and building
fo secure general banking facilities granted to the Group with carrying
values of approximately S$11.8 million and S$11.9 million as at

31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 respectively.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND COMMITMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had incurred
capital expenditures of approximately S$3.5 million as compared to
approximately S$0.9 million in the year ended 31 December 2018.
The expenditures were mainly related fo the purchase of property, plant
and equipment to support the growth of the Group's business.

The Group has capital commitments of approximately S$1.6 million as
at 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December

2018 and 31 December 2019

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the year ended 31 December 2019, saved
as disclosed below:

Incorporation of subsidiaries

The Company has incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary, TS
Group Investment Limited in the British Virgin Islands, which, in turn,
incorporated a direct wholly-owned subsidiary, ZC China Limited (9
MIRRAMAF) ("ZC China"), in Hong Kong. It is intended that
ZC China would principally engage in the sales and disfribution of
nuts and chips, being the Group's core business. Apart from that, ZC
China would also engage in the sales and distribution of fibre-cement
polycarbonate (PC] sheets, glassfibre reinforced concrete (GRC)
boards, bricks, glassceramics, nanocrystal stone slab, microcrystal
jade tiles and coated fibre-cement boards (the “Products”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

On 3 September 2019, ZC China had entered into a sales agency
agreement (the “Sales Agency Agreement’) with 41 (FR1E) B R}
FBMR AR (ransliterated as Zhongcai (Jiaozuo) Building Technology
Co., ld.) ("Zhongcai”), pursuant to which Zhongcai authorises ZC
China as its sole agent in the PRC for the sales and distribution of the
Products in the PRC, for a term of three years ending on 31 August
2022.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company

dated 3 September 2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group will pay close attention to the development of the outbreak
of the Covid-19 subsequent to the end of the reporting period and its
related impact on the Group's businesses and financials. Based on the
currently available information, the Group considers the event would
not have a material impact o the Group's operations given that there is
no maijor disruptions for inventories supplies.

However, given the unpredictability associated with the Covid-19
outbreak and any further confingency measures that may be put in
place by the relevant governments and corporate entities, the actual
financial impact of the Covid-19 outbreak, if any, on the Group's
2020 financial statements could be significantly different depending on
how the situation evolves, the Group will closely monitor in this regard.

In Malaysia, the government on 18 March 2020 announced a
14-day resfricted movement order ("MCQ"), where all Malaysians
are prohibited from leaving Malaysia, and all firms are to be closed
except for those involved in cerfain essenfial goods and services.
On 25 March 2020, it was further announced that the MCO will
be extended till 14 April 2020. The Group's certain manufacturing
facilities in Malaysia is subjected to this MCO and production is
temporarily halted in compliance with the MCO. During this time,
the Group is working closely with the Malaysian authorities and our
customers fo get clearance for the production of our products as
essential goods. The Group has limited inventory during this MCO
period and if the MCO is extended for prolonged period, it will have
a material effect on the Group's operations in Singapore which rely on
its Malaysian manufacturing plants for production capacity. To mitigate
the impact from Covid-19, the Group is focusing on tightening cost
confrols, improving productivity and enhancing operational efficiency.
During this difficult period, the priority across the Group's operations is
the health and well-being of its employees while ensuring the long-ferm
sustainability of its operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2019 have not been adjusted for the financial effect as
a result of the Covid-19 outbreak.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company's shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since
14 January 2019, being the Llisting Date, and the net proceeds
from the share offer (after deducting listing expenses) amounted to
approximately HK$66.8 million (equivalent to approximately S$11.7
million) (the “Net IPO Proceeds’). The following sefs forth a summary
of the allocation of the Net IPO Proceeds and its ufilisation as at

31 December 2019:
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Approximate Unused amount
actual amount  of net proceeds
Approximate Approximate utilised as at as at
amount of percentage of 31 December 31 December
net proceeds net proceeds 2019 2019
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(HK$'million) (%) (HK$'million) (HK$'million)
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potato chips products SREREM 267 40.0 = 26.7

Production and launch of FERELERR
forfila chips 16.3 24.4 S 16.3
Expansion of workforce BREYN 17.6 263 = 17.6
Working capital 2EES 6.2 9.3 She 29
Tofal @t 66.8 100.0 oK 63.5

As at the dafe of this annual report, the unutilised Net IPO Proceeds
were deposited with licensed banks in Singapore and Hong Kong.

The Directors do not anticipate any change to the planned use of the
proceeds as described under the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

As at the date of this annual report, the Group has vet to utilise the
net proceeds earmarked for the expansion of existing products and
launch of new products and expansion of workforce, after taking
info consideration the uncertain economic outlook faced during
the year ended 31 December 2019
America-People’s Republic of China trade tensions and Brexit. The

, namely the United Stafes of
Group expects the macroeconomic environment in the year ending
31 December 2020 fo remain challenging amid, among others, the
Covid-19 outbreak which has not shown signs of slowing. Although
the Group's business objectives have not changed and the Group
has sufficient liquidity and financial resources, the Group wishes to be

prudent in its expenditure during uncertain economic environment.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As the Group sells a majority of its food products overseas in which
these sales are principally denominated in US$ and sources its main
materials in which these purchases are principally denominated in US$,
Euro and AUD, the Group is exposed fo foreign currency exchange
fluctuations arising in the normal course of its business operations.

The Group generally hedges 30% of its expected monthly sales and
purchases denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group has a committee in place, comprising of its finance
manager and its Executive Direcfors. The committee meets regularly
from time to fime when necessary and is responsible for reviewing,
researching and studying the future foreign exchange rates and the
methods of hedging. In deciding whether to enter into any foreign
currency hedging fransactions, the committee will undertake a cautious
approach and will consider factors including (i) the expected sales and
purchases denominated in foreign currencies; (i) the historical foreign
exchange rates; and [iii) the perceived future foreign exchange rates.
The finance manager keeps track of the Group's hedging activities and
all hedging confracts have to be approved by the Executive Directors.
As sales and purchases will confinue to be denominated in foreign
currencies, the Group expects that it will continue to enter into hedging
arrangements where necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DIVIDEND

After due consideration of the uncertain macroeconomic outlook
ohead as sef out in the section headed "Outlook and Strategies” of
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report, the
Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019 even though the Group was profitable.
Nonetheless, the Group's dividend policy has not changed and the
Board will confinue to assess whether to recommend dividend in the
next financial period.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 218 employees and 256 employees as at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 respectively. The Group
incurred staff costs of approximately $$7.3 million and $$9.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 respectively.
Remuneration is defermined by reference to prevailing market terms
and in accordance with the performance, qualification and experience
of each individual employee. The Company has adopted a share
option scheme [the “Share Option Scheme”] on 20 December 2018
fo enable the Board to grant share options to eligible partficipants with
an opportunity fo have a personal stake in the Company with a view
to achieve the following obijectives: (i] motivate the eligible participants
to optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and (i) atiract and refain or otherwise maintain an ongoing business
re|oﬁonship with the eligible participants whose contributions are or will

be beneficial to the longterm growth of the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, there was no outstanding share opfion

granfed under the Share Option Scheme.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management
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Biographical defails of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out as follows:

DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lim Seow Yen (“Ms. Sandy Lim”), aged 63, was appointed as
a Director on 19 April 2018. She was re-designated as an executive
Direcfor and appointed as the chairlady of the Board on 5 July 2018.
She is the chairlady of the risk management committee. Ms. Sandy
Lim is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Sandy
Lim has over 30 years of experience in the snacks industry. Ms. Sandy
Lim's core responsibilities lie in operations activities of the Group
including procurement where she sources and plans the supply of raw
materials as well as maintains close working relationship with suppliers,
finance and administration.

Ms. Sandy Lim is the sibling of Mr. Winston Lim and Mr. lawrence Lim,
both being executive Direcfors. Ms. Sandy Llim is the spouse of Mr.
James loo and the mother of Mr. Terence Loo, both being members of
the senior management of the Group.

SWL Limited (“SWL") is interested in 750,000,000 Shares,
representing 75% of the issued share capital of the Company. The
issued share capital of SWL is legally and beneficially owned as to
24.5% by Mdm. Han Yew lang ("Mdm. Han"), 24.5% by Ms. Sandy
Lim, 24.5% by Mr. Winston Lim, 24.5% by Mr. Lawrence Lim, 1.0% by
Mr. James Loo and 1.0% by Ms. Ong liow Wah (“Ms. Jillian Ong”),
who are family members. Ms. Sandy Lim is deemed to be interested in
the Shares in which SWL is interested in under Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO").

Mr. Lim Fung Yee ("Mr. Winsfon Lim"), aged 62, was appointed as
a Director on 19 April 2018. He was redesignated as an executive
Director on 5 July 2018. He is a member of each of the remuneration
committee and the risk management committee. Mr. Winston Lim
is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Winston
Lim has over 30 years of experience in the snacks industry. Mr.
Winston Lim’s core responsibilities lie in sales and marketing where he
strafegises business development and product innovation, ascertains
the viability of potential new markets and proactively maintains close
working relationship with the customers of the Group.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Winston Lim is the sibling of Ms. Sandy Lim and Mr. lawrence Lim,
both being executive Directors. Mr. Winsfon Lim is the father of Mr.
Sean Lim, an executive Director.

SWHL is interested in 750,000,000 Shares, representing 75% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The issued share capital of
SWL is legally and beneficially owned as to 24.5% by Mdm. Han,
24.5% by Ms. Sandy Lim, 24.5% by Mr. Winston Lim, 24.5% by Mr.
Lawrence Lim, 1.0% by Mr. James loo and 1.0% by Ms. Jillian Ong,
who are family members. Mr. Winston Lim is deemed to be inferested
in the Shares in which SWL is interested in under Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Lim Fung Chor ("Mr. lawrence Lim"), aged 58, was appointed as
a Director on 19 April 2018. He was redesignated as an executive
Director on 5 July 2018. He is a member of each of the nomination
committee and the risk management commitiee. Mr. lawrence Lim is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. lawrence Lim
has over 30 years of experience in the snacks indusiry. Mr. lawrence
Lim is currently responsible for overseeing the Group's production
facilities in Johor, Malaysia to ensure that the production process as well
as the products adhere fo the relevant standards and/or certifications,
and customers’ requirements.

Mr. Lawrence Lim is the sibling of Ms. Sandy Lim and Mr. Winston Lim,
both being executive Directors. Mr. Lawrence Lim is the father of Mr.
Brandon Lim, a member of the senior management of the Group.

SWL is interested in 750,000,000 Shares, representing 75% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The issued share capital of
SWL is legally and beneficially owned as to 24.5% by Mdm. Han,
24.5% by Ms. Sandy Lim, 24.5% by Mr. Winston Lim, 24.5% by Mr.
Lawrence Lim, 1.0% by Mr. James loo and 1.0% by Ms. Jillian Ong,
who are family members. Mr. lawrence Lim is deemed to be inferested
in the Shares in which SWL is interested in under Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Lim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai) ("Mr. Sean Lim”), aged 35, was
appointed as an executive Director on 5 July 2018. He is a member
of the risk management commitiee. Mr. Sean Lim joined the Group in
September 2013 as sales representative. He is currently assisting Mr.
Winsfon Llim in overseeing the overall sales and markefing function
of the Group which includes managing the Group's sales staffs and
compiling and analysing relevant sales information from the Group's
sales staffs.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management
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He obtained a Diploma in Microelectronics from Temasek Polytechnic
in June 2006 and a letter of Merit for High Achiever Award from The
Republic of Singapore Air Force in February 2008.

Mr. Sean Lim is the son of Mr. Winston Lim, an executive Director.

Mr. Zhang Junli (&F#) ["Mr Zhang”) aged 32, was appointed
as execufive Director on 27 September 2019. Mr Zhang obtained
a masfer degree in arts with major in journalism and communication
from Shenzhen University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
in 2015 and a bachelor degree with major in communication from
Llanzhou University of Finance and Economics in the PRC in 2012. Mr.
Zhang also obtained the fund practice qualification and the securities
practice qualification in 2015. Mr. Zhang joined FYI T 8R a1 £ ¥
BB AR (ransliterated as Shenzhen Weicky Biotech Co., lid.) in
July 2015, being a company principally engaged in the development,
production and sales of food products. He is currenfly serving as a
provincial manager, responsible for implementing and supervising
marketing strategy, sales plans and for achieving regional sales fargets,
cost control and payment collection; promoting new products, exploring
new markets and customers to expand product sales scope; and
providing cusfomer service and mainfaining customer relationship.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Ka Yu ("Mr. Chan’), aged 40, was appointed as an

independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2018. He is
currently the chairman of the audit commitiee and member of the
Chan
obtained his Bachelor of Commerce degree in accounting from Hong
Kong Shue Yan University in October 2009. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2009.

remuneration committee and the nomination committee. Mr.

Mr. Chan has over 10 years of professional accounting and financial
reporting experience. From July 2004 to July 2007, Mr. Chan was an
accountant at Kam & Cheung, Certified Public Accountants. From July
2007 to August 2010, he was a senior auditor at World Link CPA
Limited. From September 2010 to April 2012, he worked at BDO
Limited (which was formerly known as JBPB & Company), initially as a
senior accountant and subsequently promoted as a senior associate.
From May 2012 to April 2013, he worked as an investor relations
officer for Fantasia Group (China) Company limited, a subsidiary of
Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited [stock code:
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

1777), a company
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

Since June 2013, he has been working as the chief financial officer
of CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited (formerly
known as Runway Clobal Holdings Company Limited) (stock code:
1520), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Dragon
Rise Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 6829) since January 2018
and Yield Go Holdings lid. (stock code: 1796) since December
2018, both being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Lee Yan Fai ("Mr. lee"), aged 35, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2018. He s
currently the chairman of the remuneration commitiee and member of
the audit committee and the nomination commitiee. Mr. lee obtained
his Bachelor of Accounting degree from the Napier University, United
Kingdom and his Master of Professional Accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. lee has been a practising accountant in Hong Kong since 2014.
He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Taxation Insfitute of Hong Kong. He is also a
member of The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and Hong
Kong Securities and Invesiment Institute.

Mr. lee has over 10 years’ exfensive experience by working in
intfernational audit firms and other listed companies. Mr. lee was the
financial controller of each of Bisu Technology Group International
limited (stock code: 1372) from August 2015 until December 2018
and Sino Golf Holdings limited (stock code: 361) from September
2015 unfil December 2018, both being companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. lee is currently a director of Yongtuo

Fuson CPA Limited.

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao) ("Mr. Chew’), aged 46, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 20 December
2018. He is currently the chairman of the nomination committee and
member of the remuneration committee and the audit committee. Mr.
Chew obtained his Bachelor in Engineering degree from the National
University of Singapore in July 1998 and subsequently obtfained
his Master of Business Administration from the National University
of Singapore in April 2004. He went on fo obtain professional
qualifications, namely, Project Management Professional (PMP) in
June 2010, Information Technology Infrastructure  Library (ITIL) Expert
in August 2012 and Certified Chief Information Security Officer in
October 2017
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Chew has over 8 years of experience in the information fechnology
field. He was the chief technology officer of Mobile Credit Payment Pre
ltd, a payment technology and merchant service company from 2012
until 2017 Prior to that, he was business support manager for Orange
Business Services, a global telecommunication operafor and information
technology services company, from 2009 unfil 2012.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mok Tang Eng ("Mr. John Mok”), aged 64, joined the Group in
January 2014 as the manufacturing manager. Mr. John Mok is primarily
responsible for monitoring the production flow, increase quality and
stabilisation of production, improve production procedure and reduce
production costing and overhead. Mr. John Mok obtained his Diploma
in Management from the Malaysian Institute of Management in January
1992. Mr. John Mok became a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Management in January 1991.

Mr. Loo Soon Hock James ("Mr. James loo"), aged 63, joined the
Group since January 1985. Mr. James loo has over 30 years of
experience in the snacks industry. In January 2017, he was promoted
fo senior sales manager where he is responsible for overseeing and
handling direct businessto-business sales with focus on hospitality
and wholesale cusfomers including overseeing the deliveries fo the
cusfomers, sourcing for new potential customers and maintaining close
relationship with the cusfomers.

Mr. James Loo is the spouse of Ms. Sandy Lim, an executive Director,
and the father of Mr. Terence loo, a member of the senior management

of the Group.

Mr. Er Eng Hui ("Mr. Ricky Er), aged 59, joined the Group since
January 1985, Mr. Ricky Er has over 30 years of experience in the
snacks industry. In January 2017, he was promoted tfo senior sales
manager where he is responsible for overseeing and handling direct
business-fobusiness sales to major supermarket chains in Singapore
including overseeing the promotional activities in the supermarkets and
maintaining close relationship with the cusfomers.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lloo Yong Keong Terence (Lu Yonggiang) ["Mr. Terence Loo”),
aged 35, joined the Group in June 2014 as the finance manager.
Mr. Terence loo is primarily responsible for overseeing the Group's
working capital needs, financial performance, income, cashflow
and expenditure, overall preparation, management and moniforing
of corporate budgeting, overseeing human resources department
and development of business process and accounting policies. The
finance team led by Mr. Terence Loo will provide advice to the Board
and coordinate with the sales and procurement feams fo manage
risks related to suppliers (such as credit terms provided by suppliers),
customers (such as pricing strategy and credit period granted to
customers) and banks (such as interest rate and cash level) so that the
Croup can affain an optimal cashflow position and maximise profit.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Terence Loo has worked in the financial
industry for over 3 years. He obtained his undergraduate degree in
Bachelor of Finance from the Australian National University in July

2011.

Mr. Terence Loo is the son of Ms. Sandy Lim an executive Director, and
Mr. James loo, a member of the senior management of the Group.

Mr. Lim Sheng Kwong (‘M. Brandon Llim“), aged 30, joined the
Group in February 2014 as assistant sales manager. He subsequently
transferred to being an assistant production manager and is currently
assisting M. Lawrence Lim in overseeing the overall production funcfion
of the Group. Mr. Brandon Lim obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from
Murdoch University majoring in management marketing in June 2015.

Mr. Brandon Lim is the son of Mr. lawrence Lim, an executive Director.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan So Fun ("Ms. Chan"), age 51,
company secretary of the Company on 20 December 2018. Ms.

was appointed as the

Chan is currently a partner at the law firm of Michael Lli & Co.,
specialising in corporate finance work including initial public offerings,
mergers and acquisitions and resfructuring. Ms. Chan is a practising
solicitor and was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in November
2007. She received a degree of Bachelor of Llaws from the University
of london in August 2004. She obtained a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Hong Kong in December 1998
and she also obfained a degree of Bachelor of Social Science from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1992. Ms. Chan
has been the company secretary of BHCC Holding Limited (stock
code: 1552) since August 2017, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Prior to embarking her legal career, Ms.
Chan has over five years of experience in marketing and corporate
communications.
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The Boord is pleased fo present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and through
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the production, packaging
and sale of nuts and chips with frack record of more than 50 years.
The core products include roasted nuts, baked nuts, potato chips and
cassava chips. The products have been sold and distributed to over 10
counfries, including Singapore, Malaysia, the PRC, India, the United
Kingdom and Indonesia.

The particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 36 to the Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 are sef out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2019 are sef out in
the Financial Statements.

After due consideration of the uncertain macroeconomic outlook
chead as set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report, the Board has resolved not fo
recommend any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 even
though the Group was profitable. Nonetheless, the Group's dividend
policy has not changed and the Board will continue to assess whether
to recommend dividend in the next financial period.

Report of the Directors
EEERE

EZEgMAREEEE T NF+-_A=1+—
BLEFENRE ERAKEHE_T—NF
T-A=T - HALFENEERSRAVBERER
(T##5Hmak])

FEXH

ARABNELEBRRERER CERBENBA
AETEREBRNERLE BERHEE AF
BSOFREREL - ROERBRERYVER B
REEE FREARAZR -ERAEBBIOE
BRHEHERDH  BREMIMNE  FRAD  F
B ENE - RERENE -

ARAREEME QA MBI SRR T
36 -

E 3 )

BRAAKREEE T NE+-_A=1+—HLHF
B R R af i e T B AN R ¥ [ & 32 B & o %
DM —ffe

RERKRE

AEBRE_FT-AF+ A=+ —HLFEHN
EERAEER T NFE+-_A=1+—BNHH
BN BB T AR o

KERERIAFHR(EEESHBESN]) —
MAEARZBERENSN T EEE BEAE
BRESEN EF@RATEIRNEMNEES
E-NAF+A=t-LFENRE AWM &
SENEREBRRLBESH N EESRRENE
BRT - HHAEERRERE -

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2010 F3& 31



Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 20 December 2018,
which sefs out the approach in recommending dividends, to allow the
Shareholders to participate in the Group's profits and for the Group
fo retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company’s ability
to pay dividends will depend upon, among other things, the Group's
current and future operations, financial position, development pipeline,
prevailing economic environment, contractual restrictions, capital and
other reserve requirements, dividends received from the Company's
subsidiaries and associates, as well as any other conditions or factors
which the Board deems relevant. The form, frequency and amount
of dividend payment by the Company are subject fo any restrictions
under the memorandum and articles of association (the “Articles”) of the
Company, the applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the
Cayman Islands and any other laws and regulations applicable fo the
Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Defails of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are sef out in Note 14 fo
the Financial Statements.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders’ rights to attend
and vote at the AGM 1o be held at 10:00 a.m. on 1 June 2020 at
255 Pandan loop, Singapore 128433, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 27 May 2020 to 1 June 2020,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares
will be registered. In order to be eligible to aflend and vote at the
AGM, non-registered Shareholders must lodge all completed fransfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share cerfificates with the
Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Llimited, at level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 26 May 2020.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group in the form of a comparative table for the last five financial
years is set out in the section headed “Financial Highlights” of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has complied
with all applicable laws and regulations in relation o environmental
protections, including, but not limited to The Environmental Profection
and Management Act [Chapter 94A of Singapore|, Environmental
Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulations 2009 (Malaysia) and
Environmental Quality [Sewage) Regulations 2009. In 2019, the
Group was not subject fo any material claims or penalties in relafion to
environmental protection.

Details of the Group’s environmental, social and governance
performance for the year ended 31 December 2019 can be found in
in the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has in place compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated
with the continuing obligation to monitor adherence to and compliance
with all significant legal and regulatory requirements by the Group.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, to the best knowledge of the
Board, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
applicable fo ifs business and industry in Singapore and Malaysia in
all material aspects during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board is aware that the Group's financial condition, results of

operation, businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of

risks and uncertainties. The key risks and uncertainties identified by the

Group are set out as follows:

(i)

(i)

The Group's business is seasonal

The Group experiences seasonal fluctuations in its revenue and
operating income for its products. The Group generally records
higher revenue for its products during the holiday seasons, such
as the Chinese New Year, Hari Raya Puasa and Chrisimas.
The seasonal nature of its products causes its production lines o
operate at levels approaching full capacity during certain times of
the year to meet the demand particularly for the holiday seasons.
As a result of these fluctuations, sales and operating results for
any particular period may not necessarily be indicative of the
Group's resuls for the full year or future periods. The Group's
results of operations are likely to confinue to fluctuate due to
seasonality.

The Group's profitability may be adversely affected by
fluctuations in material prices

The Group purchases all its materials which mainly comprise of
various types of nuts and beans including peanuts, cashews,
pistachios, almonds, macadamia nuts, USA walnuts, broad
beans and green peas, as well as fresh potatoes and cassava
roofs from third party suppliers. lts cost of materials accounted for
more than 80% of its cost of sales. The quality and price of ifs
materials are dependent on the output of the harvest which may
be affected by events beyond its control such as natural disasters,
infectious diseases, pest infestations and climate change. The
Group's suppliers may not be able to continue fo provide
materials in sufficient quantiies and of suitable quality at an
acceptable price fo safisfy the Group's production needs should
there be a bad harvest. Any inferruptions to its material supplies
could materially and adversely affect its production and business
operation.
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(iii) The Group relies on certain third party suppliers

The Group's purchases from ifs five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 78.9% of its total purchases for the year

ended 31
suppliers will continue to supply materials af prices and on terms

December 2019. There is no assurance that these

and conditions accepfable to the Group. The materials from its
suppliers may be offected by natural disasters, infectious diseases,
pest infestations and climate change which may expose the
Group fo the risk of price fluctuation and availability of supplies.
Should there be any disruptions in the operations of its suppliers
which affect the supply of materials, there is no assurance
that the Group will be able fo locate alternative suppliers with
sufficient quantities of suitable quality at an acceptable price and
commercial terms, which could then materially and adversely
affect its business, overall profitability and financial performance.

For other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please refer to the
section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

SHARE CAPITAL

Defails of the movements in the share capital of the Company are sef
out in Note 27 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” in the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Group, as calculated
under the Companies law of the Cayman Islands, was approximately

S$26.2 million.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Group
has made charitable donations of approximately $$26,000 and
$$89,000 respectively.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately 54.7%
of the tofal revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 whilst the largest customer accounted for approximately 25.7%
of the tofal revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2019.

The Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 78.9%
of the Group’s total purchases during the year ended 31 December
2019 whilst the largest supplier accounted for approximately 24.4%
of the fotal purchases of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

At all times during the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the
Direcfors or any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or any Shareholder [who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of number of issued Shares) had an interest in any of the
five largest customers or five largest suppliers of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2019.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 20 December
2018. The ferms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with
the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The following is a
summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme:

(A) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an
incentive or a reward fo eligible persons for their contribution
fo the Group and/or to enable the Group fo recruit and refain
high-calibre employees and affract human resources that are
valuable to the Group or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interest (“Invested Entity”).
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(B)

(C)

(D)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme
The participants of the Share Option Scheme shall be:

(1) any employee (whether full-time or parttime) of the
Company, any of the subsidiaries and any Invested Entity;

(2) any director [including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any
of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(3)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(4)  any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

[5)  any consuliant, adviser, manager, officer or entity that
provides research, development or other technological
support fo the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(6] any person who, in the sole discrefion of the Board, has
confributed or may contribute fo the Group or any Invested
Entity eligible for options under the Share Option Scheme.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme

Under the Share Option Scheme, the total number of Shares
which may be allotied and issued upon exercise of all share
opfions to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the number of issued shares as at 14 January
2019, being the Llisting Date, unless the Company obtains a
fresh approval from the Shareholders.

As at the date of this annual report, a fotal of 100,000,000
Shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company, are available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Option Scheme

The maximum entilement of each participant under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period up fo and including
the date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of the fotal
number of Shares in issue.

(B)

(€)

(D)
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(E)

(F)

(C)

(H)

Each grant of share options to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, is subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-execufive Directors. In addition, any grant of share opfions
fo a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Direcfor, or fo any of their associates, resulting in the Shares
issted and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) fo such person, in a 12-month period
up to and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of
the Shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Shares at the dafe of the grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, is subject to Shareholders” approval in advance in
a general meeting of the Company.

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

The period during which an option may be exercised is
defermined by the Board at its discrefion, save that such period
shall not be longer than 10 years from the date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

As defermined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option and
the period within which payments shall be made

A consideration of S$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of
grant of an option where the grantee should accept or decline
the offer of grant of an option within the date as specified in the
offer letter issued by the Company, being a date not later than
21 business days from the date upon which it is made.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular option
granfed under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and notified
fo an eligible person, and shall be at least the higher of: (1) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, (2] the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five consecufive business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and (3) the nominal
value of a share on the date of grant.
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()  The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 vyears from 20 December 2018, being the
adoption date, until 19 December 2028.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption on 20
December 2018, and there is no outstanding share option as at

31 December 2019.

As af the dafe of this annual report, there was no outstanding
share opfion granted under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who served for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up fo the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Lim Seow Yen (Chairlady)™
M. Lim Fung Yee!"

Mr. Llim Fung Chor'!

Mr. Llim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai)?
Mr. Zhang Junli®®

Notes:

(1) Appointed as Director on 19 April 2018 [date of incorporation of the
Company) and were re-designated as executive Director on 5 July 2018.

[2)  Appointed as executive Direcfor on 5 July 2018.

[3)  Appointed as executive Direcfor on 27 September 2019.

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Ka Yu

Mr. Llee Yan Fai

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao)

Note: All appointed as independent non-executive Directors on 20 December

2018.

Pursuant to article 112 of the Arficles, any Direcfor appointed by the
Board as an aoddition fo the existing Board shall hold office unfil the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for reelection. As such, Mr. Zhang Junli will refire from
office at the forthcoming AGM, being eligible, and offer himself for

re<election.

Report of the Directors
EEERE

() BREFTEINRERER
ERE g - N\E+=-_A=+1"
MEmBEsEE T - NF+_-_A+1B
IETOFEIM A A B R A Rk o

BEREASIN _FE-N\F+T_A=-FH
TE TR A DA IR - 150 48 T PR R AR U R AL R A 8
BEWL 1T FHARBIER_F—NEF
T-A=+—R BERRITENERE-

RAFRA Y SEREERE SR
RITIE B RHE

EE

HE_Z-NFTA=Z=+—HLEFEREER
FHREPRERHRE < ESTHT:

HTES:
WL (ERE)
RIS F SN
MRITE AN

AR BA S R
REBLEN

B e

(1) RZZ-NFOA+AB (KARRZEMAKZA
HEZEREELIN _ZE-N\FLARLBH
ERMTES-

12) RECE-N\FLALHEZERNTES-
(3) RZB-NFANAZTLREZERRITES-

BYFHITES:
BRRF LA
TEEEE
B AR E

Mizr: HAR_T-N\F+-_A-+BEZEABIHF
HITES-

REZERAAEN 26 EARESSR(EAE
MRBEEEABNESEREARR TEER
BFEAERL BERBETAERERET
o RERLEEKREEBRAFAEG LRE
WHIFEEREREE-

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2010 ¥ 39



Report of the Directors
EEERE

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the Articles, af each annual general
meeting, one+hird of the Directors, or, if their number is not three or a
mU|Tip|e of Three, then the number nearest to but not less than oneffhird,
shall refire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject fo refirement by rotation at least once every three years
and shall then be eligible for re-election. As such, Ms. Sandy Lim, Mr.
Winston Lim and Mr. Lawrence Lim will retire from office as Directors
at the forthcoming AGM, being eligible, and offer themselves for

re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE AGREEMENT

Save for Mr. Zhang Junli, each executive Director is appointed under a
service agreement for a term of three years from the listing Date which
is terminable by either party by giving three months" written nofice to
the other party.

Mr. Zhang Junli is appointed under a letter of appointment for an initial
term of one year from 27 September 2019, which is terminable by
either party by giving one month’s written nofice fo the other party.

Each independent non-executive Direcior is appointed under a lefter
of appointment for a term of three years from the listing Date which is
terminable by either party by giving one month’s written notice to the
other party.

None of our Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not deferminable by our
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation [other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set in the secfion headed “Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S
BUSINESS

Save for the connected fransactions and/or related party transactions
as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Related Party Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” below and in Note 32 fo
the Financial Statements, no Director and/or any of his/her connecfed
entity had a material interest, whether direcﬂ\/ or indirecﬂ\/, in any
fransactions, arrangements or confracts of significance fo the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisted at any fime
during the year ended 31 December 2019
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND THE
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of the associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required: (a) fo be nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant fo Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were faken or deemed fo have under
such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant fo section 352 of the SFO,
fo be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be nofified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 fo the Listing Rules, were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES OF SWL LIMITED,
AN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION OF THE COMPANY

Name of Directors Capacity/nature of interest

BEEnS B0 EmHE
Lim Seow Yen Beneficial owner
/N3 BEamEEAA
Lim Fung Yee Beneficial owner
M5 F BEaEEAA
Lim Fung Chor Beneficial owner
M7 EmEAA

Note: SWL Limited held in aggregate 750,000,000 Shares, representing 75%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The issued share capital of
SWL Llimited is legally and benéficially owned as to 24.5% by Mdm.
Han Yew lang, 24.5% by Ms. Lim Seow Yen, 24.5% by Mr. Lim Fung
Yee, 24.5% by Mr. Llim Fung Chor, 1.0% by Mr. loo Soon Hock James
and 1.0% by Ms. Ong Liow Wah.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any inferests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company [within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required: (a) fo be nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant fo Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
fo be entered in the register referred fo therein, or [c] pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Compony) and entities had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest

BRHES B EEHE
SWIL Limited Beneficial owner
SWIL Limited BEnlEA A

Note: The issued share capital of SWL Limited is legally and beneficially owned
as to 24.5% by Mdm. Han Yew lang, 24.5% by Ms. lim Seow Yen,
24.5% by Mr. Llim Fung Yee, 24.5% by Mr. Llim Fung Chor, 1.0% by Mr.
Lloo Soon Hock James and 1.0% by Ms. Ong Liow Wah.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, so far as
the Direcfors are aware, no other persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) or entities had any inferests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company, which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept

by the Company under secfion 336 of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were
enfered info or subsisted by the Company af the year ended 31
December 2019

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2019 were rights fo
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective associates
nor was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a parly fo any
arrangement.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, details of the material
related party fransactions undertaken in the normal course of business
are set out in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below and in the Note 32 to the Financial Statements,
and none of which constitutes a disclosable and connected transaction
as defined under the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered info certain continuing connected transactions,
which are fully exempt from the reporting, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, details of which are sef out below:

(1) The No. 8 Tenancy Agreement

1 July 2018, Tai Sun Lim Kee Food Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd.
["TSM"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
fenant, entered info the fenancy agreement (the “No. 8 Tenancy
Agreement”] with Tai Sun Lim Kee Trading Sdn. Bhd. (“TST") as
landlord, pursuant to which TST agreed to lease the property
located at No. 8, Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3, Taman Perindustrian
Maiju Cemerlang, 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor, Malaysia, with a
floor area of approximately 1,769 square metres fo TSM,, at a
monthly rent of RM 16,000, for use as cold room storage for a
term of two years commencing on 1 July 2018, with an option
fo renew for a further term of one year.
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(2) The No. 10 Tenancy Agreement
No. 10 Tenancy Agreement A

On 1 September 2017, TSM as tenant, entered info the
tfenancy agreement [the “No. 10 Tenancy Agreement A")
with TST as landlord, pursuant to which TST agreed fo lease
a property located at No. 10, Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3,
Taman Perindustrian Maju Cemerlang, 81800 Ulu Tiram,
Johor, Malaysia (the “No.

1,769 square metres to TSM, at a monthly rent

10 Property”), with a floor area of
approximately
of RM15,000, for manufacturing of snack foods and warehouse
storage for a ferm of two years commencing on 1 September
2017, with an option fo renew for a further term of one year.

No. 10 Tenancy Agreement B

On 1 September 2019, TSM entered info a tenancy agreement
(the “No. 10 Tenancy Agreement B") with TST as landlord,
pursuant fo which TST agreed fo lease the No. 10 Property,
at a monthly rent of RM15,000, to TSM for manufacturing of
snack foods and warehouse storage for a ferm of two years
commencing on 1 September 2019, with an option to renew for
a further term of one year.

TST is owned as fo 50% by Mr. lim Fung Yee and 50% by Mr. Lim
Fung Chor, both being executive Directors and controlling shareholders
of the Company. Hence, TST is an associate of Mr. lim Fung Yee and
M. Lim Fung Chor, and is a connected person of the Company.

The annual cap for total rental fees paid or payable by the Group to
TST for the three years ended/ending 31 December 2018, 2019
and 2020 did not or shall not exceed RM486,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$924,000), RM372,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$707,000) and RM372,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$707,000), respectively.

The total rental fees paid by the Group to TST for the renting of the
aforementioned properties for the year ended 31 December 2019 was

RM372,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$707,000.

Save as disclosed above and in Note 32 fo the Financial Statements,
the Group has not engaged in any other connected transactions
and/or related party fransactions during the year ended 31 December

2019.
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Annual Review of the Continuing Connected Transactions

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
fully exempt continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;

and

[c) according fo the agreements governing them on ferms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule T4A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company fo report on the Group's continuing connected
fransactions in accordance with International Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference fo Listing
Rule 14A.56. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the confinuing connected
fransactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company fo the Stock Exchange. The independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the confinuing connected
transactions and the report of the auditor and have confirmed that
the transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary course of its business, on normal commercial terms to or from
independent third parfies, and in accordance with the ferms of the
agreement governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable
and in the inferests of the Shareholders as a whole.

In respect of the contfinuing connected transactions, the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules in
force from fime fo fime.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS'
REMUNERATION

The Group believes that the remuneration package fo its employees is
in line with local industries. It offers its employees medical insurance
coverage. The Group also offers its employees discretionary bonus
depending on their respective performance and profitability of the
Group which encourages their individual performance and then fo
confribute fo their departmental performance as well. The emoluments
of the Directors are reviewed and approved by the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to factors including remuneration
paid by comparable companies, time commitment, job duties and
responsibilities in respect of the relevant positions. The Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme, defails of which are set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in Nofe 11 to the Financial Statements. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, there was no arrangement under which
any Director had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the

year ended 31 December 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a proTata basis o existing Shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
Shareholders and profecting and enhancing shareholders’ value
through good corporate governance. The Directors recognise that a
good corporate governance is essential for the Company to achieve
its objectives and drive improvement, as well as maintain legal and
ethical standing in the eyes of Shareholders, regulators and the general
public. The Company is committed fo the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent element on
the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
"Corporate Governance Code”) confained in Appendix 14 fo the
Listing Rules. To the best knowledge of the Board, for the year ended
31 December 2019, the Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance Code which are applicable to the Company. For details,
please refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the listing Rules as its code of conduct governing the Directors’
securities transactions and each of the Directors has confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that he/she had complied
with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2019,

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors a written annual confirmation of independence, and the
Company considers that each of them is independent and has met the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Directors

IN A COMPETING

or their respective close associates had interests in businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group pursuant fo the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

SWIL limited, Mdm. Han Yew lang, Ms. Lim Seow Yen, Mr. Llim Fung
Yee, Mr. lim Fung Chor, Mr. loo Soon Hock James and Ms. Ong
liow Wah (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) entered into
a deed of non-competition dated 20 December 2018 in favour of
the Company and the subsidiaries (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling
Shareholders has irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken to the
Company |for itself and for the benefit of the subsidiaries|, among
others, that, during the period which (i) the Shares remain listed in the
Stock Exchange and (i) the Controlling Shareholder and their close
associates (other than members of the Group] individually or jointly,
are entitfled to exercise, or control the exercise of, not less 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company or control the Board. He/she/it
shall not, and shall procure that his/her/its close associates (other than
any member of the Group) not to carry on or be engaged, concerned
or interested, or otherwise be involved directly or indirectly, in any
business in compefition with or likely to be in competition with the
existing business activity of any member of the Group or any business
activity to be conducted by any member of the Group from fime to
time.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders further undertakes that if any
project or new business opportunity which may compete with the
business of the Group is idenfified by or offered to him/her/it, he/
she/it shall procure that his/her/its close associates to promptly notify
the Group in writing and the Group shall have a right of first refusal
fo fake up such opportunity. The Group shall within 30 business days
after the receipt of the writtlen notice, notify the Controlling Shareholders
whether the Group will exercise the right of first refusal.

48 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2019

EERNBRFERBHERS

BE_ZT-NFt-_A=+—HLFE HEE
FAREEENBEEBREARE EHRARER

SEEXBERIEEBREF A EBREFH
KGR

R F A
SWIL limited * B RBI X &« /N2 = - MFF &
A M E A - Lloo Soon Hock Jamesst £ K £ i
%ﬁi(ﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁzﬁzﬁiﬂiﬁﬂb{$ AR EN B
RABAXmAFVEBHAE T —N\F+_A=+
ANTREFRE ([ TRFRE]) - BRETHEFR
B SERRERESTUHEEREEERERRE (A
ERgRAEMNBARMNFZ) &#E (Eh 1)
)R I EE R £ R(i)ERBER R FEES
BEETHBEA(KNEERKE QBRI @RIkt
RBEEITEIEHITENDLRART B BITRA
MB0%kIEHIEET S HE BT W RFEER
TN (REBKE QRIRIN EITRRE F
MEAEETMHKEARREEE TSN AEER
EAR B R R TR EITH R EB E BN
AR IBA R B ¥R RN EP R
S EMm SR EEEEESAEF -

BB — ARG AR SRR T
MEESH A ERARERBENES &
7 fie {50 L EX AR B B A S7 B () AN £R 18 3 ) B T A A
AXREEHNEORI AR ERBELE -IE
EANKEE@BANKLI0MEE XA NBHAER
BR - AEBEREREITEREE-



The Company has received a written confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of the compliance with and the enforcement
of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling
Shareholders during the year ended 31 December 2019. All
independent non-executive Direcfors have reviewed the compliance
of the Deed of Non-competition entered into by the Controlling
Shareholders as to whether the Controlling Shareholders had abided
by the Deed of non-Competition. All independent non-executive
Directors also confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not been
in breach of the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended 31
December 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as at the date of this
annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that its employees are valuable assets for
the Group's contfinuous development and endeavours to provide
competitive remuneration package and various benefits to affract and
refain its talents. Employees are remunerated according to their job
scope, responsibilifies, and performance. Employees are also enfifled
to discretionary bonus depending on their respective performance and
profitability of the Group. Other form of remuneration packages include
medical insurance coverage for all employees and leaves including
marriage, matemity, paternity, childcare leaves and compassionate
leaves.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme to recognise
and motivate contributions of its employees. Further defails regarding
the Share Option Scheme are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Scheme” above.

The Group maintains a close relationship with ifs customers and
suppliers. The Group has approximately 30 years of relationship with
its largest customer, which is the largest supermarket chain in Singapore
with a network of over 200 outlets and approximately 20 years of
relationship with its largest supplier, which is a grower, processor and
infernational frader and exporter of nuts and dried fruits.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

As required by the Singapore and Malaysia law, the Group makes
contribution to the Central Provident Fund and the Employees Provident
Fund which provides for the refirement benefits for eligible employees in
Singapore and Malaysia respectively. Both the employer and employee
are required to make contributions into the employee’s individual
account in the Cenfral Provident Fund or the Employees Provident Fund
at a specified percentage of the employee’s monthly income. As at
the date of this annual report, the Group is in compliance with this
requirement.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director or other officers of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profifs
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
domages and expenses which they or any of them may sustain or incur
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices.

The Company has taken appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
Directors’ and officers’ liability for the year ended 31 December 2019.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract conceming the management or administration of the whole
or any subsfantial part of the business of the Company was entered
info or existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER'S INTERESTS

As notified by the Company's compliance adviser, Vinco Capital
Limited (the "Compliance Adviser"), except for the compliance adviser
agreement entered info between the Company and the Compliance
Adviser dated 20 December 2018, neither the Compliance Adviser
nor ifs directors, employees or close associates had any inferests
in relafion to the Company, which is required o be notified to the
Company pursuant fo the Listing Rules.
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IMPORTANT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the event after the reporting period are set out in Note 40 to
the Financial Statements.

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”] has three members,
consisting of all the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Ka
Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow. Mr. Chan Ka Yu is the

chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee had reviewed this annual report (including the
Financial Statements) and the annual results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 and had submitted
the same fo the Board for approval. The Audit Committee were of the
opinion that the Financial Statements, the results announcement and this
annual report had been prepared in compliance with the applicable
accounting standards, requirements and the Listing Rules, and that
adequate disclosure had been made.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Company appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP as auditors of the
Compoany for the year ended 31 December 2019. The Financial
Statements were audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP. Deloitle & Touche
LLP will refire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be proposed af the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as the external auditors of the
Company until the conclusion of the next AGM and to authorise the
Board fo fix their remuneration.

On behalf of the Board
Lim Seow Yen
Chairlady and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
shareholders and protecting and enhancing shareholders” value through
good corporate governance.

The Directors recognise that a good corporafe governance is essential
for the Company to achieve its objectives and drive improvement, as
well as maintain legal and ethical standing in the eyes of shareholders,
regulators and the general public.

The Company has been listed on the Stock Exchange since 14
January 2019, being the Llisting Date. The Company has adopted
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 fo the
Listing Rules. To the best knowledge of the Board, for the year ended
31 December 2019, the Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance Code which are applicable to the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code states that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Ms. Lim Seow Yen is the Chairlady of the Board. As the Chairlady,
Ms Llim Seow Yen manages the board's business and acfivities and
provides guidance and direction to other board members to ensure
that the Board works effectively and acts in the best interest of the
Company.

The Company has no such position as the chief executive officer and
therefore the daily operation and management of the Company is
monifored by the executive Directors as well as the senior management
of the Group. The Board believes that there is sufficient balance of
power and authority as there are five experienced executive Directors
each overseeing various aspects of the business, namely finance and
operations, sales and marketing and production functions. In addition,
there are three independent non-executive Directors who are sufficiently
experienced and capable of monitoring the operations of the Group.
The Board will meet from time to fime to discuss issues arising from
operations of the Group.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Direcfors of listed Issuers as set forth in Appendix 10 fo the Listing
Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions of the
Direcfors. Employees of the Group (the “Relevant Employees”] who,
because of their office or employment, are likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Company or ifs securities are also subject
fo compliance with the Model Code. Following specific enquiry,
each of the Directors has confirmed compliance with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019. No incident of
non-compliance of the Model Code by the Relevant Employees was

noted by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises eight members as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Lim Seow Yen (Chairlady)
M. Llim Fung Yee

Mr. Llim Fung Chor

Mr. Lim Seng Chye (lin Shengcai)
Mr. Zhang Junli

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Ka Yu

M. Lee Yan Fai

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report. The relationships between the members of the
Board are also disclosed under the same section.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board af all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of af
least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third
of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to Code provision A.4.1of the Corporate Governance
Code, nonexecutive directors shall be appointed for a specific ferm,
subject fo reelection, whereas according to Code provision A.4.2
of the Corporate Governance Code, all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting affer appointment and that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to refirement by
rofafion at least once every three years.

Each of Ms. Llim Seow Yen, Mr. lim Fung Yee, Mr. Lim Fung Chor and
Mr. Llim Seng Chye, all being executive Directors, is appointed under
a service agreement for a term of three years from the listing Date
which is terminable by either party by giving three months’ written
notice to the other party. Mr. Zhang Junli, being an executive Director,
is appointed under a letter of appointment for a term of one year from
27 September 2019 which is tferminable by either party by giving
one month's written notice fo the other party. Each of Mr. Chan Ka
Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow, all being independent
non-executive Directors, is appointed under a letter of appointment for
a term of three years from the Listing Date which is terminable by either
party by giving one month's writfen notice to the other party.

In accordance with the Arficles, at each annual general meeting
one-hird of the Directors shall refire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rofation at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at the
general meefing at which a Director refires may fill the vacated office.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board, led by the Chairlady, Ms. Llim Seow Yen, determines and
monitors the overall strategy and policies, annual budgets and business
plans, evaluates the performance of the Group, and supervises the
management of the Company.

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among other
things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review of the corporate
and financial policies, review and assessment of the Company's
financial reporting, internal control and risk management systems and
the oversight of the management of the Group's business and affairs.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. All Directors have full and fimely access to all
the information of the Company as well as the services and advice
from the senior management. The Direcfors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Direcfors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Direcfor to perform his responsibilities to the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board had adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy’) on 20 December 2018, which sefs out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of
board members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, infegrity, management experience,
technical skills, industry or professional knowledge and experience. All
Board appointments are based on meritocracy, and candidates are
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee of the Board had reviewed the Board
Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the
Group had achieved board diversity for the year ended 31 December
2019.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board had adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 20 December 2018, which sefs ouf the approach fo defermine
the nomination of Directors, the procedure, process and criteria fo be
adopted for the purposes of selecting and recommending candidates
for diredorship, and shall make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Direcfors, in particular, the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer.
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The Company considered that, in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate, the nomination committee of the Board may make
reference to cerfain criferia, including but not limited fo, the experience
in the Compony's principo| business ond/or the indusTry in which the
Company operates, balance of skills, knowledge and experience on
the Board, and various aspects sef out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The nomination committee of the Board had reviewed the Nomination
Policy fo ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Board has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience required for the business of

the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS" CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company.

A newly appointed Director will receive formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their confribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All Directors were encouraged to attend relevant fraining
courses at the Company's expense.
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BOARD PROCESS

The Group has in place a clear board process. Regular Board
meetings are scheduled at least two times per year. Directors receive
ot least 14 days’ prior written nofice of regular Board meetings and
agenda. The Board papers, including supporting analyses and relevant
background information, are normally sent 1o all Directors at least three
days before the Board meeting. For other Board meetings, Directors are
given as much nofice as possible in the circumstances. Directors may
include any matters they wish fo discuss in the agenda.

Minutes of the Board and commitiee meetings are prepared and kept
by the company secretary of the Group, and are open for inspection
by Directors upon request. All Direcfors have access to the advice and
services of the company secrefary, and are allowed fo seek external
professional advice if needed.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board had eight

meetings pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees, including the
Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the risk management committee (the “Risk Management
Committee”) to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board committees are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are posted on
the Company's website (www.taisun.com.sg) and the Stock Exchange's
website [www.hkexnews.hk) and are available to Shareholders upon
request. The Board commitiees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their dufies.
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Audit Committee
The Group established the Audit Commitiee on 20 December 2018

with written ferms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
listing Rules and Code provision C.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in providing an independent view of the effectiveness of
the Group's financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management sysfem, fo oversee the audit process and to perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Commitiee has three members, consisting of all independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and Mr.
Chew Keat Yeow. Mr. Chan Ka Yu is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Mr. Chan Ka Yu possesses appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former pariner of the existing external auditors of the
Company.

The members of the Audit Committee should meet at least twice a year.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee had
two meetings, pursuant fo the Corporate Governance Code.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2019:

° Review and discuss the annual financial statements, results
announcements and reports, the related accounting principles
and pracfices adopted by the Group and the relevant audit
findings;

®*  Review and report on contfinuing connected fransactions/
related party transactions carried out during the year ended 31
December 2019:
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®  Review and discuss the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

° Discuss and recommend the re-appointment of external audifors.

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Group established the Remuneration Commitiee on 20 December
2018 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
provision B.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary
duties of the remuneration committee include but not limited to, |i)
making recommendations fo the Direcfors on the policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policies on such remuneration; (i) defermining the ferms of the specific
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management; and (i)
reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to
time.

The Remuneration Committee has four members, consisting of an
executive Direcfor, Mr. Lim Fung Yee, and all independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow.

M. Lee Yan Fai is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The members of the Remuneration Commitiee should meet at least once
a year. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee had three meetings.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2019:

e Review on the remuneration packages for individual Directors and
senior management and made recommendations to the Board.

Pursuant fo code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior management
(other than Directors) by bands for the year ended 31 December 2019
is sef out below:

ATHABE—FT-NEFE+_A=+T—BLLFE
FMEZBESETHIIE:

. RESEFLREMETERFHGE AEF
BIRHERMER

BECEEATHTAMRYES RE-T
~NE+-ASt-BLEE REHEELS
MBRERERE (EERIN) 0 EEHHRI
mF

No. of

Band of remuneration (HK$) individuals
FNEEE (BT) AE
HK$0 to HK$ 1,000,000 0% T2 1,000,000 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,0018 L& 1,500,000 7T 3
5

Further defails of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid employees is set out in note 11 fo the consolidated financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Group esfablished the Nomination Committee on 20 December
2018 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
provision A.5 of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee include but not limited to, {i) reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board on a
regular basis; (i) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members; (i) assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; (iv] making recommendations to the Board
in relation fo the appointment and removal of Directors and senior
management, and on matters of succession planning; and (v) making
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board and/or senior management.
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The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board
composition on behalf of the Board and recommends the appointment
of new Direcfors, taking info account a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, industry and
regional experience, and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
and the Nomination Policy, and assess their effectiveness, and where
necessary, make any revisions that may be required and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

The Nomination Committee has four members, consisting of
an executive Director, Mr. Llim Fung Chor, and all independent

Mr. lee Yan Fai and Mr.

Chew Keat Yeow is the chairman of the

non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Ka Yu,
Chew Keat Yeow. M.

Nomination Committee.

The members of the Nomination Committee should meet at least once
a year. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee had two meetings.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committiee during the year ended 31 December 2019

e Review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations fo the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

e Assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

*  Make recommendations fo the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
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Risk Management Committee

The Group established the Risk Management Committee on 20
December 2018 with written terms of reference, to further enhance
the Group's existing internal risk management functions. The primary
duties of the Risk Management Committee include but not limited
fo, monitoring the Group's exposure to sanctions risks and its
implementation of the related inferal control procedures.

The Risk Management Committee has four members, consisting of four
executive Directors, Ms. Lim Seow Yen, Mr. Llim Fung Yee, Mr. Llim Fung
Chor and Mr. Llim Seng Chye. Ms. Llim Seow Yen is the chairlady of
the Risk Management Committee.

The members of the Risk Management Committee should meet at least
twice a vyear. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Risk
Management Committee had two meetings.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Risk
Management Committee during the year ended 31 December 2019

* Review and approve all relevant business transaction
documentation from customers/distributors or potential customers/
distributors from sanctioned countries and with sanctioned
persons;

*  Monitor the use of proceeds from the share offer of the
Company; and

®  Review the internal control policies and procedures with respect

to sanctions law matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
pracfices, training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulafory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and the guidelines, and the Company's compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the annual general meeting,
Board meefings and Board committee meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the table
below:
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Risk Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination  Management General
Name of Directors Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
EREERZ REBE
3t e ERZEEE ¥YMEEE REEZEE Eg &
Executive Directors: HITEE:

Ms. Lim Seow Yen YN e 8/8 N/ATEA N/ATEE N/ATEH 2/2 1/1
M. Llim Fung Yee WEFLE 8/8 N/ATER 3/3 N/ATER 2/2 1/1
M. Llim Fung Chor WHELE 8/8 N/ANER N/ATER 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. lim Seng Chye WEF T4 8/8 N/ATEA N/ATER N/ATER 2/2 1/1
Mr. Zhang Junli RERAL 1/8 N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 0/1

Indlependent Norrexecutive Directors: BUIBTEE:
Mr. Chan Ka Yu BREFEE 8/8 2/2 3/3 2/2 N/AT#ER 1/1
Mr. Lee Yan Fai TEBEE 8/8 2/2 3/3 2/2 N/ATER 1/1
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow AEREAE 8/8 2/2 3/3 2/2 N/ATER 1/1
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According fo article 62 of the Articles, an annual general meeting
of the Company shall be held in each year other than the year of
the Company’s adoption of the Arficles. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Company held its annual general meefing on 3

June 2019.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019
and ensure that they are published in a timely manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating fo
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability fo continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Deloitte & Touche LLP was
engaged as the Group's independent auditor.

The remuneration paid/payable fo the independent auditor and its
foreign member firm for audit services in respect of the year ended 31

December 2019 amount to $$216,000.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks the Company is willing to take in achieving
the Company's strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and infernal control systems. The Board oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and infernal control systems. The Board acknowledges that such risk
management and infernal control systems are designed fo manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure o achieve business obijectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Company had reviewed the need
for an internal audit function. Internal audit function of the Company
had been carried out under the leadership of the Board and the Audit
Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board, through |i)
the Risk Management Committee, had conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, particularly on the Group's exposure to sanctions risks; and {ii)
the Audit Committee, had conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the infernal control system of the Group covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance as well as risk
management. The Board considers that the Group's risk management
and infernal control systems are adequate and effective. The Board
expecls that a review of the risk management and internal control
systems will be performed annually.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has established policy for ensuring that inside information
is disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Procedures such
as limit access to inside information to those who need to know and
requiring external parties fo execute confidentiality agreement have
been implemented by the Company to guard against mishandling of
inside information. The Group also reminds those relevant personnel
and other professional parties to preserve confidentiality of the inside
information until it is publicly disclosed.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan So Fun is the company secretary of the Company, who
reports directly to the Board and is responsible for, among others,
providing updated and timely information fo all Direcfors from fime to
time. Ms. Chan is nominated by an external service provider to assist
in company secretarial affairs of the Company. Ms. Chan’s primary
confact person af the Company is the Chairlady of the Board, Ms. Lim
Seow Yen. During the year ended 31 December 2019, Ms. Chan
confirmed that she had faken no less than 15 hours of professional
fraining in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Llisting Rules. Her
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of the Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures to
enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and communicate efficienﬂy with the Company.
Under the Articles and the relevant policies and procedures of the
Company, the shareholders enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i)  convene an extraordinary general meeting or put
forward proposals:

The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting, pursuant fo article 64 of the Articles.
Extraordinary general meetfings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing fo the
Board or the company secrefary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
fransaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition at the Company's Hong Kong office at Room 901, 9th
Floor, Prosperity Tower, No. 39 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
fo proceed to convene such meefing, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionisf(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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(i) put forth proposals at shareholders’ meeting:

Shareholders are requested fo follow article 64 of the Articles for
including a resolution at an exfraordinary general meeting. The
requirements and procedures are sef out in paragraph (i) above.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than a
refiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and nofice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registration office of the Company.
The period for lodgment of the notices required will commence
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the nofice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven days prior fo the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be af least seven days.

(iii) put forth enquiries to the Company:

Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board's
affention can be sent in writing to the company secretary at the
Company's Hong Kong office at Room 901, 9th Floor, Prosperity
Tower, No. 39 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relafions and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other extraordinary
general meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their
delegates as appropriate] are available to meet Shareholders and
answer their enquiries.
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The Company’s website [www.iaisun.com.sg) provides comprehensive
and accessible news and information of the Company to the
Shareholders, other stakeholders and invesfors. The Company will
also update the website information from time to time fo inform the
Shareholders and investors of the latest development of the Company.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the
Company as follows:
Singapore Hong Kong

255 Pandan Loop
Singapore 128433

Room 901, 9th Floor, Prosperity Tower
39 Queen'’s Road Central

Central

Hong Kong

The Company confinues fo enhance communications and relationships
with its shareholders and investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular diclogue with institutional investors and analysfs o
keep them posted of the Company's developments. Enquiries from
Shareholders and investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

Besides, Shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the Shareholders. Board
members and appropriate senior staff of the Group are available af the
meeting fo answer any questions raised by Shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Save for the adoption of the memorandum and the Arficles for the
purpose of the listing, during the year ended 31 December 2019,
there had been no significant changes in the constitutional documents
of the Company.

An upodate version of the memorandum and the Articles is available
on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG’) report of TS
Wonders Holding Limited ("We" or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group”), ["ESG Report”) addresses a
range of material impacts on the Group, outlining our sustainability
approaches and disclosing our ESG performances during the period

from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

BASIS OF THE ESG REPORT

This ESG Report is prepared according to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (the "ESG Reporting Guide”) as
set out in Appendix 27 to the listing Rules. With reference to the ESG
Reporting Guide and the Group's business operation, the presentation
of the ESG Report divides the relevant aspects and key performance
indicators ['KPI'), which are considered to be relevant and material to
the Group, info six subject areas:

(1)
We and the

Environment
HPEIRIR

(6)

Giving back
to the Community
Ef:crany
(5)
Commitment
to Ethics and Integrity
Lo SELEINE
S '
(4)
Commitment
to our Employees
FIRIS-S
BT aAGE

RIE HEREGRE

TS Wonders Holding Limited ([ A1) sk A2 71])
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EIR (TESG ) k& ([ESCHRE ) I — 5 &
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(2)
Our Supply Chain
Management

B HEREE

\ 4

(3)
Commitment
to Product Quality
HEMBE SR

2
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R HERELGRSE

A complete index in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide is
also available af the end of the Report for reference. The Group has
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide in the Reporting period.

As a food producer, we are committed to delivering high quality and
safe food products and continuously meeting customers’ expectations
and complying with legal requirements.

In order fo defermine what issues are relevant and material fo our
business with respect to sustainability, the Group is aware that the key
is to understand what issues that our stakeholders are concerned most.
We define our stakeholders as people who affect our business or who
are affected by our business. We have already established regular
communication and engagement channel with our stakeholders while
devoted 1o confinuous improvement of our dialogue with them as tfo
maintain a longterm partnership with our stakeholders and response
their concerns timely and effectively.

THE BOARD AND ESG WORKING GROUP

The Board of the Company refains overall responsibility for the
governance of ESG which includes, but not limited to evaluating
ESG related risks, determining ESG strategy and scope, setting forth
related risk management and infernal control system and approving the
disclosure in this report.

An ESG executive group, consisting of an executive Director, senior
management from Finance, Operation and Human Resources
Department in Singapore and Malaysia, is established by the Board
for the purpose of implementing the ESG initiatives, collecting and
continuously monitoring ESG data and preparing this ESG report.

The members of the ESG executive group have a good understanding
of our business and operations. The Board has reviewed the
competency, experience and resources of the ESG executive group fo
ensure it can fulfill its duties due diligently.
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REPORTING BOUNDARY AND PRINCIPLES

The Board, with the assistance of the ESG executive group, has
identified key ESG risks of the Group based on the consideration of
a series of factors such as business nature and scale, geographic
location, regulatory requirements, operating practices and stakeholders’
expectations.

The key considerations that the Board has taken include, but not limited
to:

1. Our business is headquartered in Singapore with another two
factories in Malaysia;

2. Our operation involves production, packaging and sale of snacks
products;

3. Our production and logistic arrangement involve emissions and

use of natural resources;

4. Our operation is subject to the various food safety related
regulations; and

5. Qur operation is subject fo the various environmental protection
related regulations.

Based on our assessment, the reporting boundary for this report shall
be set af the production, manufacturing and logistic function of our
Singapore and Malaysia operations.

The Board and ESG executive group have understood, concurred
with and applied the four core ESG principles in the course of setfing
ESG strategy, conducting our ESG inifiatives, collecting ESG data,
calculating ESG KPI and preparing and issuing this ESG report. The
four core ESG principles are materiality, consistency, balance and
quantitative.

STAKEHOLDERS" ENGAGEMENT

We acknowledge that in today’s rapidly changing business climate,
attention to ESG issues is becoming critical to our longerm competitive
success. Stakeholders” engagement is an integral part of the Group's
business management as it helps the Group fo assess potential risks
and business opportunities. Communicating with stakeholders and
understanding their views may befter align the Group's business
practices with stakeholder’s needs and expectations and properly
address different views.
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IRIR - HERELGRE

We have identified the following key stakeholders based on the

mutual dependency and influence. On a regular basis, the Group

communicates with key stakeholders within and outside the Group

through various channels,

such as in-person meetings, written

correspondence, telephone discussion and for our shareholders, annual

general meefing.

Key Stakeholders
FEFOE

Government and regulators

B REEHE

Investors and shareholders

REARKRR

Employees
BT

Communication Channels

Regulatory updates and correspondence
YRR N A e BB R

Professional conference

BEXed

Inquiries and questionnaires
AERES

Government websites

I 408

Corporate website

NGIEER

Annual general meeting
REBFRE

Announcements and disclosures
NGINE§

Interim/Annual reports

FOE R

Public reports
NGRS

Regular management meetings
THERESS

Infernal policy memorandum
AENEE PN

Performance evaluation

=IRFHE
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Stakeholders” Main Concerns

FOEXERIER

Llegal compliance
ERER

Food safety

Rmm&ZE

Work safety

ITHEZE
Environmental protection
RERE

Performance and profitability
KR BB

Scale and capacity
RENMEEN

Market share

M5

Supply chain management
HrEgEE R

Reputation

BE

Career development
BEERE

Remuneration and benefits
2 NG

Staff training

B T3

Work safety

ITHELZE
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Key Stakeholders Communication Channels
FEROE BERE

Customers Marketing and advertisement
EF BIHRES

Social media and survey report
HeRBLRHERE
Inferim/Annual reports
=

Customer hotline

B AR

Sales representatives’ visits

HERKE

Suppliers Suppliers” evaluation
HLEER HEmRT A
Meeting and correspondence
G&MBE
Onssite visits
B5E
Product quality inspection
EmEERE
Overall performance assessment

EEXGEME

Communities Community events
HE TEEN
Social media
g

The Board and ESG executive group acknowledge that the
stakeholders’ engagement is an important step to obtain different
views of sustainability development and to form a basis for us fo
provide feedback. Accordingly, on top of our regular engagements,
we have formulated plans fo strengthen our stakeholders’ engagement
process, including the infended use of an ESG survey and inferview
program, from which the information and feedback o be collected
and exchanged, will further enable us to take appropriate actions and
enhance our ESG inifiatives and reporting.

RIE HEREGRE

Stakeholders” Main Concerns

BOEXE@EIEHE

Product quality
EmEE

Food safety
Rmi®

Product pricing
EmEE

Image and reputation
BekEE
Environmental protfection
RIFRE

Climate change
RIRE(

Material pricing
BAEE
Stability and sustainability
REMRATHET
Diversity in supply chain
HEEZ Rt
Product quality

mEE
Food safety
Rmi®
Environmental protfection
RIBRE
Climate change
RIxEL

Community service

At [ AR 5
Environmental protfection
RE R

EEgRESCIE/NMERMELHERESHARF
BRRERNTEERY B KRR IR REHOER
MEZLE - AR BRZERMNEFTSHE R
PEEHITE TR EAERBHENZHEB
2 BRESCHMELBERAEHERAE EF B
BETRENMZROEENREBE —FFESK
P8 SR BUE & B 1S i3 B 058 3 fI M ESGIE &
MEFIHRE -
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RE HER

ERWE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Our ESG executive group has conducted a materiality assessment and
compiled a list of issues relating fo sustainable development of our
business and operations depending on the materiality and relevance
and analyzed and prioritized those issues. The following table illustrates
material issues covered by this report, which formed a basis for the

Group's ESG KPI management and disclosure.

ESG aspect
ESGH M

Environmental
B
Environmental
815

Social

e

Social

e

Social

y PN

P
Social

e
Social

e
Covernance
ER
Governance
&t
Governance

il

[==NAN
/R

The Group is dedicated in enhancing the interaction and exchanges
with external stakeholders, encourage them to engage more in
the communication on sustainable development of the Group and
share their recommendations and expectations for the Group. The
development of the sustainability strategy and vision are intended fo be
an iterative, ongoing process and we shall endeavor to provide future
reports with further strengthening of corporate social responsibility and
enhancement of environmental performance and resource efficiency
within operations.

Key Performance Issues

FREERE

Waste management and disposal

FE on B R A IR

Environmental concems and measures
HIRF AL MIE I

Sustainability of operating income
REW AR AN

Employee compensation and compliance
BETHEMEH

Managing operational risks

ERELER

Suppliers” capability and management
R h e R

Employees’ competency

BIge

Product quality and food safety
EmEENEMRTE

Food adulteration and extortion
RmBERMER

Operational compliance

BEAR
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Responses in the Report

HERENERE

We and the environment
HAPIERRE

We and the environment

AP ERIRIR

Commitment to product quality
HERE SN AR

Commitment fo our employees
HBHRMEE M A

Commitment o product quality and our supply chain
management
HEMEELRMNEREEN A
Our supply chain management
e e e

Commitment fo our employees
HBHRAME BB AGE

Commitment fo product quality
HEMEENAR

Commitment fo product quality
HERE SN AR

Commitment o product quality and our supply chain
management

HEMEERRFIHERN A

RE BB NI 58 BN AR FH M BB M AR -
SEMbMIEZ 2 BRI AREE A RFEERON
FUSFMMERANEENRENHE A
BBRNBENERIEITENS —BEREN #
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WE AND THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group is dedicated to protecting the environment and targeting at
being a good environmental steward.

In respect of environmental aspect, we have established three
objectives:

1. Full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations relating
fo environmental protection;

2. Reduce the impact of business on the environment; and

3. Reduce the use of natural resources.

Compliance status

During the Reporting Period, we have complied with all applicable
laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste, including, but not limited fo the following:

1. The Environmental Profection and Management Act (Chapter 94A
of Singaporel;

2. Environmental Quality (Industrial Effluent] Regulations 2009
[Malaysia); and

3. Environmental Quality (Sewage) Regulations 2009.

In 2019, we have not been subjected to any material claims or
pendlties in relation fo environmental profection.

The KPI in respect of emissions and use of resources are presented in
the subsequent section headed “Consumption and Emission Data”.

RIE HEREGRE

BMERE

AEBENRFRERREY BUAKBRFRF RE
ERBRZ-

BRREFE BRI T =FEEEZ:
. ZE2FAAAEREREMBENER LR
AR

2. RAIREHNRROTE R

3. RBALBRERWER-
BRI E
EREHE RAEKERTHARER RE

FRENCFKRLBOS B EEREE
B YRR R R A A R TRER
TR

1. RREFREERE (FINREPIEMAE)

2. Z“EENFREEEEE (TEEK) KM
(BERAE) : Rk
3. ZEZENFRREEERE O5K) KM

E-Z-NAF RMALREEXIEERRR
ERENERNRRAIEE-

SR B RN B R (5 P AE B MO B SR 4B S FR AR FEBE AR /)
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R HERELGRSE

Emission and conservation measures

The greenhouse gas ('GHG') emissions of our Group are mainly
generated from liquefied petroleum gas [“LPG") used in our production
and inventory process and the diesel consumed in the logistic operation
in Singapore and Malaysia. Our indirect GHG emissions are mainly
generated from the purchased electricity in our Singapore and
Malaysia operations.

We are dedicated in reducing the emission generated by our Group
and, accordingly, have established relevant policies and initiafives,
including:

1. Promoting the use of proper diesel for our truck team;

2. Sending our fruck team to periodic inspection and repairmen for
any emission issues;

3. Encouraging our driver to tumn off the frucks at prolong stoppage;

and

4.  Considering and planning the use of more environmental friendly
frucks model at next replacement.

Water consumption and waste management

The major water consumption of the Group is mainly for the production
processes in Singapore and Malaysia. A number of ESG inifiafives
have been taken by us, including:

1. We have esfablished controls and procedures to ensure our
water usage is within the reasonable range necessary for our
productions without overusing concems;

2. We mainloin a wastewater treatment plant at our production
facility in Johor, Malaysia where liquid waste is treated before it
is discharged; and

3. We have arranged the sludge used for our wastewater
freatment plant fo be processed to extract heavy metals out and
recycled for industrial use, or otherwise, disposed to a licensed
processor under the Ministry of Energy, Science, Technology
and Environment and Climate Change of Malaysia for further
processing, such as turning into fertilizer or other form of safe or
non-harmful disposable waste.
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The Board believes our practice and effort fulfils the standards set out
in the Environmental Protection and Management Act (Chapter 94A of
Singapore), Environmental Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulations 2009
[Malaysia) and Environmental Quality (Sewage) Regulations 2009.

Our other water consumption is related to office water consumption,
which is considered minimal in quantity. We have encouraged all
employees fo develop the habit of conserving water consciously. The
domestic sewage is discharged into the urban sewage pipe network.

In 2019, the Group did not face any problem in sourcing suitable
water, which is supplied by the government.

Non-hazardous waste management

The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group's business activities
are cartoon and plastic. Such wasfe is usually collected and partially
recycled. For damaged or confaminated carfon and plastic that cannot
be recycled, they are collected and processed by general waste
service providers.

Packaging material

We adopt standardised packaging materials for finished products.
It is widely acknowledged that the snack packaging is one of the
environmental concerns. To better control the consumption of packaging
materials, we have specific procurement procedure that allow us to
order and use packaging materials optimally to avoid over-ordering
and wastage.

Water

We often explore effective ways of saving water in each segment of
its operation such as fixing dripping faps and leakage immediately,
using brooms and mops frequently to clean the floor in all our working
and production premises, advocating the importance of saving water
among employees through posters and protocols.

Our Group will continue to look for ways fo reduce emissions and
natural resource impact from our operations. We aim fo continually
strive fo understond and assess our impact and confributions to all
environmental, social and governance issues.
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R HERELGRSE

Environmental and natural resources

We are aclive in promoting environmental awareness among our
employees through encouraging them of the fours principles of
“recycle”, "reuse”, “save water” and “save energy”.

We are dedicated to promote the principles by encouraging our
employees fo adopt the following “green” actions, among other
environmental measures mentioned above.

1. Minimise paper usage;
2. Reusing or recycling used paper;
3. Tuming off lights at offoffice hours and holidays; and

4.  Usage of lightemitting diode (LED) lighting in efforts to reduce
energy consumption.

OUR SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Food material supply is critical to our business and operations.

It is our policy to ensure we conduct business with legitimate suppliers
who maintain a good social and compliance standard. Accordingly,
we have adopted and maintained stringent procedures for the selection
and assessment of our suppliers in order to manage the potential
environmental and social risks that might arise in the course of business.

As ot 31 December 2019, our approved suppliers are located in
counfries such as the United States of America, the People's Republic of
China, Australia and Vietnam.

Supplier selection and continuous assessment

We conduct business with approved suppliers only after they have
passed our inifial assessment. To be admitted as our approved supplier,
one must fulfill @ number of social and compliance conditions, including
but not limited to:

1. satisfactory product quality by conducting sample material
evaluation:

2. compliance with food safety regulatory matters; and

3. relevant quality and food safety management system and
certifications.
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Our assessment is also conducted on on-going basis. Not only we
would perform inspection of the incoming materials on a transaction
basis, we also have a designated quality control team to perform
an annual assessment of our suppliers over their product quality and
responsiveness etc. These assessmenfs facilitate us fo understand and
monitor the suppliers’ compliance readiness against the standard of
product quality and food safety which is one of our ESG concems.

In the event when our suppliers are found or potentially perceived
to have significant deficiencies in relation fo producf qUO|it\/ and
safety, we would not hesitate in taking appropriate corrective actions,
including termination of services.

Examples of key measures adopted:

Product Quality

> =

RIE HEREGRE

AEBENFF A IEREHER FET-RANE
B TERRSNRHMRE YAARF—AKE
MEERHEGREASENHRERNEREDSE
MERENSTZETFRNME B ERIAE
FEHRMAEFLEEHRERTSERLDEMNTEM
RmZ2miRE  EHRAKESCHER 2 —-

IMREBERASEOHERRNEZRALEEER
NEEMEEMTEHBENERNRE NEEH
MENREGEE A B e - BREAR IR

AEBERRAEEREREM

Conduct material evaluation

EmEE B R sr G
*  Inspect and examine samples provided by suppliers by laboratory testing for microbiological and chemical, fransportation

and environmental fest and accelerated shelf life study.

e RAERERABHEDIRHNBERETRE BEMAEY L2 BERNRFIAALERSHINRHARE-

Food safety aspect
RmREAMHE

Compliance

a8

>

e Request for and research on efforts adopted by the suppliers on their food safety, production and delivery procedures and

assess if their quality and food safety management system are reliable and sufficient.
s EXRIMAERFRMZELEMEREFMENS ) FHEEENRRLE2EEBRARERAENMARH

Annual assessment

R

Evaluation

o -

*  Quality control department will perform an assessment on suppliers based on their product quality, ontime delivery,

response quality and price. The result of the assessment will then be discussed with executive Directors.

s HERHFKEREEREE MM ZREENERHHEERETHG ARATESTHHIMERET

BN

COMMITMENT TO PRODUCT QUALITY

We are committed to produce high quality snacks which are safe and
wholesome. Due fo the nature of business, our operation and products
are subjected to high product responsibilities, particularly over food
safety and advertising and labeling. On top of our standard hygiene
and safety measure, we manage our food safety concern through
quality control, packaging and product recall management.

HEMEENER

AEEARLEESEE R2NHEENTR M
REBHEE ARENELENERRBERRNE
mBE LERERMEZEMESARRRTHE -
ERFNEEFEMZ 2B £ RFEEE
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R HERELGRSE

Quality control management

In respect of food safety, we have been accredited with various
international quality management certifications for our production
facilities, including but not limited to Hazard Analysis and Critical
Control Points ["HACCP") and various International Organisation for
Standardisation (1SO”) 9001, I1SO 22000 and Food Safety System
Certification ("FSSC") 22000 certificates. All responsible personnel
in our operation department are required fo attend refresher training

EEEHER

ARREZE BANEERERE ZRERE
EEERARE BRETERREESMMESE
IREFIESIE (THACCP 1) AR BB EIBRZ £
# (11SO1)9001 +I1SO 22000 R EmMEZZ B R
R ([FSSC ) 2200038 & © 1 13& & ZRPIH) PR
BEREAGARBRMNBRRHZEGHHEEE
BHERRBEZEERRBE220000RELMNE

according fo our HACCP Quality Management system and requirement &35 3| <

on FSSC 22000.

AEBECRKRERRMHIERRINOBERBRZT
it THERFIARRAEENERMLBRE-
BFRROEAREEXHIEEEREENRR

We have implemented quality control throughout our production
process from raw materials to product delivery fo ensure our food safety
standards are met. The key quality control measures that we have taken
include, but not limited to:

Materials °

e

Suppliers” selection and assessment

R B BTG

®  Inspection before accepting incoming materials
BXEMRE

*  Sample examination on quality

EnEERE

Accepted materials are labelled and stored accordingly

BEXEME AR E F R E TR

®  Maferials are stacked and stored under firstinfirstout method
MR B IR BR ST ST K 7 R 1T IR

e Temperature of the sfore room is closely monitored

BEENRERETEER

Inventory o

EF

Production *  Qudlity sample testing and inspection on semifinished products are systematically
£E performed during the production process
EmEERANMERMBREELEBRED REIERT
®  laser sorters are deployed fo automatically defect and eject irregular items based on
colour, shape and size
KBRS ERIARE IR T B8R MR e RBIER
Delivery . All finished products are subject to a final comprehensive test prior to loading for
XA delivery
AR EREETRIMN ZAETRENZHRE
e Ensure delivery vehicles or containers are free from any substances that may taint the

packaged products
BREGTLANERR RIS SRABRIERNYE
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In 2019, we set a quality target for OEM customer complaint with less
than 0.08 parts per million (ppm). To achieve this, we implemented
two acfion plans, namely improving quality confrol on frying and
packaging process and calibrating sensitivity of sensor check. In 2019,
we actively aftended fo customer feedback and the fotal customer
complaints received was less than 0.08 ppm.

Packaging management

Our packaging material must also meet the following four criteria so as
to ensure the quality of our finished product:

* Moisture Barrier }
« B

* Oxygen Barrier

o [ U

« UV Transmittance

MBI Barrier

Protection
bk

RIE HEREGRE

R-ZF-NF BMAREEERR BOEME P
BRFXEXRAEN 2008 - REMBF BHME
W T MAETTENE 8 BN M AE AN B E B2 I
HEEH URREBRERENEHE-N =
F-NE BABGE2ETERPRE KANE
BEPRHFERERAED 20.08 -

BRER

7 18 10 5 W TR 9 2 DA TR PR A
REMRGHEE

* Moisture Barrier
« B g
* Oxygen Barrier

o b U

Permeability
BB

Sealing
Strength

o)

« Estimation on the
ratio of COF while
in motion

o BHI) b AR B L R il Rt

Product recall management

We have also established relevant product recall procedures that
enable us fo respond to recall incidents in a timely and orderly manner
by our designated recall coordinator. Our key measures include
informing relevant parties such as our customers and general public
on a fimely basis, tracing the affected products through our labelling
system, inspecting the affected products and destroying and disposing
them by appropriate means.

* Mechanical strength
of the seal to ensure
no leakage and
packaging integrity
o B R R
R A HEEAN
IEfEm%E

EmAOER

AEENTCEY THENERBLRRF BF8
REEFMEREEALHBARNAEDIER M
HENER AR B NERT  flmAR
SEEENAR EAKENEHRRTERR
TENEM REXFENEMLRABAENS
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R HERELGRSE

Advertising and labelling

We are constantly engaged in marketing and branding of our products
through various advertising platforms including in-store displays, social
media, outdoor sampling and events sponsorship. It is our policy
fo advertise our products and brands in a foir manner and without
misleading information.

As for our labelling activities, we require our customers to provide us
with all necessary information pertaining to packaging and labelling
with respect fo local requirements within the stipulated territory.

Privacy protection

We are responsible for protecting our customers’ privacy in the
collection, processing and use of their personal dato. We are in
compliance with the applicable data protection regulations and we
ensure appropriate fechnical measures are in place to protect personal
data from any unauthorized use or access. We also ensure that
cusfomers' personal data is stored securely and processed only for the
purpose for which it has been collected.

Compliance status

During the Reporting Period, we have complied with all applicable
laws and regulations in relation fo product liabilities, advertfising and
labelling and privacy matters. In 2019, we have not been subjected
fo any material product recall, liabilities claims or failed regulatory
inspection in relafion to our product quality.

COMMITMENT TO OUR EMPLOYEES

We strive to provide our employees with a harmonious and safe
working environment, and development platform.

As at 31
(2018:218) employees in our Singapore and Malaysia operations,

December 2019, we have employed a fotal of 256

of whom around 47% are local employees and 53% are foreign
employees with valid working visa.

There are 90 new joiners and 42 leavers during the year and the
staff turnover mostly came from our Malaysia operation department
(production line and warehouse support].
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IRIR - HEREGRE

Our employment structures by function, age, gender and region are set  F 181 8 TR B IR AL - F &0 - 1 B K 3t i3 51
out below: LIRS

Employees by Function
B (BiEEE )

m Directors and management
EEhehEERE

m Office and administration staff
WMRRITIRAE

= Technical staff (e.g. R&D)
BiTAE (BNE)

Production staff
HEANB

Employees by Age Employees by Gender Employees by Region
BE (GF&Rdln) EBE (Z4ERIBD) EE GxibigElsn)

m Age 18-35 u Age 36-55 Age 56 or above Male m Female Malaysia = Singapore
18E3553% 36555 56 IA L F hegi HRAE g
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R HERELGRSE

Employment and remuneration

We acknowledge that our work force is one of our valuable assets.

We have established a comprehensive Human Resources Management
System and Procedure to defermine, under the assessment of our
Direcfors, the optimal size of sfaff force that fits our business operation.
Our Human Resource Department is responsible for the hiring process,
which is transparent and fair. We generally enter into a standard
form of employment contract with our employees, which contain
confidentiality clauses and standard covenants.

We endeavor fo provide competfitive remuneration package and
various benefits to attract and retain talents. Our employees are
remunerated according to their job scope, responsibilities, and
performance and enfitled to discrefionary performance bonus. We
also offer other form of employee benefits such as medical insurance
coverage and different kinds of compensated leave for matters of
marriage, maternity, paternity, childcare and compassionate events.

Equal opportunity

We are committed fo building and maintaining o fair workplace
and valuing equal opportunity and diversity, throughout all stages of
employment, including in the remuneration, recruitment, fraining and
promotion of staff.

Our employee will not be treated in less favorable terms or
discriminated against on grounds of gender, sexual orientation,
disability, marital status, materiality, race, religion, age, nationality or
ethnic origin. Our employees are hired, appointed, promoted and
remunerated on a fair scale and in accordance 1o objective measures
such as their qualifications, experiences, hardships, competencies and
confributions.

Labour standards

We fully adopt and adhere to the human rights framework that creates
an environment where human rights issues can be openly discussed.
We are committed to do the right thing and we encourage our workers
to engage in candid and respectful dialogue to explore feasible
solutions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Our foreign workers in Singapore and Malaysia are typically employed
on a twoyear or three-year basis respectively, depending on the
period of their work permits, and subject to renewal based on their
performance, and are remunerated fairly according fo their work skills
and standard of the laws. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
all our foreign workers have obtained valid work permits. Our Human
Resources Department is responsible for monitoring the validity of work
permifs of our foreign employees.

Our Group prohibits the use of child labour and forced labour. Our
recruitment process requires us fo inspect the identity documents and
conduct inferviews with the applicants. We sfrictly comply with the
Prevention of Human Trafficking Act 2014 and Anti-Trafficking in
Persons and Anti-Smuggling of Migrants Act 2007

Compliance status

During the Reporting Period, we have been in compliance with the
laws and regulations in Singapore and Malaysia relevant to the
Labour Standards such as relating fo compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare, including, but not
limited to:

1. The Employment Act [Chapter 91 of Singapore);

2. The Employment of Foreign Manpower Act (Chopter Q1A of
Singapore);

3. The Cenfral Provident Fund Act [Chapter 36 of Singapore);
4. The Employment Act 1955 (Malaysial;

5. The Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 (Malaysia); and

6. The Employment (Restriction) Act 1968 (Malaysial.
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R HERELGRSE

Development and training

The Group encourages and supports our Directors and staff to receive
internal and external training fo promote operational compliance and
sustainable development of the staff and the Group.

QOur new employees are required fo participate in orientation fraining
before the start of their work and undergo onffhef]ob training.
Generally, the training areas are related fo their work scope and
duties of their respective department. The typical training topics involve
personal hygiene, food hygiene and safety, and employee illness and
communicable disease. In addition, our employees’ training needs are
identified through yearly staff performance appraisal, technological
changes or any major changes introduced to the management system,
equipment or changes in our product offering.

All our directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have attended fraining fo reinforce their knowledge and skills as a
Direcfor, and knowledge on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules, other applicable statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment fo facilitate them fo discharge their responsibilities.

Occupational health and safety

Our employees’ safety and health is one of our main concerns, and we
emphasize on matters related to work safety and health.

We have implemented procedures and guidelines in relation to {i)
personal hygiene; (ii] work instructions in handling our machines and
safety gadgets required such as safety shoes and hand gloves; and
(iii) handling of employees’ illness and communicable disease. We
also carry out regular mainfenance on our machines and equipment
fo ensure that they are thoroughly fested and safe for use. We also
maintain work injury compensation policies, group personal accident
and foreign worker medical insurance for our workers.

Compliance status

During the Reporting Period, we have been in compliance with the laws
and regulations in Singapore and Malaysia relating fo occupational
health and safety, including, but not limited to Occupational Safety and
Health Act 1994. In 2019, we did not encounter any incidents and
accidents that led to serious work injury or fatalities, and we did not
receive any material staff claims in relation to work sofef\/ and health.
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COMMITMENT TO ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

Anti-corruption

It is our policy fo maintain a reputation for honesty, faimess, respect,
responsibility, infegrity and frust. We maintain a strict anfi-corruption
policy, including but not limited fo the following key codes.

1. We prohibit all forms of bribes, kickbacks or other similar

remuneration;

2. Employees are not allowed offer or accept gifts and benefits in
the course of their employment; and

3. Conlflict of inferest must be avoided or reported to our Direcfors
on a fimely and complete basis.

Anti-money laundering

From anfi-money laundering perspective, it is our policy not fo accept
any cash receipt or payment, or any fransfers from unknown or
suspicious third parties, or transfers without legitimate business relation
and purpose.

Reporting and monitoring

We encourage our stakeholders, including our employees, customers
and suppliers fo report any suspicious or confirmed cases relafing
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. Our employees
are encouraged fo report fo their department head or, in a more
independent manner, fo our Human Resources Department.

Our employees and external stakeholders, such as customers and
suppliers are also welcomed to inform us of any unusual or unlawful
activities through email: info@taisun.com.sg or by writing to our
Company Secretary, who shall first review and clear the cases,
keep the records, gather further information and escalate to the
Board or Audit Committee or senior management depending on the
independence, complexity and significance of the matters.

Comepliance status

During the Reporting Period, we have been in compliance with the
laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. In 2019, we did not encounter any anti-corruption
incidents, reporting, enforcements and/or legal proceedings against
our Group, Directors and employees.
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GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY )l

The Group is committed fo giving back to the community and maintains ~ ANEE BN B84 & - W Bt &R EFHE BB
close communication and interaction with the community fo contibute ~ B &) - Aft R ML E R -
to community development.

In 2019, we actively contribute and support the community by RIZZE—AF HMBRAMEMNESHIBRR
donating to local charitable organizations. In 2019, the Group has Mt EEREBREREZF RZE—LF &
made charitable donations of approximately S$89,000 (2018: HEEI{EHZEZBIEAI89,0008 ML (ZF— N
approximately $$26,000). & - #926,000%T N T ) o

ENVIRONMENTAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS RIZBAREMIEFRER
TABLE

Emission Type Indicator 2019
E2 3¢ ki) BE —B-hEF
Greenhouse gas” Direct emissions — Scope 17 [tonnes CO,) 3,536
= R e BB R (B —EAiR)
Indirect emissions — — Scope 2* (fonnes CO,) 1,586
B P p— B 24 (W — &b k)
Indirect emissions — — Scope 3% (tonnes CO,)) 274
P — S E 3 (W — &1L k)
Exhaust gos Sulphur Dioxide (SOx) — kg 247
RS SLFI(SOX) —F =
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) — kg 54,554
SALRINOK —F =
Particulate Matter (PM) - kg 175
ERYIPM) —F =
Maijor resource consumed Unit Amount Intensity’
TEEREHE B HEER BE
Water — processing m?® @3,379 1,528.3
K—pRIg M 5K
Electricity — processing kWh 1,806,581 30,549.6
B-RE T LB
Diesel liter 773,500 12,659.6
Sem #
Fuel liter 42,825 700.9
KR 7t
Paper kg 1,001,383 16,389.2
i T
Packaging materials — plastic Kg 117,000 1,914.9
BEMB -2 T
Packaging materials — paper Kg 202,000 3,306.1
BEMB & T
Paper boxes Kg /96,408 13,034.5
MAE T
Wirapping plastic tap Kg Q71,715 15,903.7
BEBRIKEH T
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Note:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Intensity is calculated by the total amount of consumption divided
by the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 of
approximately S$61. Tmillion.

GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent
and are based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol:
A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPls”
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Maijor source of Scope 1 emission came from usage of diesel.

Major source of Scope 2 emission came from usage of purchased
electricity.

Maijor source of Scope 3 emission came from processing fresh water and
sewage by government departments.

Our operation does not generate hazardous waste.

Maijor wasfes are non-hazardous municipal wasfe and was disposed
at govemnment authorised sites via licensed contractor. All wasfe water
are non-hazardous water and undergo qualified waste treatment units
before being discharged to authorised channel for further handling by
government.
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Report Content Index Index

wEABES %5

A1 Emission

Al BErk 4

General Information on: We and the environment

Disclosure BREERMEZERESN m/KE TS - EENE HMHERE
— = EEEVNEESH:

(a)  the policies; and

BE: R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating fo air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges info water and
land, and generation of hazardous and nonhazardous
waste.

EFHHT A EAYEOERER RGN ER -

Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Environment KPI Table
BERUTE B8 AR R HE B - REHAREBURER
Al.2 Creenhouse gas emissions in fofal (in fonnes) and, where Environment KPI Table
appropriate, intensity
MERBABENE (B M) R (WER)®HE - REBRENIEER
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Not applicable — We do not produce hazardous
appropriate, intensity waste.

FRELEEEEDRE (B )R (WER)EE- NER-BPLBEELREEY

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in fonnes) and, where  Non-hazardous waste and management
appropriate, intensity
ELAEEEZWEE (B )R (MER)EE- BERZEYMER
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results We and the environment
achieved.
AR BE L 2 B0 FE i S P AS B R e it HPIERIRIR
Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous waste are We and the environment

handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
EEREAEENEEEEVNS L REELSENEELAE RMHEIRE
SR A et o
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Report Content Index

BERABRSI

A2 Use of Resources

A2 BIRFE

General
Disclosure

— R E

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

ERARERER (BEETR KR EAM R E) BEK -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total
and intensity.

BRRESNERER SREERERERETE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BIEKERTE -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

REIR(E R et st ) R AT IS A R ey it -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

SKEUE R/KIR £ R B ERIRE R - ARG Ks8I &
PSR R A H 3 -

Total packaging material used for finished products and with
reference fo per unit produced.

HRmIABEMBNEERBEEEM(SE-

A3 The Environment and Nature Resource

A3 BRERRXRER

General
Disclosure

—RIWE

A3.1

Policies on minimizing the issuer's significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

WEZETAHRERAAERERERZENHEK -

Description of the significant impact of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
XGEHHIRERRAAERNERFEREERNERAR
R 2R TR HR A o

RIE HEREGRE

Index

%3l

We and the environment

HAFIERIR IR

Environment KPI Table
IRIBEBEBEBIEER

Environment KPI Table

RIBARESUEERER
Environment KPI Table
IRIBBEBURIER

Water consumption and waste management

FKEMEEYEIR

Environment KPI Table

RIBMBABUIERER

Environment and natural resources
RIENAAEIR

Environment and natural resources

RERRAER
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Report Content Index Index
BERNBRSI =]
B1 Employment
B1 {&1&
General Information on: Commitment fo our employees
Disclosure B8 : BT ANEE B TR
—MRIKER
(a)  the policies; and
126 )3
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
BTHETABEATZENEER RPN ER
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and  Commitment to our employees

geographical region.

RIER - BERL FhERNRREA DN ES AR AT AR B B T r&eE

B2 Health and Safety

B2 REHRZZE

General Information on: Occupational health and safety
Disclosure BEREZE2TIERERRERERCEBEMEEEN: BERERZE

— R

(a)  the policies; and

BR &

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relafing to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

BTHETABEARENRRERRADINER

B3 Development and Training

B3 & K&

Ceneral Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Development and fraining
Disclosure  discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
—RIWE ERRTEERT TIERENAMB L RENEE - FlE BHRERMEFI
et o
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Report Content Index Index
BEARRSI E]

B4 Labour Standard
B4 & T %8|

General Information on: Labour standards
Disclosure B REB7 1FZE T aioa$45 TH) 45 TR
— R

[a)  the policies; and

BE R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relafing o
preventing child labour and forced labour.

BTHRTABERFENRRERRAPINER -

B4.1 Describe measures fo review recruitment practices fo avoid Labour standards
child labour and forced labour.
EH RSB HI A HE M AR S B T N 5R I 85 T ey - & T AR

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminafe such practfices when Labour standards
discovered.

EHRERBARBRZEBRMRROFEOHE R ST AR

B5 Supply Chain Management
BSH B E IR

Ceneral Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the Our supply chain management
Disclosure  supply chain.

—RHE EEHEBRNRREIEEREMBER- AEBEHHEREE
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Report Content Index Index
BEABRRSI =]

Bé Product Liabilities
B6 EmER

Ceneral Information on: Commitment to product quality
Disclosure  BEAFTRHEEMRMBENRERLZE FE BRRLLE HEMEENARE
— R E EEARERIIEN:

(a)  the policies; and

BE: R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating fo products and services provided and methods
of redress.

MFUHITAE BARENIEMERRROINER -

B7 Anti-Corruption

B7RES

General Information on: Commitment fo ethics and integrity
Disclosure B RAPT LEBARE - $1R - BFF RO R EN B 5B 1B e wBUAE A

—MRIXER

(a)  the policies; and

126 )3

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BTHEITABERTENHREZERAGINER -

B8 Community Investment

B8 EHRE

Ceneral Policies on community engagement fo understand the needs ~ Giving back fo the community
Disclosure  of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure ifs
activities fake into consideration of the communities” interests.
— MR ER FRALMEBE2ERTREEMEMETENRREELE DELE
EEEERMENSABE -
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To the Shareholders of TS WONDERS HOLDING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TS Wonders
Holding Limited [the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (herein referred
to as the “Group”) sef out on pages 102 to 212, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
nofes fo the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") issued by International Accounting
Standards Board ("IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Audifing ["ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Audifor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants {"IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI &

TS WONDERS HOLDING LIMITED& 3R
(RESHEZMA BB R A])

REMBHRREBLRSE

=R

BMEEZHREIO2EE2128 2TS Wonders
Holding Llimited (&2 F]) REME QA (K&
BAEIBEEE ) ZRAMBHRE E/ERZ
—NFTZA=ZT—BZ2EEUBRAREREE
ZALFEZFEEaAEMZERER KRE
BRnEBPHRERGEEHEERER UREEVBR
=M BRERSHBERE-

BARG BHEEMBEBRREREBR S E
AZEe ((EResEREEE])EM K
MHEHRSER (BERMBERSENDEEMA
Fikg EEER _FT-NAF+-_A=t+—H
A M BEIRAAREREZ A LFENEE M
BRR SFEExmZYHREERSRE YEE
RABRARPINREZRZ SRR -

RRHER

BPIREEBRERER (TBEREEL ) ET
BR-EZFENT RANEEERMORS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI TR

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

RREFEXEER

RERMANEXZHE BREZFHEA/ERMARE
BRAFENGEAMBHRRTREENER LM
EEZEAMBERRBER I ERE R KRR
HEERAMTERLFEREFERER -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
REELSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMEBKTNERS E

Valuation of properties (Notes 14 and 16)
YEME (HE14R16)

The Group has freehold land and buildings in Malaysia
of approximately S$6.8 million and a leasehold building
in Singapore of approximately $$6.9 million as at 31
December 2019. These land and buildings which are used
for its own production are measured using the revaluation
model after initial recognition.
RZE-NAF+A=+—H EXERERALH
BRKARE L RBF L0688 &I IT KR IR
BAMEEBTROOAEI MK T ZERARBITEEN
T RBF R R E R EMERGE -

The Group also owns an investment property in Malaysia
with carrying amount of S$1.3 million as at 31 December
2019. This investment property is measured using fair value
model.

RZZB-NAF+_A=+—H BEEETREXRES
BE-—REEER SASMINETHNREYE -ZRE
METIERRATEREAE-

The above properties, constituted 23.4% of the Group's total
assets as at 31 December 2019, representing significant
assefs on the consolidated statement of financial position.
LamEE EEER - NFT+_A=T—HEE
BEN23.4% REAMBRARANEERE -

As part of our audit, we performed the following procedures,
among others:

REZBIEDT RMETUTERF (EHERE) :

e  assessed the Group's process of appointment and
the ferms of engagement of the Valuers entered info
fo determine whether there were any matters that
might have affected the Valuers’ objectivity or placed
limitations in the scope of their work.

e M EREMGHEMNZETBERMFITINZER
R AEBEREFHEEMAIEFEMEMTERILSK
RS TFHEMIMEHIHEIE-

e assessed the independence, qualification and
competence of the Valuers.

o FHEMERN 2B B R

e discussed with the Valuers to understand the valuation
techniques and key esfimates used in valuing the
properties and the market evidence used by the Valuers
fo support their assumptions.

e HEEBEMAWATHREEMYZFVRETHE
BEMANEETERIEAFURAIFTERER
PTRB™ 588 -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI &

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREXER BEMEERTHNEETE

Valuation of properties (Notes 14 and 16)

YIRAEE (EE14%16)

Management has engaged external independent valuers | ®  evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation

[the “Valuers") to perform the fair value assessment as at 31
December 2019

ERECZEINGBLAERM ([EEM] )R
+ZA=+—BHETAFENE-

—NEF

The valuation of properties is considered a key audit matter
as it requires management to exercise judgement and
estimates fo determine the valuation method and the key
estimates which includes price per square feet of market
comparables to be used. These valuations are highly
sensifive to changes in market and economic facfors.
MEBERESEREZFTE DAREFTEEREFD
Hi R ABEREDNERI 2GR (BERBOE
FHRALBTHE) ZEFHEHTELEBERRE
=R

techniques used by the Valuers for each of the asset
and evaluated the key estimates applied in the
defermination of fair value by benchmarking and
challenging the key assumptions used in the valuation
by reference to externally published industry data and
comparable property fransactions, where available.
We also considered whether these key estimates are
consistent with the prevailing market conditions.

e BBZ2ENHNBMZITEBELRABLEWER
Z(ME) FHEEMRSBEEEMRGERE
MEE TR Y RERGEMAEZ2RRA
HRAREEAFENTEMEFT RATEREZFH
REEEHEBATHR -

Based on our procedures, we noted that the valuation
methodologies adopted are appropriate, and the key
assumptions used in the valuations to be within a reasonable
range of our expecfations.

ERBRPANREF HAAMBEMRANGETEBEE B
HEMAERRRERMEANSERER-

We also checked the adequacy and appropriateness of the
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.

BT EEFREMEREMERBEN RO EREE T -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI TR

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Company's annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statfements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other informafion and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing fo report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors of the Company (the
“directors”) and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRS and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary fo enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability fo continue as a going
concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters relafed to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either infends to liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but o do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion solely fo you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed ferms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always defect a material misstatement when it exisfs. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

() Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

(b)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI &

RBMRERGEMBRRARENE
(52

BN BERESRBOENZEGRAEEETNS
REVBRRERME T2 F AR RGFHER
MEHRMEAFRRA L FEHFARMERD
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SR EREEMB N - SIBEEE S E R
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RIRBEEREMFAEMNE AR - $5 5R PR
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BRATAZEERERBEFEAMBRERMFELOL
PORTE By - RIRAR A E A B AR R -

EREERERTERETENNBRES  RIFE
REEAE REBFREEEE - I

(a) &85 M AP Al B IO R RF Sk 85 BR 1T B BUR & B
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TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2010 ¥ 99



Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI TR

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the
going concemn basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
fo events or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the
Croup's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
affenfion in our audifor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
fo cease fo continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, sfructure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. VWe are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and fiming of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
defermine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public inferest benefits of such communication.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Ms. Tay Hwee Ling.

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

30 March 2020

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEBEEREMBEWER
For the year ended 31 December 2019  HEZZE—hF+-A=T—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note S$ S$
B 5 ¥ h03% T g
Revenue & 6 61,058,604 58,581,851
Cost of sales $HE AR (45,586,465) (44,262,918
Gross profit EF 15,472,139 14,318,933
Other income E A A 7a 171,878 149,624
Other gains and losses Hmiam REE 7b (64,47 4) 139,315
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HEAX (3,151,317) (2,579,718
Administrative expenses THHAX (7,377,449) (5,246,815)
Listing expenses WX 10 (785,196) (2,912,780
Finance costs Bl & A 7R 8 (182,757) (153,653)
Profit before taxation BR B4 AT % 4,082,824 3,714,906
Income fax expense FrisfiAx Q (1,174,453) (1,577,912)
Profit for the year FRER 10 2,908,371 2,136,994
Other comprehensive income Hth 2 W &
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to &% A 5 B HT 7 44 =
profit or loss: BamhyEE -
Exchange differences on translation of BMEGINETBEER
foreign operation PE W =58 (32,944) (16,601)
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently FE1& 15T & E #7172
fo profit or loss: BamhyEE -
Revaluation of property, plant and BEEYE BB MRE
equipment, net of tax MR FHIE 28 115,644 432,528
Other comprehensive income for the year & A H {th 2 T W & 82,700 415,927
Total profit and other comprehensive FRmANREMLSEKE
income for the year e 2,991,071 2,552,921
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREFRBERR
(S$ cents) (F 5 ) 13 0.29 0.27

See accompanying nofes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2019

FEMBRRR
R=F-NF+=A=+—R

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note S$ S$
B 5 1 038 T N T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BREREE 14 19,769,323 17,974,631
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 1,175,915 =
Invesiment property BREME 16 1,283,880 1,451,120
Deposit RN 19 194,390 S
22,423,508 19,425,751
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 12,426,169 10,234,921
Trade receivables =Y e 18 12,377,622 10,851,673
Other receivables, deposits and B EIE e &
prepayments B IR 19 607,875 1,284,544
Amounts due from shareholders JE U A% R FRTE 20a - 173,374
Derivative financial instruments PTEeERmT A 21 2,502 51,237
Bank balances and cash WITHBR LIRS 22 16,310,340 4,025,006
41,724,508 26,620,755
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables H 5 M E MRS FRR 23 6,515,860 5,227,444
Amount due fo a related party &N — & R H 5 508 20b 6,432 =
Derivative financial instruments TEeRmT A 21 69,215 61,985
lease liabilities HERE 24 190,772 -
Obligations under finance leases BhE T E AR 24 - 13,765
Bank and other borrowings RIT R E M IERR 25 447,756 4,083,125
Income tax payable eSS R 1F 75 1,017,706 885,780
8,247,741 10,272,099
Net current assets REBEETFE 33,476,767 16,348,656
Total assets less current liabilities WEERABAS 55,900,275 35,774,407
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HEUBRAR

As at 31 December 2019

R-ZE—NF+=-_A=+—8H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)\F
Note S$ S$
e ¥ N3 oo s T
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAR 24 1,121,528 -
Obligations under finance leases & T E e 24 = 2,551
Bank and other borrowings IRITREMERK 25 2,302,739 875,429
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEA F 26 892,121 1,053,683
4,316,388 1,031,663
Net assets EEFE 51,583,887 33,842,744
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital &% AR 27 1,725,820 2
Share premium PAn g 8 13,487,471 -
Other reserve H b EE (332,000) (332,000
Merger reserve B ERE 299,994 290,994
Revaluation reserve EHFHE 28 11,768,958 11,653,314
Translation reserve VE 5 (1,607,447) (1,574,503)
Accumulated profits -l 26,241,091 23,795,037
51,583,887 33,842,744

FIE2I2EZHFAVBRERCNR T _TF
ZRA=tHEEFSHERKENZ X H T

The consolidated financial sfatements on pages 102 o 212 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30

March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: BEERREE:
Lim Seow Yen Lim Fung Yee
R/ 3 MEF
Director Director
EF EF

B FLAR B B 5 Mk BE P BT E o

See accompanying nofes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEREHR
For the year ended 31 December 2019  #HZEZZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

Share Share Other Merger ~ Revaluafion  Translation  Accumulated
capifal premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RE  ROEE  AHREE SRR ERRE  EXRE  RIEA @t
8§ s$ s $§ ) 8§ 8§ s
MmET MR BT BT FmEn FRT Bt B
[Note] (Note 28)
GE) (M3x28)
At T January 2018 R=B-N§-A-H 300,000 S S - 11,220,786 (1,557,902) 21,658,943 31,621,827
Profit for the year FRRH = = = - - - 2136994 2,136,994
Other comprehensive income for the year R fi1 2 M % S - - - 432528 [16,601) - 415927
Profit ond tofal comprehensive income A& R 2E
for the year gt = = = - 432528 [16,601) 2,136,994 2552921
Transactions with owners, recognised R EAZXKS BF
directly in equity: REZAER
Avising from group restructuring (Note 2] FEEIZEEE
(Ft352) = - (332,000) = = = - (332,000)
Issue of shares pursuant fo BEERETRA
the reorganisation (Noles 2, 27) (Ms2-27) 2 - - 209,994 - - - 299 994
Elimination of share capital pursuant fo - REEBE HRA
reorganisation (Note 2 GEZ) (300,000) = = = = = = [300,000)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N%
+ZA=t+-H 2 = [332,000) 209994 11,653,314 (1,574,503) 23795937 33,842,744
Adjusiment on adoption of IFRS 16 FAERM KRS
(Note 3) EBE16% 7 A%
(WizE3) - - = = - = (115,589 (115,589
At T January 2019 R=B-N§-A-H 2 - (332,000] 299,994 11,653,314 (1,574,503) 23,680,348 33,727,155
Profit for the year ERET - - - = = - 2,908,371 2,908,371
Other comprehensive income for the year & R 12 M5 - - - - 115,644 (32,944 - 82,700
Profit and total comprehensive income  FREFIR 2 EMEHDE
for the year = = = = 115,644 (32,944) 2,908,371 2,991,071
Transactions with owners, recognised R EAZXS
directly in equity: ERRBRAER:
Issue of shares under the share offer  RERMHEEETRR
(Note 27) (M327) 345,164 16,913,042 S S S S - 17,258,206
Issue of shares under the copifalisafion ~ RIEE AL 1T
issue (Note 27) B0 (BE27) 1,380,654 (1,380,054) - = = = = =
Share issue expenses RiABITAE - (2,044917) - - - - - [2,044,917)
Dividends declared (Note 12) BEERRE (HE12) - - = - - - (347.628) (347,628
At 31 December 2019 R=%- jlff—
+=R= 1,725,820 13,487,471 [332,000) 209994 11768958  (1,607,447) 26,241,091 51,583,887

Note: Other reserve represents the combined effect upon completion of share  Fffs: HFEEEEREEEHEN—F 5  METIFR

transfer of TZF* and TSF* to TSS* by two individual shareholders of TZF TSFBY RN ZF— \F WA MTSS* %
and TSF in April 2018 as part of Group Reorganisation (defails of which TZF* RISF* R B HE 8 BN T
are sef out in Note 2). 20

* As defined in Note 2. * EE R -

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. R A MRS mARBEM M
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019  HEZZE—hF+-A=T—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —\F
S$ S$
¥ h03% T g
Operating activities RETH
Profit before taxation B B R O& A 4,082,824 3,714,906
Ad|justments for: AR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB REREITE 1,695,030 1,645,704
Depreciation of rightof-use assets EREEENE 199,081 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  MFE R EEE
plant and equipment - 2,700
Finance costs B & A 7R 182,757 153,653
Interest income R B WA (64,272) (20,497
Fair value loss (gain) on derivative financial MTEEBMTEMNATE
instruments BB (W) 116,665 (10,380)
Fair value loss on invesiment property BREMENRTFEER 165,452 =
Net unrealised foreign exchange gain REIRHNE W 25 B (134,522) (107,479)
Operating cash flows before movement in BEECEIHLERERE
working capital 6,243,015 5,378,607
Movements in working capital: EEEHE:
(Increase) Decrease in inventories FE (3%m) s (2,162,9217) 1,186,364
Increase in trade receivables 2 5 FE W IR N (1,520,113) (1,867,291)
Increase in other receivables, Hib el gE ke &
deposits and prepayments FE S FRIEE AN (8,639) (85,265)
Settlement of derivative financial instruments EETESRIT A (60,700) 9,150
Increase (Decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 K& H th 5 FUIE
& Crd) 1,294,392 477 ,.694)
Increase (Decrease) in amounts due to BT — 2 B ES: 5 IR
a related party B Gl 6,465 (17,805)
Cash generated from operations KEELRS 3,791,503 4,126,066
Income taxes paid, net of refunds BEATER HBRR (1,021,424) (1,444,777
Net cash from operating activities RETBBESERE 2,770,079 2,681,289
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

o \%iﬁﬁ:ﬁi

BHE_ZT-NFT+ZA=1T—HLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
S$ S$
¥ 038 T TN T
Investing activities REED
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE B&ELKRE (3,502,679) (209,073)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BB RRE
plant and equipment P15 IR = 854
Repayment of advances by related parties RARE T (B R B = 194,679
Repayment from (advances to) shareholders AR ERE R (MR ) 173,374 (173,374)
Interest received B B 64,272 20,497
Placement of fixed deposits FATEBRER (10,039,800) -
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHFRAEESEE (13,304,833) (866,417)
Financing activities BEED
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings IRIT R E M EFRATBFRIE 2,000,000 3,878,015
Repayment of lease liabilities EBRHEARE (270,169) =
Repayment of obligations under finance leases EEREHEEAE - (16,541)
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERITRHEAMMER (4,208,059) (343,600
Inferest paid BB (107,142) (153,653)
Dividend paid BRI E (347,628) =
Repayment fo shareholders BEIESE N - (4,704,535)
Advances from shareholders & TN = 1,008,600
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRD TSR 17,258,206 -
Issue cost paid BT EITR A (1,553,864) (491,053)
Payment arising from group restructuring HEBESHESENNRK - (332,000)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities MEFEMES (A REFE 12,771,344 (1,154,773)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RekReSEYILINFE 2,236,590 660,099
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on SNEZENHIFHEINER S ER L
the balance of cash held in foreign currencies we 8,944 21,512
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUReRREEEY
of the year 4,025,006 3,343,395
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRESRRESEEY 6,270,540 4,025,006

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

GENERAL

TS Wonders Holding Llimited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and registered
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the Companies
law, Cap. 22 (law 3 of 1961, as combined and revised) of
the Cayman lIslands on 19 April 2018. The Company was
registered with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as
a nonHong Kong company under Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance [the “Companies Ordinance”] (Chapter 622 of the
Llaws of Hong Kong) on 23 May 2018 and the principal place
of business in Hong Kong is Room 901, 9th Floor, Prosperity
Tower, No. 39 Queen's Road Central, Cenfral, Hong Kong. lts
registered office and principal place of business are located at
PO Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and 255 Pandan loop, Singapore
128433, respectively. The shares of the Company have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 14 January 2019
(the “Listing Date”).

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the production,
packaging and refailing of food products. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 36 fo the consolidated
financial statements. Its parent and ultimate holding company is
SWIL Limited ("SWL") a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. lts ultimate controlling shareholders are Mr. Lim Fung Yee
("Mr. Winston Lim"), Mr. Llim Fung Chor ("Mr. lawrence Lim"),
Ms. Lim Seow Yen (“Ms. Sandy Lim"), Mdm. Han Yew lang
(“Mdm. Han"), Mr. Lloo Soon Hock James (“Mr. James Loo”) and
Ms. Ong liow Wah ("Ms. Jillian Ong”), all of them are family

members (collectively known as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Singapore
Dollars ["S$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements are approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company on 30 March 2020.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Prior to the group reorganisation ("Group Reorganisation”)
scheme, Tai Sun Llim Kee Food Industries {M) Sdn. Bhd. (“TSF")
and Treatz Food Sdn. Bhd. ("TZF") were held directly by Tai Sun
(Lim Kee] Food Industries Pte. Ltd. (“TSS"), Mr. Winston Lim and
Mr. lawrence lim of 64.4%, 17.8% and 17.8%, respectively
whereas TSS was beneficially owned by the Controlling

Shareholders.

On 23 April 2018, each of Mr. Winston Lim and Mr. Lawrence
Lim transferred all of their shares in TZF to TSS for a cash
consideration of RM89,000 and RM89,000 respectively.
Upon completion of the share transfer, TZF became a direct

wholly-owned subsidiary of TSS.

On 24 April 2018, each of Mr. Winston Llim and Mr. lawrence
Lim fransferred all of their shares in TSF to TSS for a cash
consideration of RM409,000 and RM409,000 respectively.
Upon completion of the share transfer, TSF became a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of TSS.

Tai Sun Holding Limited (“TSH"] was incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability on 3 May 2018. On 10 May 2018, one share
in TSH was allotted and issued to the Company, credited as fully
paid. Upon completion of the share subscription, TSH is directly
wholly-owned by the Company.

On 18 December 2018, the Controlling Shareholders transferred
all his/her shares to TSH at the consideration of S$6, which was
seffled by the Company allotting and issuing 900 new shares, all
credited as fully paid, to SWL at the directions from Controlling
Shareholders. Upon completion of transfer, TSS became an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Pursuant fo the Group Reorganisation defailed above, TSS and
its subsidiaries were confrolled by the Controlling Shareholders.
As part of the Group Reorganisation, the Company and its
subsidiaries ("Group”) has been under the common confrol of
the Controlling Shareholders and is regarded as a continuing
entity. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared to include the financial stafements of the
companies now comprising the Group as the group sfructure
upon the completion of the Group Reorganisation had been in
existence throughout the year, or since their respective dates of
incorporation or establishment where this is a shorter period.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

New and amended International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) that are effective for the current year

Impact of inifial application of IFRS 16 leases

In the current year, the Group applied IFRS 16 leases and the
related consequential amendments to other IFRS Standards that
are effective for an annual period that begins on or after 1

January 2019.

IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect
to lease accounting. It introduces significant changes to lessee
accounting by removing the distinction between operating and
finance lease and requiring the recognition of a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability af commencement for all leases,
except for shortterm leases and leases of low value assefs when
such recognition exemptions are adopted. In contrast to lessee
accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting have remained
largely unchanged. Details of these new requirements are
described in Note 4 below. The impact of the adoption of IFRS
16 on the Group's consolidated financial statements is described
below.

The date of initial opphcoﬁon of IFRS 16 for the Group is 1
January 2019.

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the cumulative cafch-up
approach which:

e requires the Group to recognise the cumulative effect
of initially applying IFRS 16 as an adjustment fo the
opening balance of retained eamings at the date of initial
application; and

o does not permit restatement of comparatives, which
confinue to be presented under Infernational Accounting
Standards (“IAS") 17 leases and International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") 4 Defermining
Whether an Arrangement Contains a lease.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

(Continued)

New and amended International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) that are effective for the current year
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impact of the new definition of a lease

The Group has made use of the practical expedient
available on transition o IFRS 16 not fo reassess whether a
confract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition
of a lease in accordance with IAS 17 will continue to
be applied to those leases entered or changed before 1
January 2019

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to the
concept of confrol. IFRS 16 determines whether a contract
contains a lease on the basis of whether the customer
has the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of fime in exchange for consideration. This is in
confrast fo the focus on 'risks and rewards’ in IAS 17 and

IFRIC 4.

The Group applies the definition of a lease and related
guidance sef out in IFRS 16 to all lease contracts entered
info or modified on or affer 1 January 2019 (whether it is a
lessor or a lessee in the lease contract). The new definition
in IFRS 16 does not significantly change the scope of
contracts that meet the definition of a lease for the group.

Impact on Lessee Accounting
Former operating leases

IFRS 16 changes how the Group accounts for leases
previously classified as operating leases under I1AS 17,
which were off-balance sheet.
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3 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

(Continued)

New and amended International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) that are effective for the current year

(Continued)

(b)

Impact on Lessee Accounting (Continued)
Former operating leases (Continued)

On initial application of IFRS 16, for all leases (except as
nofed below], the Group:

a)  Recognises rightof-use assets and lease liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position,
initially measured at the present value of the future
lease payments as if the Standard had been applied
since the commencement dafe but using incremental
borrowing rate at date of initial application;

b Recognises depreciation of rightof-use assefs and
interest on lease liabilities in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss; and

c)  Separates the fotal amount of cash paid into a
principal portion (presented within financing activities)
and inferest (presented within financing activities) in
the consolidated cash flow statement.

lease incentives [e.g. rentfree period) are recognised
as part of the measurement of the rightofuse assets and
lease liabilities whereas under IAS 17 they resulted in the
recognition of a lease liability incentive, amortised as a
reduction of rental expenses on a straightline basis.

Under IFRS 16, rightof-use assets are tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS 3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

New and amended International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) that are effective for the current year
(Continued)

(b)

Impact on Lessee Accounting (Continued)
Former operating leases (Continued)

For shortterm leases (lease term of 12 months or less),
the Group has opted to recognise a lease expense on a
straightHine basis as permitied by IFRS 16. This expense
is presented within “Administrative expenses” line item in
profit or loss.

The Group has used the following practical expedients
when applying the cumulative cafch-up approach fo leases
previously classified as operating leases applying IAS 17.

e The Group has applied a single discount rate
fo a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics.

®  The Group has excluded initial direct costs from the
measurement of the rightof-use asset at the date of
initial application.

e The Group has used hindsight when determining
the lease term when the contract contains options to
extend or ferminate the lease.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

PRANHTR] R AR ET 2 R o)

MRAEAFEEEM 2T REIETER
Eﬁjﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ (BB TSR
all) @

b) HABEASHEENTE m@m)
HIAE & E (&)

HREHHEE (HEH A2 A A
™) AKBECEEBEERY B HREE
ARV AT E AR EER
Mo WRAXNBRERE [TTHRAX] A
BEAZ7 -

AEEERBRNEMAEELHE
REREERE /7 REELAKER
ENHERDERATAIITRES -

e AREHAFSEMBCEEMN
HEHARRAE—AE-

s AKERBRERBHC KV
MEEKABEREEESE

o 5B -

e ERANBEERIUKILEEED
EER AEBARR ZARE
HEH-

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2019 F3k 113



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2019

3 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS 3
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(Continued)

New and amended International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) that are effective for the current year
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impact on Lessee Accounting (Continued)
Former finance leases

For leases that were classified as finance leases applying
IAS 17, the carrying amount of the leased assets and
obligations under finance leases measured applying I1AS
17 immediately before the date of initial application
is reclassified to rightofuse assets and lease liabilities
respectively without any adjustments, except in cases
where the Group has elected to apply the low-value lease
recognition exemption.

The rightof-use asset and the lease liability are accounted
for applying IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019

Impact on Lessor Accounting

IFRS 16 does not change substantially how a lessor
accounts for leases. Under IFRS 16, a lessor continues to
classify leases as either finance leases or operating leases
and account for those two types of leases differently.

However, IFRS 16 has changed and expanded the
disclosures required, in partficular regarding how a lessor
manages the risks arising from its residual interest in leased
assets.

Financial impact of initial application of IFRS 16

The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate applied to the lease liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position on
2019 is 5.3% per annum.

1 January

The following fable shows the operating lease commitments
disclosed applying IAS 17 at 31 December 2018,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rafe at the date
of initial application and the lease liabilities recognised
in the stafement of financial position af the date of initial
application.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS 3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

New and amended International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) that are effective for the current year
(Continued)

(d)

Financial impact of initial application of IFRS 16 (Continued)
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In the current year, the Group has applied a number of
amendments to IFRS Standards and Interprefations issued by
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on or after 1 January 2019. Their adoption has not had
any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts
reported in these financial statements.
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3 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS 3

(Continued)

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet
effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statemenets, the
Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that
have been issued but are not vet effective, which are relevant to

the Group:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts!

Amendments to IFRS 3

Definition of a Business?

Amendments to IFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets
IAS 28 between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of material*

and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IAS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform#

Conceptual Framework Amendments to References fo
the Conceptual Framework

in IFRS Standards*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

period beginning on or affer
determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards
listed above will have a material impact on the financial
statements of the Group in future periods.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the applicable
disclosures required by the Companies Ordinances.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis and in accordance with the following
accounting policies which conform to IFRS Standards except for
cerfain buildings and land, investment property and financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amount or fair values af
the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation fechnique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the assef or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics info account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in the financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for sharebased payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments,
leasing fransactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLCIES (confinved) 4

Basis of accounting (Continved)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree fo which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in ifs entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Llevel 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assef or

liability.
The principal accounting policies adopted are sef out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and company controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when a

company:
®  has power over the investee;
e is exposed, or has rights, to variable refurns from its

involvement with the investee; and

®  has the ability fo use its power fo affect ifs returns.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
confrol over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated sfatement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the company gains control
until the date when the company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group's accounting policies.

All infra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Merger accounting for business combination involving
entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the dafe when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assefs of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of acquirer’s inferest in the net fair value of
acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s inferest.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE
31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+-_A=+—H

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLCIES (confinved) 4

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination involving entfities
under common control (Continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses, as appropriate, from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is
a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue from the production, packaging
and sale of goods. Revenue is recognised to depict the fransfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration fo which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Group
uses a S-step approach fo revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.
e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.
e Step 3: Determine the fransaction price.

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the confract.

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue when [or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

A performance obligation represents goods [or a bundle of
goods) that is disfinct or a series of distinct services that are
substantially the same.

Confrol is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is mef:

e the cusfomer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs; or

e the Group's performance creafes and enhances an assef
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alfernative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
cusfomer obtains control of the distinct service.

A confract asset represents the Group's right fo consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has fransferred to
a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. A receivable represents
the Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of fime is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Confinued

Specifically, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at a point in fime
the control of the goods has fransferred, i.e. when the goods
have been delivered to customers.

Leases (Before 1 January 2019)

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straightline basis over the ferm of the relevant lease unless
another systematic basis is more presentative of the time pattern
in which use benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished.
Initial direct cosfs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the
same basis as the lease income.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, af the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statements of financial position as an obligation under finance
lease. lease payments are apportioned between finance cosfs
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of inferest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
costs are charged directly to profit or loss.

Operatfing lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straightline basis over the lease ferm, except where another
systfematic basis is more representative of the fime pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)
Leases (After 1 January 2019)

Definition of a lease

A confract is, or confains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
fo control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or affer the date of
iniial application, the Group assesses whether a confract is
or confains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16
at inception or modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as lessor

leases for which the group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease fransfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership fo the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straightline basis over the ferm of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straightline basis over the lease ferm.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or confains a lease,
af inception of the contract. The Group recognises a rightofuse
asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for shortterm
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straightline basis over the ferm of the lease unless another
sysfematic basis is more representative of the fime patfern in
which economic benefits from the leased assefs are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily defermined, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate specific fo the lessee.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLCIES (confinved)

Leases (After 1 January 2019) (Continved)

The Group as lessee (Continved)

lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise:

e fixed lease payments [including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives;

e  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initiolly measured using the index or rate af the
commencement dafe;

e the amount expected fo be payable by the lessee under
residual volue guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain fo exercise the opfions; and

®  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the
lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated sfatement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount fo reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount o
reflect the lease payments made.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Leases (After 1 January 2019) (Continved)

The Group as lessee (Continved)

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a significant
event, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate;

e the lease payments change due to changes in an index
or rafe or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating interest rafe, in
which case a revised discount rate is used); or

®  qa lease contract is modified and the lease modification
is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rafe at the effective
date of the modification.

The rightofuse assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and
any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019

4
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (After 1 January 2019) (Continved)

The Group as lessee (Continved)

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for cosfs to dismantle
and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located
or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the
ferms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and
measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a
rightof-use asset, the cosfs are included in the related rightof-use
asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Rightof-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease
fransfers ownership of the underlying asset, the related rightof-use
asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.
The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The rightofuse assefs are presented as a separate line in the
consolidated sfatement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to defermine whether a rightofuse
asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss
as described in the ‘Property, plant and equipment’ policy.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are
not included in the measurement of the lease liability and the
rightofuse asset. The related payments are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that friggers
those payments occurs and are included in the line “Adminisfrative
expenses” in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Foreign currency transactions and translation

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are
measured and presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates |its functional currency).
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
consolidated statement of financial position and equity of the
Company are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency
for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual entities,
fransactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
are recorded af the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing af the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are refranslated at the rafes prevailing on the date
when the fair value was defermined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the setflement of monetary
items, and on retranslation of monetary items are included in
profit or loss for the periods. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary itfems carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the periods except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetfary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency transactions and translation (Continved)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
expressed in Singapore dollars using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense items
lincluding comparatives) are franslated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates af the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in a separate component of equity under the header of franslafion

reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Croup's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, loss of joint confrol over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operation
affributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to gef ready for their
infended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended

use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
affaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related cosfs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statements of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments made to Central Provident Fund (“CPF") and Employees
Provident Fund ("EPF"), being defined contribution benefits, are
recognised as expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Shortterm employee benefits

Shortterm employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All shortterm employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
[such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave] after
deduction of any amount already paid.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tox.

The fax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “Profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using fax rates {and
tax laws| that have been enacted or substantively enacted in
countries where the Company and subsidiaries operate by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred fax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assefs are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assefs and liabilities are nof
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that offects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed af the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
seftled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover
or sefile the carrying amount of ifs assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for investment
properfies that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutfed.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over fime, rather than through sales.
The Group has not rebutted the presumption that the carrying
amount of the invesiment properties will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or
income in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

For purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the rightof-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are atiributable fo the rightofuse assefs or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
afiributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
Income taxes requirements to right-of-use assefs and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
of the relevant rightof-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition exemption.
Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision fo the
carrying amounts of right-of-use assefs and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition exemption
are recognised on the date of remeasurement or modification.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position af their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be defermined using fair values
at the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land
and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation reserve, except fo the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited
fo profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such
land and buildings is charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the property revaluation
reserve relating fo a previous revaluation of that asset.

Asset in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet defermined,
are carried af cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
cosfs capifalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
assefs, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

The payments of leasehold building and leasehold land are
separate. leasehold building is fully paid while interest in
leasehold land is paid over its lease term and presented
as "rightofuse assefs” [upon application of IFRS 16) in the
consolidated statement of financial position or “operating lease

commitment” (before application of IFRS 16).

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Except for freehold land, depreciation is charged so as to
write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straightline method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
fo arise from the confinued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or refirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is defermined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or refirement
of a revalued property, the affributable revaluation surplus
remaining in the properties revaluation reserve is transferred
directly to accumulated profits. No transfer is made from the
revaluation reserve to accumulated profits except when an asset
is derecognised.

Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and
for capital appreciation (including property under construction),
is measured initially at its cost, including fransaction costs.
Subsequent fo inifial recognition, investment property is measured
at fair value. All of the Group's property inferests held under
operafing leases to earn renfals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment property
and are measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment property under
consfruction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment property under construction.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment property (Continued)

An investment properly is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
periods in which the property is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and nef realisable
value. Cost comprises raw material and where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories fo their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the firstinfirstout method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs
of completion and cosfs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the management of the
Croup reviews the carrying amounts of its fangible assefs fo
defermine whether there is any indication that those assefs have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to defermine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating-units, or otherwise they are allocated fo the
smallest group of cash-generating-units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Impairment of tangible assets (Continved)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair values less cosfs fo
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a
pretax discount rafe that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset [or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit] is reduced
fo its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
impairment loss is freated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required o settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required fo sefile the present obligation at the
end of each reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to seffle the present
obligation, ifs carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
Group's statement of financial position when the Group becomes
a party fo the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured ot
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assefs and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")} are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
aftributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assefs are
recognised and derecognised on a frade dafe basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame esfablished by
regulation or convention in the markefplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their
enfirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order fo collect
contractual cash flows; and

the confractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dafes to cash flows that are solely payments of
principo\ and interest on the principo\ amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income ("FVTOCI"):

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets; and

the confractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dafes to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS

@ (including trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due

from related parties, bank balance and cash) are subsequently

measured at amortised costs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant periods.

For financial instruments, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) excluding expected credit losses (“ECL"), through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument
on inifial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount af which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.
On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any
loss allowance.

Inferest income is recognised using the effective inferest method
for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost and
at FVTOCI. For financial instruments, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assefs that have
subsequently become creditimpaired. For financial assefs that
have subsequently become credit impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods,
the credit risk on the creditimpaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer creditimpaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate fo the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Inferest income is recognised in profit or loss using the effective
interest method and is included in the “Other income” line item.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets af FVTPL are measured at fair value af the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss fo the extent they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “Other gains and losses”
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in

Note 31.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assefs that are denominated
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rafe af the end of each reporting period.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, and financial assets
measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, the exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
"Other gains and losses” line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets under ECL model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9@ (including
frade receivables, other receivables and deposits, amounts due
from shareholders, bank balances and cash). The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date fo reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —hE+=-A=+—8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)

Impairment of financial assets under ECL model (Coninued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.

12-month ECL ("1

lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are

In confrast, 2m ECL") represents the portion of

possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experiences,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the curent
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for frade receivables
and measures the lifetime ECL for portfolios of trade receivables
that share similar economic risk characteristics. The ECL on those
financial assets are estimated using an analysis of assefs by risk
level of customers and apply a probability weighted estimate
of the credit losses within the relevant risk type. The probobi\if\/
weighted estimate of the credit losses is determined based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions af the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as af the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group's debtors operate,
obtained from financial analysts and governmental bodies, as
well as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group's core
operations namely the production, packaging and retailing of
food products.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significanily since
initial recognition:

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected fo cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulafory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)

Significant increase in credif risk (Continved)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is defermined fo have low
credit risk af the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default (i.e. no
default history), ii] the borrower has a strong capacity fo meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriafe to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituing an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as hisforical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

e information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking info
account any collaterals held by the Group).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Definition of default (Continved)

Irespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than Q0
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Creditimpaired financial assets

Financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more events that
have a defrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial assef
is creditimpaired includes observable data about the following
events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
or

. a breach of confract, such as a default or past due event;
or

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted fo the borrower a concessionls) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has enfered
info bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of frade receivables,
when the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject o
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking info account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —hE+=-A=+—8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forwardHooking information. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting dafe.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects fo receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
defermined at initial recognition.

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for
cases where evidence of significant increases in credit risk at the
individual instrument level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, and amounts
due from shareholders are each assessed as a separate

group);
° Past-due status:
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characterisics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment fo
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights fo the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification of financial liabilities or equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arangements
entered info and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity insfrument is any contract that evidences a residual
inferest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

liability is held for trading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near ferm; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages fogether and
has a recent actual pattern of shortterm profittaking; or

® it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any
gains or losses arising on changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated
hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss incorporates any inferest paid on the financial liabilities and
is included in the “Other gains and losses” line ifem. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 31.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination, 2] heldfortrading, or 3)
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured af amortised
cost using the effective inferest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant periods. The effective inferest rafe is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective inferest rafe, transaction cosfs and
other premiums or discounts] through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency
and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting
period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the instruments. These foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in the “Other gains
and losses” line item in profit or loss for financial liabilities that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship. For financial
liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange
component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is
recognised in profif or loss for financial liabilities that are not part
of a designated hedging relationship.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognised as
a liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank
deposits that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group's management is required to make judgements,
esfimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following is the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
twelve months.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  (Contined)

Revaluation of leasehold/freehold buildings and
freehold land (Note 14) and fair value of investment
property (Note 16)

The Group's leasehold/freehold buildings and freehold land are
measured at revaluation value whereas the investment property
is measured at fair value. The valuation was defermined by the
management of the Group by reference to valuation performed
by an independent professional valuer. The valuation involves
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustment. In
relying on the valuation report of the independent professional
valuer, the management has exercised its judgement and is

5
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(B¥=E16)

AEENEE KAEREFTROKAER
THIREMREEFE MREVEIER
FEFE-RENHAKREEEES2E %
BUBXRMEMZGHEET HESRKE
TABEGARERGEEAR -EEEER
BEVEXHEMNGEERSFELAER
RERBBYEROMRIEL - EREETTER
REREAERRER 2T TR EM

satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the market PO UAREBZENEZ A TEEK
conditions prevailing at respective valuation dates after taking info T

consideration the state of the relevant properties. Any changes in
the market conditions will affect the fair value of these properties
of the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate carrying amount
of leasehold/freehold buildings and freehold land are
S$13,747,362 (2018: S$11,81
amount of investment property is S$1,283,880 (2018
S$1,451,120).

2,961), whereas the carrying

RZE-NAFE+_A=+—H HE/
KAEBETRKAEE T WAKREE
B13,747 3628 ML (—ZF— N\ F:
11,812,961 L) - MIBREMERE
B/R1,283,880% KT (ZT—/\5:

1,451 1208 hR3g T ) °
Allowance for inventories (Note 17) FERE (ME17)
The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an REBERBEHEFEAERFEMEZTMH
assessment of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances HREFEEIELREB - WBEEETEHHBERNE
are applied fo inventories where events or changes in 2 BRAE2RFEERFEXS BEnt

circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower than

TFEEL A -5 E%%ﬁ‘b%%’lﬂiz‘ﬁ&ﬁﬁ

the cost of inventories. The identification of obsolefe inventories FEMRRA KRS A - Wt hiFEH A # ]
requires the use of judgement and estimates on the conditions FERERD  HARTFERER Ej(ﬁ’:%ﬁ
and usefulness of the inventories. In cases where the net WAS A HE R % B B BRI N B T HERR
realisable value of inventories assessed are less than expected,

a material recognition of allowance for invenfories may arise,

which would be recognised in profit or loss in the periods in

which such recognition takes place.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of inventories —NWEFE+ZA=+—8 -FEEKM@

are $$12,426,169 (2018: $S$10,234,921).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  (Continved)

Allowance for doubtful debts of trade receivables (Note

18)

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using
an analysis of assets by risk level of customers based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the confract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects fo receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward due to changes
in facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of trade
receivables are $$12,377,622 (2018: S$10,851,673).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received and
receivable from the sales of food products, which can largely be
grouped under nufs and chips, also represents the revenue from
confracts with customers.

Information is reported fo the executive directors of the Company,
which are also the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM”)
of the Group, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the types
of products sold and in respect of the “Nuts” and “Chips”
operations. In current year, the CODM starts fo review the
profits by type of product sold instead of overall results of the
Group as a whole as compared fo prior years. Accordingly, the
comparative figure is disclosed with segment result. No operafing
segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reporfable
segments of the Group.

FEMBImRME
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (confinved) 6

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under IFRS 8 are

Wk oIBER @

BEEms REEBRUBRS

as follows: KEBB 2RO BT -
il Nuts, M BR
i)  Chips, i =R
liii)  Others. lii)  HAbe

Others mainly include items such as disposable towels which are

normally sold together with the nuts and chips products to food

=R F 85

HiETB2ERMAMRRRABARHER
REERFEMFAR —HHEN—RKEE

and beverages companies. MEYm -
Segment revenue and results DEHMERES

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

UTRZAREDHBE D ZARERE R

by reportable segment: @MW
Revenue Net profit
g #F

2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hAF —F-N\F ZB-NF —FT-NF
S$ S$ S$ S$
303 T T 03 T T
Nuts 2R 46,966,438 45,449 831 11,776,815 10,808,515
Chips 2K 11,651,116 10,735,841 2,994,081 2,953,256
Others Hih 2,441,050 2,396,179 701,243 557,162
61,058,604 58,581,851 15,472,139 14,318,933
Other income HamA 171,878 149,624
Other gains and losses Hofth oo B 48 (64,474 139,315
Selling and distribution expenses  $H& &2 $H A X (3,151,317)  (2,579,718)
Administrative expenses THAX (7,377,449) (5,246,815)
Listing expenses EHRAX (785,196) (2,912,780
Finance costs Bh& B AR (182,757) (153,653
Profit before taxation bR B A4 A 4,082,824 3,714,906
Income tax expense PSR 2 (1,174,453) (1,577,912
Profit for the year F N5 F 2,908,371 2,136,994
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The Group derives its revenue from sales of Nuts, Chips and
Others where all performance obligations for sales of goods
are at a point in fime. During the year, all the contracts for sales
of goods to external customers are shortterm, and the contract
prices are agreed based on factors such as volume per unit
price.

The accounting policies are the same as Group's accounting
policies described in Note 4. Segment profit represents the
profit earned by each segment without allocation of centralised
other income, other gains and losses, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses, listing expenses, finance costs
and income tfax expense. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of

segment performance.

Segment assets and liabilities

No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is presented
as they are not regularly provided to the CODM of the Group.

Other segment information

31 December 2019

6

FEMBRRMEE
—E-AFT=A=1-A

W=k oIBER @
DEW R R EE @
AEBNRGZRAHEERRE EF NEHM
MEEERNMERYETHENRNERE —
BHET - RERN MIFEFHEHEERH
AN AR BEANEBRENZERA
= (WEEEB)HE-

SRR AN AR AR B H S SR
[R] 5 8B4 F 48 & 2 2EBREX B9 )8 A1 - I &
P HEMBA i RaEMER HER
DHAX THRAX tHRX MEER
KFFSHFAX - i Ty E IR D B R0 2RI
AERAEREERRERE ZFAESTA -

THEERAER

MR EERRAEEEEQERRER
HABEEXD BRENS N HiL I 82
SIBBA -

Hftt 2 HEH

2019 2018
—B-NEF —E-N\F
S$ S$
03 T AN T
Depreciation of property, plant and M BB R R KR

equipment and rightof-use assets: EREEENE:
Nuts 225 S 1,223,878 1,066,595
Chips Eh 303,611 251,944
Others Hity 63,610 56,232
Unallocated Aok 303,012 270,933
1,894,111 1,645,704
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31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continvedy 6 W EE I 70 ZR E ¥t 0

Geographical information i & & F
The Group principally operates in Singapore and Malaysia, AEBMEFERIMERERAR (BRF
which are the place of domicile of respective group entfities. SEERNREM)CEEK - KBINEE
Revenue from external customer is based on the geographical PHRam T ER KR E PR HIEALE - A&
location of the end-customers. The Group's non-current assets are B ) I BN B EE AL AT AN I S SR P ge
located in Singapore and Malaysia.
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
S$ S$
03 7T ¥ N T
Revenue by geographical location of RIZHE P IR B 85 MU
the end-customers:
- Singapore — N 36,495,611 34,452,732
- Malaysia — 5 R 15,184,101 14,397,645
— The People's Republic of China —HhEARKENEA (REEE)
[including Hong Kong) 5,416,606 5,088,182
— Others —HAh 3,962,286 4,643,292
61,058,604 58,581,851
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
S$ s$
#hn3g 7T ¥ N T
Non-current assets: FERBEE
- Singapore — ¥ 9,371,661 8,646,979
- Malaysia — 5 R 13,051,847 10,778,772
22,423,508 19,425,751
Information about major customers FEEFEH
The revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of BE_ZT-NFERZZE-NF+ZA
fotal revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 December =+—BIEFE - KEEAMEAERBEK R
2019 and 2018 are as follows: B10%HEFE M ERINT
2019 2018
—B-NEF —ZT-N\F
$$ s$
N3 7T N3 T
Customer A BEA 15,667,348 15,348,347
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31 December 2019

FEMBRRMEE
—E-AFT=A=1-A

7a OTHER INCOME 7a HWA
2019 2018
—E-hEF TN\
S$ S$
¥ 03 T oo
Government grants* B 48 8L * 25,046 36,428
Inferest income FIEWA 64,272 20,497
Rental income EaUA 71,475 80,629
Others Hib 11,085 12,070
171,878 149,624

The government grants received mainly comprise of the Wage

Credit Scheme ("WCS") and the Special Employment Credit
["SEC"), all of them are compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support fo the Group with no future related costs.

* B UER BT 4 Bl 2 B R 0 F 4 Bh T 8
(TnsrwRhar 81)) RAFHIBL AR ([45F
ABEREA]) HABRKHOELEMNMAXH
EFEXEERTASENRREED (&
RAAARIRLA)

7b OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7b HfttWzm R &S
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-)N\F
S$ S$
b3 7T N T
loss on disposal of property, HEWE BB RRED
plant and equipment kil - (2,700)
Foreign exchange gain, net BE 3 o R 217,643 131,635
Fair value loss on investment property BEMEN QT EEE
(Note 16) (F3E16) (165,452) -
Fair value {loss) gain on derivative TESRmIAENAFE
financial instruments (E18) e (116,665) 10,380
(64,47 4) 139,315
8  FINANCE COSTS 8 RBERE
2019 2018
ZEB-hF —ZT-N\F
S$ S$
03 7T T
Inferest on: AT SRR E
— Bank loans —iRTTER 104,212 150,415
— lease liabilities —HEaE 78,545 -
— Obligations under finance leases — BB E A E - 3,238
182,757 153,653
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2019

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

—F-AFT=A=+-8

? FBBAX

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
S$ S$
03 7T ¥ N T
Tax expense comprises: BRI X BHE:
Current income tax B BR P 1S 50
Current year KEEZ 1,469,981 1,472,980
Over provision in prior year BEFEBRRE (242,634) =
1,227,347 1,472,980
Withholding tax B 2,771 =
Deferred tax (Note 26) RIERIA (HI7E26)
Current year KEE (125,462) 28,118
Under provision in prior year BEFEREBETR 85,725 78,634
Effect of revaluations of assets BEMBEENTBTE
for taxation purposes (15,928) (1,820)
(55,665) 104,932
1,174,453 1,577,912

Singapore Corporate Income Tax [“CIT") is calculated at 17% of
the estimated assessable profit and the subsidiaries in Singapore
further eligible for CIT rebate of 25% of the tax payable, capped
at $S$15,000 for Year of Assessment ("YoA") 2020, and CIT
rebate of 20% capped at S$10,000 for YoA 2019, determined

based on financial year end date of the group of companies.

In Malaysia, the standard corporate tax rate is 24% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2019. For YoA 2019, the
tax rate for resident small and medium-sized companies is 17%
(reduced from 18% effective from YoA2019) on the first MYR
500,000 with the balance being taxed at 24%.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9 Fﬁ ﬁﬁﬁi(ﬁ)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FRAMEHRAXEGEE AR REMEEK
profit before taxation per the consolidated statements of profit or mRMRTADE N BRI T

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2019 2018
ZE-NF —ZE-)N\F
S$ S$
¥ h03% T N T
Profit before taxation i 754 A 4,082,824 3,714,906
Tax at applicable tax rate of 17% R17%8E AT XRTENHRIE 694,080 631,534
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries EHEAM R RS ED
operating in other jurisdiction MBRARTRAREXNTE 225,449 79,740
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR HBA SR 2E
for tax purpose 513,048 Q37,442
Tax effect of income not taxable DANTRBANT IS &
for tax purpose (10,319) (19,9906)
Tax effect of tax exemption under CIT EEPEHIE T LR R B
37 (55,588) (35,925)
Effect of tax concessions RUCB & (41,303) (151,4306)
(Over) Under provision in prior year BEFE (BREEH) BETR (156,909) 78,634
Effect of revaluations of assets for EHEENBRGEZE
faxation purposes (15,928) (1,820)
Withholding tax TRHH 2,771 =
Others H b 19,152 59,739
1,174,453 1,577,912
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31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

10 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10 FREA
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting: FRaF TN (FFA) U TR IERER:
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-N\F
S$ S$
¥ hn3% T N T
Depreciation of property, ME - WERRETE
plant and equipment
Recognised as cost of sales R AHEEM AR 1,425,594 1,374,771
Recognised as administrative expenses FERRITHFX 269,436 270,933
1,695,030 1,645,704
Annual audit fees: FEZEER:
— Paid to auditors of the Company — X FARREZEED 202,000 160,000
— Paid to other auditors — S F E A EAD 14,000 23,517
Audit fees in connection with the listing of EHAARRR ETHZEER
the Company (Note a) (Ff7¥a) - 415,000
Non-audit fees: IFZHER:
— Paid to auditors of the Company (Note a)  — 32 F AR Al EkAD (Fi3Ea) - 83,000
- Paid to other auditors — X FH Az ERRD 15,600 -
Listing expenses (Note al EWAX (KiEa) 785,196 2,912,780
Directors’ remuneration (Note 11) FEEHM (HE1T) 3,147,964 1,787,360
Other staff costs Hih B TR
— Salaries and other benéefits e kEMET 5,854,784 5,065,634
— Contributions to CPF and EPF —HRAEENEEAESHER 478,405 432,558
Total staff costs @8 T A 9,481,153 7,285,552
Inventories recognised as cost of sales MRAHEERAZFE 38,249,623 37,527,944
Gross rental income from investment property 2 & ¥ 3 81 & W A 8 58 (71,475) (72,560)
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10 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)

Amount recognised in profit or loss relating to leases

(Disclosure required by IFRS 16)

Depreciation expense on rightof-use assets
Inferest expense on lease liabilities
Expense relating to shortterm leases

FEMBImRME

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

10 FRERN @

RESZEANEINEERRANE
(RIEBER M BREERNE I OFETHR

%)
2019
—B-NF
S$
#h03R T
EREEENTERX 199,081
BEMERAX 75,614
REES A BRX 25,164

The total cash outflow for leases amount to $$295,333.

(Disclosure required by IAS 17)

Payment recognised as an expense during the year:

Minimum lease payments under operating leases

HER SR H AT 205, 3335 IR TT

(RIEER S EAFE 1 7SRETHORE)

2018
—E-N\F
$$
T
FRERRBFA MR
ZHERTREBENK 334,602

Note:

a) In 2018, included in the listing expenses are audit and non-audit
fees of S$415,000 and S$83,000 paid to auditor of the
Company respectively, and other assurance fees of $$365,000

paid to other auditor of the Group.

HiE

a RIZE-NF HALTHRXNERS
AABXNTARARAAZBEBOEREER
415,000%7 pi4% 7T K 3E 4% B & 83,0005
I3 7T A Be S A T 7 S ) Lt A BB A
b 28 3 & F365,000%1 i3 T
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31 December 2019

11

—E-hF+ZA=+—H

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

Mr. Llawrence Lim, Mr. Winston Llim and Ms. Sandy Lim were
appointed as directors of the Company on 19 April 2018
and they are redesignated as executive directors on 5 July
2018 whilst Mr. Lim Seng Chye was appointed on 5 July
2018. Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and Mr. Chew Keat
Yeow were appointed as independent non-executive directors
of the Company on 20 December 2018. Mr. Zhang Junli
was appointed as executive director of the Company on 27
September 2019.

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company
lincluding emoluments for services as employee/directors of the
group entities now comprising the Group prior to becoming the
directors of the Company) by entities comprising the Group are
as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2019

11

EEMWE RIES M

Ex#e

MABEEE MITFRERMNHRLZEIN
E-N\FOATNAEZEREARFES
BRER-_T-N\FLALBRAETANTE
= MHEMEER_T—N\FLARA
BZERARBNTET RRXFTEE - F
BREEERBAEREER -_T—N\F+=
AT REZERARRBUIFNTES-
REBEEN _T-NFNAA-_TLHE
RER/ARBNITES-

AEBBETEESIREMNTARRESR
NEMN (BIERAEBREETNTEE TR
EBE /" EZEENKARNARESFARERSE
P R EB) T -
BE-E-NWEF+=-A=+—HLEFE

Contributions

Discretionary ~ Salaries and ~ to refirement
Fees bonus allowances  benefit scheme Total
BARER
ne FETEA HeR2E BEE @t
s$ S$ s$ S$ S$
i Ib T T g Eiyi b
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Llawrence Lim MEEELE = 511,779 432,325 14,560 958,664
Mr. Winston Lim MEFEE - 511,779 432,325 10,080 954,184
Ms. Sandy Lim WL = 511,779 416,725 10,080 938,584
Mr. lim Seng Chye WS A - 111,640 64,388 19,329 195,357
Mr. Zhang Junli REREE - - 10,446 - 10,446

Independent Non-Executive BYFHITES

Directors

Mr. Chan Ka Yu BREXFLAE - = 30,243 = 30,243
Mr. lee Yan Fai TEREBLE - - 30,243 - 30,243
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow AR A - - 30,243 - 30,243
- 1,646,977 1,446,938 54,049 3,147,964
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31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

11 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' 11 EEML REEHFM =
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) EEME w
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE_Z—)\F+_A=+—8HLHFE
Contributions
Discrefionary ~ Salaries and fo refirement
Fees bonus allowances  benefit scheme Total
ERAER
we BIETEAT a2 BELESA &t
s$ s$ s$ S$ S$

T T gL T T

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Llawrence Lim WHELE - 130,236 432919 13,260 576,415
Mr. Winsfon Lim WEFEE - 130,236 438,870 10,140 579,246
Ms. Sandy Lim ML - 130,236 382,043 9180 521,459
M. lim Seng Chye AR LA - 18,900 76,764 14,576 110,240

Independent Non-Executive BYFHITES

Directors

Mr. Chan Ka Yu RRFEE = = - - -

M. lee Yan Fai FRERE - - - - -

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow FEREE = = - - -
> 409,608 1,330,596 47156 1,787,360

No chief executive had been appointed during the year ended RBE_Z-NF+A=+—RHLEE

31 December 2019. VEEERSITHRAE -

Discretionary bonus was determined by reference to the duties BBREANKE2ZRBALIRAEENRE

and responsibilities of the relevant individual within the Group BERBEURRRBINRIRZET o -t Bl

and the Group's performance. The emoluments stated above AR RERERAESEETEMREIEE

were for their services in connection with their roles as directors EREERGEAREHENRS -

of group entities in connection with the management affairs of the

Group.

No other retirement benefits were paid to directors of the BERARFERTZEBFEAR R SHEN

Company in respect of their respective services in connection with BARNEKERIRHEH RS MRS

the management of the affairs of the Company or ifs subsidiaries AR IRAE T

undertaking.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their ERAIBTEECMETERRERAR

services in connection with the management of the affairs of the SEEBRHEERB ZME -

Group.
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31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

11 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' 11 BEEMERESEHFM w
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) BEEME @
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown EXATBILFATEETME I REF
above were for their services as directors of the Company. YERZAN R R E FATIR M 69 AR 7 1 2 1< A9 B
Lo
Employees’ remuneration 1& & % i
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, RAEERZEZRTMAESL =% (=
three (2018: three] were directors of the Company during the T-N\F ZR)REARABE_ZT-NF
year ended 31 December 2019 whose emoluments are included TZAZT—BLEFENES  BEEH
in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining two REXEKE-BRTRE (ZE-N\F:WA)
(2018: two) individuals were as follows: & A 2 ZrEian T -
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
S$ S$
¥ N3 7T g T
Salaries and allowances e KRR 292,241 283,634
Discretfionary bonus B TEAL 142,400 88,348
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme R AE F5T & = 29,107 20,358
463,748 392,340
The emoluments of five highest paid individuals (including TEaERFMALT (BREES) 2HHEE
directors) fall within the following bands: LU
Number of Employees
EE A"
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-N\F
Emolument bands N E
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 T E1,500,0005% 7T 2 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 L 23,500,000 7T - 3
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T £5,500,0007% 7T 3 =
5 5
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employees’ remuneration (Continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals (including direcfors
and employees) as an inducement fo join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018. None of the directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31

December 2019 and 2018.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

11 EEMEREEFHN =

EEHFM =
HE_Z—hFrR-_ZE—-—NF+=A
=+—BLEFE AEEBERAQRES
FhEmeTMAT (BRESAEES)X
HEMFHN EAMAREBE S INAREER
BHRESEREE - BE T —NEFR
E-NF+_A=+—HIFE HBEESE
RE SR B R E A B -

DIVIDENDS 12 BE
2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
S$ S$
03 7T ¥ N3 T
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of KRR EFERNE KKK
the Company declared and paid BB R AR S
during the year:
2018 Final = HK$0.2 cents (2017 nil) —E- N\FREKE-FRO.2
per share B (ZT—+F: &) 347,628 =
EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 BRER
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
Profit for the year attributable to the owners N2 R B A FEAS 5 A s 7
of the Company (S$) (3% T) 2,908,371 2,136,994
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITE AR INE T8
shares in issue 992,876,712 800,000,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREERT K D)
(S$ cents) 0.29 0.27

The calculation of basic eamings per share for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 is based on the profit for the
year affributable to owners of the Company and the weighted
average number of shares in issue.

Diluted eamings per share is the same as the basic eamings
per share because the Group has no dilutive securities that are
convertible into shares during the years ended 31 December

2019 and 2018.

HEz-_Z2—hE&ERKR=-_Z—N\F+=A
=+—BHULEFE BRERBMNDHIEREAR
RAIEA AR F N E T & B BT R (D A0
FHEEE -

HRAEEREBE_ZT-—NLFR-ZE-N
FT_A=+—RLFEHRLENER
REMBAEEXENE S REREER
MR E AR BFER -
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 W% BERRE

Leasehold Freehold Freehold Plant and Furniture Motor  Renovation
building land building  machinery  and fittings vehicles in progress Total
KAERE XAERE
HERF T BF RBRERERHE HGAR#E B BHPIR @t
S§ s$ S$ S$ S$ S§ S$ s$
R AT T T T T MR T
Cost or valuation: BASE:
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-N&E
-A-H 6,800,000 2,796,053 2039475 10,316,143 2,202,482 1,245,515 - 25,399,668
Additions NE - - - 164,107 40,268 60,748 643,950 909,073
Disposals HE = = - - [7,660) - - [7,660)
Revaluation gain Btz = - 167,976 - - - - 167,976
Exchange difference R EE = 7247 2210 20,846 2,552 682 - 33,537
At 31 December 2018 R=F—-N\f
+=ZA=Z+—-H 6,800,000 2,803,300 2,209,661 10,501,096 2,237,636 1,306,945 643,950 26,502,588
Adoption of IFRS 16 RBBR
[Note 3) REER|E 6%
(B3E3) = = = - - (105,789) - (105,789)
At1January 2019 R=B-hF
[Restated) -A-H
(BE7) 6,800,000 2,803,300 2,209,661 10,501,096 2,237,636 1,201,156 643,950 26,396,799
Reclassification BFNE = = - - 643,950 - (643,950) -
Additions AE - 1,298,289 976,359 212,560 932,191 83,280 - 3,502,679
Wirite-off A = S S (1,161) = = S (1,161)
Revaluation gain [loss)  EfEMa (B1E) 100,000 108,053 (529,638 - - - - [321,585)
Exchange difference EREE = (12,342) (6,320) (16,417) 4,672) 480 - 40,231)
At 31 December 2019 R=Z-h#&
+ZA=+-H 6,900,000 4,197,300 2,650,062 10,696,078 3,809,105 1,283,956 - 29,536,501
Comprising: '
At 31 December 2018 R=F—-N\f
+=A=1+-H
At cost R ARG - - - 10,501,006 2,237,636 1,306,945 643950 14,689,627
At valuation REE 6,800,000 2,803,300 2,209,661 - - - - 11,812,961
6,800,000 2,803,300 2,209,661 10,501,096 2,237,636 1,306,945 643950 26,502,588
At 31 December 2019 R=F—-h#&
+=A=+-H
At cost B - - - 10,696,078 3,809,105 1,283,956 - 15,789,139
At valuation RE@E 6,900,000 4,197,300 2,650,062 - - - - 13,747,362
6,900,000 4,197,300 2,650,062 10,696,078 3,809,105 1,283,956 - 29,536,501
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31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 Y¥E- -BERREREw®
Leasehold Freehold Freehold Plant and Furniture Motor  Renovation
building land building  machinery  and fittings vehicles in progress Total
KAEHE KAEHE
RERT i BT RER&E HGARKE BH  BHPIR @&t
s$ s$ s$ s$ s$ 5% s$ s$

MR MR MR MIBET MR BT FIET MR

Accumulated R E:
depreciation:
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-N\%F

-A—-H S S - 5158342 1,170,035 880,448 - 7,208,825
Charge for the year FRAY 261,540 = 57,007 972,311 214,467 140,379 - 1,645704
Disposals HE = - - - (3,958) - - (3,958
Exchange difference ERER = = - 3,456) (822) 211 - 4,067)
Eliminated on revaluation B fEF i H (261,540 - [57,007) - - - - (318,547)
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-N\F
+=ZA=+-H = = - 6127197 1379722 1,021,038 - 8527957
Adoption of IFRS 16 RNEIRETS
[Note 3) BEERE16%
(P3E3) = = = = = (105,789 - (105,789
At 1 January 2019 R=2-1&
Restated) -A-A
(BE3) - = - 6127197 1379722 915,249 - 8422168
Charge for the year FREY 261,540 - 71,024 919,284 313,359 129,823 - 1,695030
Write-off A = S S (1,161) = = S (1,161)
Exchonge diference BN £HE - - S4452) [136]) 1482) - 16295
Eliminated on revaluation  E 1 B il 38 [261,540) = (71,024) - - - - (332,564)
At 31 December 2019 R=Z-h#
+=ZB=+-H = = - 7030868 1,691,720 1,044,590 - 9767178
Carrying amounts: REE:
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—N4F
+-RA=+—-H 6900000 4,197,300 2,650,062  3,665210 2,117,385 239,366 - 19,769,323

At 31 December 2018 RZZ—N\F
+-RA=+t—8 6,800,000 2,803,300 2209661 4,373,899 857,914 285,007 643,950 17,974,631
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31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment [except for
freehold land and renovation in progress) are depreciated on
a straightline basis at the following useful lives after taking into
account the residual values:

leasehold building - Over the land lease term till 2044
(Note)

Freehold building - 50 years

Plant and machinery = 10 years

Furniture and fittings - 3 to 10 years

Motor vehicles - 5years

Note: The building which is owned by the Group is located on
a leasehold land expiring in 2044. The leasehold land is
separately recognised as rightof-use asset in Note 15.

The carrying amount of the Group's motor vehicles include a
S$Nil amount at 31 December 2018 secured in respect of
assets held under finance leases.

The Group has pledged leasehold building, freehold land and
building with carrying amount of S$11,870,920 to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2019 (2018:5$11,812,961).

Fair value measurement of the Group’s land and
buildings

The Group's land and buildings are stated at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation. For year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group engaged third parly
qualified valuers not related to the Group, Savills Valuation and
Professional Services (S) Pte ltd and Savills (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.,
who have appropriate qualifications and recent experience
in the fair value measurement of the properties in the relevant
locations, to perform the valuation as at 30 September 2018.
Management has assessed that the key inputs and assumptions
used by the valuers for valuation date 30 September 2018
remain applicable and reasonable as at year ended 31
December 2018.
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L% BEMEREER (TEREKAZE
TR ETHRHEH TIE) HEE BRI
BEEANRTINAIERAFHANEREFTE
e

HERT - RinHEMSREER
(PHEE) —FEmmeE

KARERTF - 50F

B Ko 5% - 10%

RARKE - 3EI0F

B - 5%

Misl: AEEBEANBETLENR —BR_-Z
mMumERIEHaEE T F-ZBEE L
R Sh EBERREREEE-

RZE-N\F+ZA=+—H FKEEMHF
FEREEEEEREREAERE

BHE-_ZT-NE+-A=1+—RHILtEE &K
EEOIEIMIERMEA11,870,920% I3k T
MAEEF KkAEETHREFIEALRE
EER —MBITEENER(ZE—N\F:
11,812,961 M%) °
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BN E =1 & &R ERMSavills Valuation
and Professional Services (S) Pte Ltd X Savills
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (EEEEEEEE R
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group's land and
bUiIdiﬂgS (Continued)

For year ended 31 December 2019, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers not related to the Group, Premas Valuers
and Property Consultants Pte Ltd and MacReal Infernational (|B)
Sdn. Bhd., who have appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the fair value measurement of the properties in the
relevant locations, to perform the valuation as at 31 December

2019.

The valuation conforms to International Valuation Standards.
Where the external valuer is engaged, the management of
the Group works closely with the qualified external valuers 1o
establish the appropriate valuation fechniques and inputs to the
model.

The fair value of the land and buildings were determined based
on either the transaction price and/or the direct comparison
approach that reflects relevant transaction prices for similar
properties, adjusted for differences in the nature, location and
condition of the land under review. There has been no change to
the valuation technique used during the year.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

14 Y¥E- -BERREREw®

AEETHREFNAFETE@w

Bz -_Z—NF+-_A=+—"BLFE-
AEEZERAESETEBABNE =7
& B G ERMPremas Valuers and Property
Consultants Pte Ltd &2 MacReal International (JB)
Sdn. Bhd. (REABEEEHE R EEEH
YEETAFENENOHER) N T
—NE+—A=+—R#ETHE-

ZIAERE BRMEERER] - f[E RSB
D RIS EE IR E RS BRI E(ERD
EY A EARESLE E B0 M E R KRR
AR -

THEBFHRAFESERRRFAEYE
HEXSEORRER IERLBRT A
BE MMEXEZLHMOARME  HE
FGRSUVE H 8B - 1 R A M E R AT I
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s land and
buildings (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

Fair value as at

AVE
2019 2018 Valuation Technique
ZE-AE ZE-\E HEHEE
S$ S$

H g AT
level 3
5ZE
leasehold building: 6,900,000 6,800,000 Direct comparison
255 Pandan Loop, Singapore approach
HERF: HERLEE

255 Pandan Loop, Singapore

Freehold building A: 1,135,740 1,352,180 Direct comparison
No. 7, Jolon Isimewa 1, Taman Perindusfrian approach
Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul

Tokzim, Mclaysia

KARERTFA: BRERE

No. 7, Jalan Istimewa 1, Toman Perindustrion

Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul

Tokzim, Malaysia

Freehold Building B 855,920 857,481 Direct comparison
No. 8, Jolon Isfimewa 1, Taman Perindusfrian approach
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul

Tokzim, Mclaysia

KAREETB ERLBE

No. 8, Jalan Istimewa 1, Toman Perindustrion

Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul

Tokzim, Malaysia

Freehold Building C 658,402 - Direct comparison
No. 6, Jolon Isimewa 1, Taman Perindusfrian approach
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul

Tokzim, Mclaysia

KAFERTFC BRERE

No. 6, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul
Takzim, Moloysia
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FEELHREFHAIFES

=
=&\

KA RSB ERTER ZEYENR
SEEMRKEREAERKRAE-

Significant unobservable input

EXTUBRHNBARE

Average market price of 2019: $§273.79 (2018:
$§281.65) per square feet dfter adjusting for age,
location, condition and surrounding facilty.

ERER UE WRREARRERERSTIRTY
TER: ZE—NE: 273798 (-5
281.655T KT o

Average market price of 2019: $§20.17 (2018:
$§24.02) per square feet after adjusting for age,
location, condifion and surrounding faclliy.

gk B WAREEREEEEETARTY
HER: ZB-NF: 20178 (ZB-N\F:
24 02 ML) °

Average market price of 2019: 5$21.83 (2018:
$§21.87) per square feet after adjusting for age,
location, condifion and surrounding faclliy.

gk B WAREEREEEEETARTY
HER: ZB-NF: 21 83T (ZB-N\F:
21874 %) «

Average market price of 2019: $$23.69 per square
feet after adjusting for age, location, condition and
surrounding faclliy.

gk B WARAEREEELETARTY
mEA: ZE—NE: 23008 MK -

Sensitivity
SRE

The higher the market
price, the higher
the fair value.

MEER AFEE

=%

The higher the market
price, the higher
the fair valve.

EEE AT
=)

The higher the market
price, the higher
the fair value.

EdE ATEL
o

The higher the market
price, the higher
the fair value.
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FEMFBHmTRMEE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group's land and

bUiIdiﬂgS (Continued)

Fair value as at

AFE

2019
“E-RE
S$
Fmg T
Freehold land A 1,761,220
No. 7, Jolan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul
Tokzim, Malaysia
KAEREIA
No. 7, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindusfrian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul
Tokzim, Malaysia
Freehold land B 1,218,040

No. 8, Jalan Isfimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul
Takzim, Mclaysia

KAKHENB

No. 8, Jolan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrion
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul
Takzim, Mclaysia

2018 Valuation Technique
“EN\E RERN
$§
g

1,649,000 Direct comparison
approach

BELRE

1,154,300  Direct comparison
approach

BELRE

31 December 2019

14 % -BERZE®

—z-ng+-A=+-8

AEELHEEFNAFETEw

Significant unobservable input

EXTTENGARE

Averoge market price of 2019: $$27.88 (2018:
$§26.11) per square feet after adjusting for age,
location, condiion and surrounding facilty.

ERER NE WRREEREBEEETARTY
MER: “B—NF: 27888 MK (ZB-N\F:
2115 MK TT)

Average market price of 2019: $$27.94 (2018:
$§26.48) per square feet after adjusting for age,
location, condiion and surrounding facilty.

aRER B HAREEIEAELEEARTY
TEA: ZT-NF: 27 U4F M (25— N\E:
20 ABFTITL)

Sensitivity
HRE

The higher the market
price, the higher
the fair value.

mEES RTEYE

=)

The higher the market
price, the higher
the fair value.

EEE AT

’%o

Freehold land C 1,218,040 - Direct comparison Average market price of 2019: $$27.94 per square The higher the market
No. 6, Jalan Isfimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian approach feet after adjusting for age, location, condifion and price, the higher
Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul surrounding facilty. the fair value.
Takzim, Mclaysia
KAKRC BEENAA EER LE WRRERREREAETIRTY HEEE ATEH
No. 6, Jalan Istimewa 1, Toman Perindustrion MEA: ZE—NE: 27 9 NFTe ae
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul
Tokzim, Mclaysia

13,747,362 11,812,961
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s land and
buildings (Continued)

Any significant isolated changes fo the inputs would result in @

significant change in fair value measurement.

The properties’ fair value hierarchy is based on level 3, and
there were no fransfers between the fair value hierarchy levels
during the year.

Had the properties been carried under the cost model, the
carrying amounts of the properties would have been the

following:

Under cost model R AEXIET
leasehold building HEEF
Freehold building IKAKEIERTF
Freehold land KA SERE T

14 ¥ -BERSEZE®
AEBELHREFHAFETE @
BASBNTRNERERSLEERAF
HHENEARD

MEXNFERBRDERE=ZEHL BERNF
N AFEBRZELEHRES -

M EAKAER T2 A ENRE B
T

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F
S$ S$

¥ h0 3% T TN T
416,667 433,332
1,907,834 972,847
2,346,152 1,056,471

4,670,653 2,462,650
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (GROUP AS A LESSEE)

The Group leases leasehold land, warehouses, accommodation
for staff, and motor vehicle. The lease term is in range of 2 — 30
years, with average opfion fo extend 2 years.

The Group has no options to purchase any of its leased assets af
the end of the lease term. Other than the leased motor vehicle,
the Group's obligations are not secured by the lessors' title to the

FEMBImRME

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

15 EHEEE (FEEEFER—BE
HA)
AEERAEELH AF BIEERE
o BHN F2FEI0F T AEIEEN?
Fo

AEERNEHESABEEERBEELTM
HEEE-REEE®HIN AREZEEL
BEUHRHEARARAEERZCHESREY

leased assets for such leases. e AT
Leasehold Motor
land Warehouses Accommodation vehicle Total
HELH# BE BE HH st
S$ S$ 5$ S$ S$
N T b 1b ;g ;g g
Group rEE
Cost: RA:
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+-RA=+—H - - - = S
Adoption of IFRS 16 PR BIPR B s SR 5 2 B
(Note 3) F16% (fzE3) 1,007,252 273,690 186,944 105,789 1,573,675
At 1 January 2019 R-E-N&E—AF—H 1,007,252 273,690 186,944 105,789 1,573,675
Additions NE = 156,078 62,314 = 218,392
Exchange difference EREH - (1,300] (476) - (1,776)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NEF
+TZA=1t—H 1,007,252 428,468 248,782 105,789 1,790,291
Accumulated depreciation:  REHTE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF
+-RA=+—H - - - - -
Adoption of IFRS 16 T4 B BR B 75 3R 45 £ 8
(Note 3) F165 (MizE3) (148,289) (98,784) 163,390 (105,789) (416,252)
At 1 January 2019 R-E-N&—A—H (148,289) (98,784) (63,390 (105,789) (416,252)
Charge for the year FRHEY (33,575) (108,877) (56,629 - (199081)
Exchange difference ERzR = 740 217 = 957
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+ZA=1t—H (181,864) [206,921) (119,802) (105,789) (614,376)
Carrying amount: BREE:
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-A=1t—H 825,388 221,547 128,980 - 1,175,915
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FEMFHRTRMEE
31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+-_A=+—H

15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (GROUP AS A LESSEE) 15

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain leases for
warehouses and accommodation expired. The expired confracts
were replaced by new leases for idenfical underlying assets.
This resulted in additions fo rightofuse assets of $$218,392 in
2019.

At 31 December 2019, the Group is committed to S$25,164
for short term leases.

EHEEE (AEEEREEAN)

(%)

BE_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HBLFE-
ETREREEHERRIS -ERAH
mAERBREENHBHRE B ®=
T-NF EREEEEL 28, 3025 MK
TTo

R2019%12H31 0 - NEBAGE25,1645%
TR REE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16 REY=

Completed
investment
property
BXI
BREWE
S$
o

At fair value: /&EFTE
Balance af 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—HA—BRN&E#% 1,447,368
Exchange difference (&R =% 3,752
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZFE-NF+ZA=1T—B0&EH 1,451,120
Loss from fair value adjustment (Note 7b) NEEFHEEE (M:F/b) (165,452)
Exchange difference PE X =% (1,788)
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZEBE-—NF+_A=+—BW&e 1,283,880

Fair value measurement of the Group's investment
property

The Group's investment property is stated at fair value. The fair
volue measurements of the Group's investment property as af
31 December 2018 were performed by Savills (Malaysia) Sdn.
Bhd., an independent valuer not related to the Group, who has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the fair value
measurement of the investiment property in the relevant location.
The valuation conforms to International Valuation Standards.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTY' (Continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group's investment
property (Continved)

Management has assessed that the key inpufs and assumptions
used by the valuers for valuation date 30 September 2018
remain applicable and reasonable as at year ended 31

December 2018.

The fair value measurements of the Group's investment property as
at 31 December 2019 were performed by MacReal Infernational
(B) Sdn Bhd, an independent valuer not related fo the Group,
who has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
fair value measurement of the investment property in the relevant
location. The valuation conforms to International Valuation
Standards. Management has assessed that the key inputs and
assumptions used by the valuers for valuation date 31 December
2019. The fair value of the investment property, was defermined
based on direct comparison approach that reflects relevant
fransaction prices for similar properties adjusted for age, location,
condition and surrounding facility. The investment property fair
value hierarchy is based on level 3, and there was no fransfers
between the fair value hierarchy levels during the year.

Fair value as at

31 December 2019

FEMBRRMEE
—E-AFT=A=1-A

16 REWHE w

AEEREVENDFEFE@®

@G ERERAHEIN -F—\FN
A=+ R {68 R A8 EEHAKERE
BRRE-F-NF+-AST-ALE
BHRERALBEIE-

AEBEREWER_Z-—NE+A
=T HOAFEAENHEREENE
R Bt 59 8 37 (B A MacReal International (B)
Sdn Bhd¥E1T EEEEEEE R EHEBM
BIREMEETATEFTEMNMANLER %
HEFEREEERER - ERED HHEM
RZZT—hEF+-A=+—AHEBHE
A E 20 A BT RMRFETIE -REY
A TEREEZLBEETE ERYBLE
B E RO R EE R ERBENEUY
ENEARSER -KREMELTEERR
E-E BFANRATEER BT EER-

DV{E
2019 2018 Valuation Technique ~ Significant unobservable input Sensifivity
ZB-nE  “T\F #ERHE EXTAERNGAZE HRE
S$ S$
IR T HAK T
level 3
F-E
Invesiment property: 1,283,880 1,451,120 Direct comparison  Average market price of 2019: $$95.85  The higher the market price,

No.6 Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3, approach (2018: $$108.33) per square feet the higher the fair value
Taman Perindustrion Maju Cemerlang, after adjusting for age, location,

Malaysia condition and surrounding facility

kEm%: BRUBE gagR LB RAREERERE TEES ATEES

BYIMER: —T—NF: 9585
MIMETEFHIR(ZE-N\F:
108 .33 MR THFHR)

No.6 Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3,
Taman Perindustrion Maju Cemerlang,
Malaysia
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2019

—E-hF+ZA=+—H

17 INVENTORIES 17 #E
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
S$ S$
1 h0 3% T ot
Raw materials R K 7,653,124 6,664,055
Packaging materials BEM K 1,235,336 1,104,103
Work-in-progress ERE 1,168,234 572,281
Finished goods BB o 2,369,475 1,894,482
12,426,169 10,234,921
18 TRADE RECEIVABLES 18 EZEWNIE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
S$ S$
F N3 7T o
Trade receivables 5 WA 12,377,622 10,851,673
As at 1 January 2018, trade receivables amounted to RZE—-NF—A—H BEF5EKKESE

$$8,986,112.

The Group grants credit terms to customers typically ranging
from 7 to 60 days from the invoice date for trade receivables
and cerfain sales require payment in cash upon delivery. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented

8,986, 11 2% N JT

AEERFEESREFENEREAE

BIEFENT/EO0R M EE BT E T

EEXNRINEURSMF - AT RERS
BEMRBEZAH (RO KERABAH) 2

based on the invoice date which approximated the revenue S H) B 5 FE WA B BR i 0 AT -
recognition date af the end of each reporting period:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
S$ s$
#1037t T
Within 30 days 30HA 7,108,179 5,568,133
31 days to 60 days 31E60H 4,249,289 4,226,041
61 days to 90 days 61£2Q90H 942,844 823,123
Q1 days to 180 days Q12 180H 53,169 193,249
181 days fo one year 181EE—F 24,141 41,127
12,377,622 10,851,673
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18 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying values of trade receivables approximate its fair
values.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed the
potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit limit to each
cusfomer on individual basis. Limits affributed to customers are
reviewed when necessary. The majority of the Group's accounts
receivables that are past due but not impaired have no hisfory of
defaulting on repayment. As at the end of each reporting period,
the Group does notf charge inferest nor hold any collateral over
the balances.

The Group applied the simplified approach to provide the
expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9. The impairment
methodology is sef out in Notes 4 and 31(b).

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
assesses the impairment for its customers based on different
group of customers which share common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts
due in accordance with the contractual terms. There has been
no change in the estimation technique or significant assumption
made during the current reporting period.

Aging of frade receivables that are past due but not impaired af
reporting date:

31 December 2019

18

FEMBRRMEE
—E-AFT=A=1-A

ESRWREmw
BoEWFENEDEREERNFERSE-

REBEMFHEP A AR B IR E R EEF 4
BERFNEEEZRUNBERTFPNGE
ERE-BRTEPHNBEEELER TR
Al e REEAE D BB AR EREYFIA
FEERERCE - RERSHR AKE
I 4 A 45 BR U BRI B S A (T R 5 o

AEBRBEBRY B HREELORNAETE
ERBLETERBREEBRIRER-
BT EF M FE4 53 1(b) ©

ERAEBEEERREEN D AEE
AR AR RREBHARE P ARG
HEFPRE ARHHBRAREFRIES K
AP A ZI IR BE S - R AR S 5
B A T EREARRLBELEERE
o

RikE B HAEABRERBENE 5 RUK
THERRER DA

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

S$ s$

#h03R T AN T

Within 60 days 60R N 4,249,289 4,226,041
61 days to 90 days 61290H 942,844 823,123
Q1 days to 180 days Q1E180H 53,169 193,249
181 days fo one year 181HE—F 24,141 41,127
5,269,443 5,283,540
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

18 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18

The estimated loss rates are esfimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forwardooking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The directors of the Company
considered that the expected credit loss allowance is immaterial.

19 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 19

EZRWREmw®

BRI R R ER ER AR EH
5T M T 3 AR TR 04
TR AR5 A B S 2 AT MM R
B AR EERAEHEEAERED
REA-

HMBWRIE - e RENIER

PREPAYMENTS
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
S$ S$
F1h0 3% T o
Current Vi)
Advances fo suppliers BT HIER R 149,569 110,586
Advances to staffs BT B ITHRR 3,000 3,825
Deposits (Note i) EE (M) 99,169 175,235
Prepayments T FRIR 241,878 165,495
Goods and services tax ("GST") receivables &4 78 fa M AR 7 57
(IEmERER]) 111,167 61,313
Income fax recoverable AT E AT ISR - /3,444
Deferred issued cost PEIE BT AR = 693,495
Others [Note i) H b (BEEI) 3,092 1,151
607,875 1,284,544
Non-current JERED
Deposits for purchase of fixed asset (Note i) B E Bl F & EMLE (M) 194,390 -
Note: B sk -
(i) The management considered that the ECL for deposits and others (i) EEER

is insignificant as af 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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20c AMOUNTS DUE FROM SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due from shareholders as at 31 December 2018

are nontrade related, unsecured and interest free, and were

20b

FEMBImRME

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

20a EWH&%TA

RZZB-NF+RA=+—80 BRKRERX
HRRBHEMR BERARRE  RERKE

subsequently sefled in 2019. RZB—NFHEF-
AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY 20b FEA— BB IR
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
S$ S$
03 7T N T
Trade related = 5 1E 6,432 =
The average credit period for provision of goods and services by BhRME R ERBOHFIEHEEHARI0
the related party is 30 days. The frade related amount due fo a R-ERNBEREPRERAHZ2 N ENEH

related party in which it is controlled by Mr. Winston Lim and Mr.

B (HARRRITESMIT FRERMK

lawrence Lim, executive directors of the Company, is within 30 ++*5‘E$E%‘J)§%$H B TR IE R30KRIAA
days old based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting
period.
21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21 fTEEMITA
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
S$ S$
# 03K T AN TT
Foreign exchange forward contracts not et RERRYERER
designated in hedge accounting BAFEFENINEEREL
relationships carried at fair value CRREE
(Net settled)
Current assets mENEE 2,502 51,237
Current liabilities neaE (69,215) (61,985)
(66,713) (10,748)

During the vyear, the Group had entered into several foreign
currency forward and option confracts with banks and financial
institutions fo reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation risk of
sefflement from trade poy0b|es that are denominated in Australian
Dollar ("AUD") or US Dollar (“USD”). These derivatives were not
accounted for under hedge accounting. The contracts are subject
fo net sefflement at each maturity date and were measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period.

RARFE  AEBEEIRT RS REEET T
AETINERBERBEAL UREEALE
LUBIT (MB]) sk ([Tl ) FHEmE
SRENRBABNEE EBIRAR - ZEITE
TARBERGFENE - ZEANANRNS
PSS EEE YR REHREATE

e
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cortinued 21 fTEEMITAw
The major terms of these foreign currency forward contracts and ZEINEEZR N PESONETEBHERET

opfion were as follows:

Foreign currency forward contracts MERBEYN
Notional Amount Maturity Date Exchange Rate
EHESHE FHEA fE %=
2019
—E-hF
Nl Nil Nil
2018
—E-N\F
Buy AUD and sell SGD:
BEANBITRE LI NE T
AUD300,000 Settlement on specific date in each month from  S$1/AUD
28 February 2019 to 30 April 2019
300,00032 7T RZE—NFE-_A-+NBE-ZT—AF 1HFIMETILDRT

MA=+HA&AKEBHEE
Buy SGD and sell HKD:
BAFIETRELET:

SGD616,000 Settlement on specific date in each month from  $$0.176,/HKD
19 October 2018 to 15 January 2019
616,000% hn3 7T RZB-N\F+RATAREZZ-AF— O0.176FIKRTHIET
AthBEZARERREE
Foreign currency option contracts IEHESLD
Notional Amount Maturity Date Exchange Rate
AREH A H fE =
2019
—E-hF
Buy USD and sell SGD:
BEAEZETREL#HMHE T :
USD200,000 or USD400,000 14 February 2020 S$1.369/USD
200,000 7t 8400,000% 7T —E-TFE_A+MA 1.369FT K T H 15T
2018
=B-N\F

Buy AUD/USD and sell SGD:
BB,/ ExhERFT T

USD200,000 or USD400,000 19 July 2019 $$1.335/USD and

200,0003= 753,400,000 7T —F-hFtATNA 1.335% M T 1€ R

AUD148,500 18 September 2019 to 25 October 2019 5$0.99/AUD

148,500/8 7T “E-NFNATNBEZZE—NFT+A 099 IEITE BT
o =
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FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinued) 21 fTEERMIAw
Foreign currency option contracts (Continued) HNEHESHN w
The fair value of derivative financial instruments has been arrived TEERIENAFEERERITES R
at on the basis of a valuation carried out as at the end of the BENREHRAMETZHEEER
reporting period by banks and financial institutions.
22 BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22 MITERREAE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
S$ s$
¥ 03 T N T
Cash at banks RITIRE 5,754,516 3,638,235
Cash at hand FERE 35,347 39,560
Bank deposits RITIEK 10,520,477 347,211

16,310,340 4,025,006
less: Fixed deposits with maturity more than &k - Z| B H & =8 A LA B &

3 months EHITFR (10,039,800) =
Cash and cash equivalents in the meaRenERrANRE R

consolidated statement of cash flows REeEEEY 6,270,540 4,025,006
Other than fixed deposits of $$10,039,800 which has maturity Br7<E H = —F HE H17310,039,800%1
of between six months and one year, the remaining bank deposits IR ITTHN  REBEASRIRITFRIERE N H
of the Group represent shortterm bank deposits with an original B A=A s LARE R BRI T R - BRIRTT
maturity of three months or less. Other than the bank deposits T IR B E MR T BAN - RITAERRIZ AT AT
which carry fixed inferest rate, the bank balances carry inferest af BHERGR

variable market rates as follows:

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F

Range of inferest rate per annum: FHXEE
Bank deposits RITER 1.94 & 3.3% 3.3%
Bank balances HR1T7 A8 84 0% 228% 0 & 2.28%
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31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 ESZRHEMEMNRIE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
S$ S$
¥ hn3 T ot
Trade payables B 5 EMNFIE 3,576,835 3,072,114
Trade accruals BHEAER 116,611 131,690

3,693,446 3,203,804

Accrued operating expenses et EER X 2,385,890 551,642
Accrued listing costs JEET ET A A - 1,012,214
Other payables: H Al A5 5R0R -
- Advances from customers - I=E T = 76,809
— Deposits received —BliEzE 10,601 11,401
S e e e — R B R BR Y 186,758 146,236
— Others —HA 239,165 225,338

2,822,414 2,023,640

Total @E 6,515,860 5,227,444
The credit period on purchases from suppliers is between 7 to 30 At EREENEERA7RXEIOR IR
days or payable upon delivery. AT B R o
The following is an aged analysis of frade payables presented UTAERSREHRBEEHHENNE
based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting period: SIENFIERER DT
2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
S$ s$
3 hn3E T sk T
Within 30 days 30BA 2,663,842 2,469,111
31 days to 90 days 31Z290H 739,651 577,483
91 days fo 180 days Q1ZE180H 173,342 25,520

3,576,835 3,072,114
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24 |EASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities (Disclosure required by IFRS 16)

FEMBImRME

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

24 HERE

HEAES (REBEBRUBHREER
FIRETHRE)

2019
—B-NF
S$
N3 7T
Within one year —FA 190,772
Within a period of more than one year —F 2B M F A HRE
but not exceeding two years 156,192
Within a period of more than two years BESIERESNEES!
but not exceeding five years 139,441
Over five years HF% 825,895
1,312,300
less: Amount due within one year shown under WRRBRERE TR —FA
current liabilities )=/ Q] 190,772
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities RIERE B EIE NI RAFIA 1,121,528

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard
fo its lease liabilities. lease liabilities are monitored within
the Group's finance function. The above represents leases for
leasehold land, warehouses, accommodation for staff and
motor vehicle of the Group. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate was 5.3% per annum. The Group's lease
does not contain variable lease payments and accordingly no
expense relating fo variable lease paymenfs is included in the
measurement of lease liabilities. Certain leases of the Group
contain extension periods, for which the related lease payments
had been included in lease liabilities as the Group believes that
they will exercise these extension opfions.

AEBYRAEHEREEENEANRD
ExRk MEABERAKRENM KM
B AERAEBARAEEL BB B
ITEERBENHE - EFHEERERF
MERB/S 3% -AEBNHESNBESAIEH
EMF Rt HEREFETFTESEA
HEHENKARENER AEENETHEE
BELH ARAEERBEBITEILFT
HREE HRAENREAHERRE
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2019

24 |EASE LIABILITIES (continved)

Obligations under finance lease (Disclosure required by

—F-AFT=A=+-8

24

HEEEw

MEHERE (RERKSER

IAS 17) FI7HRETHERE)
Present value
of minimum
Minimum lease lease
payments payments
=EHE ®EHEE
B B E
2018 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
S$ S$
s ot N T
Amounts payable under finance leases: BEREIE TN KIE:
Within one year —FR 14,420 13,765
In more than one year but not more than —FRIEMFA
two years 2,809 2,551
17,229 16,316
less: Future finance charges B BEREER (913) N.AT i3 A
Present value of lease obligations HEAERE 16,316 16,316
Less: amount due for setflement R —ERRNERASEERIE
within one year (shown under (RARBEEETIITR)
current liabilities) (13,765)
Amount due for settlement after one year R —F1& 3 1A 2,551
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LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

Obligations under finance lease (Disclosure required by
IAS ]7) (Continued)

Inferest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases are
fixed af respective confract dates during the year as follows:

Interest rate g

31 December 2019

FEMBRRMEE
—E-AFT=A=1-A

24 HEEEw

MERERE (BEBEBRS5ER
FBI7HETHEE) @

E’\Zliir Fﬁﬁrﬂﬁf SARER BT Rz
EXBAEHNBHEE

2018
—E-N\F

4.89%

At 31 December 2018, the average lease term is 6 years. The
Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the
lessor's charge over the leased assets (Note 14).

R-ZF-N\F+-_A=+—8 FHHEHR
NE - AREENBEREAE AL AR
MEEE (ME14) RS EER-

25 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 25 RITREMER

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\HF
S$ S$
F1h03% T ¥ o
Secured at amortised cost R A B K

Bank loans IRITER 2,750,495 4,958,554

Less: Amount due for seflement within BT @A RE S ERIE
12 months 447,756 4,083,125
Amount due for seftlement after 12 months A+ 1@ A1 B Bf 4 E 708 2,302,739 875,429

The above bank and other borrowings are secured or guaranteed P iRIT R E MR AT ZIBEE MK
by: R

AEBEBEER T RO AFER L MoK
AEXBEBTNERERERE R

[i)  First legal mortgage over the Group's leasehold building (i)
and freehold land and freehold building; and

AEEEERRRRNBEEFENBER
1E th B9 2[R R 8 B HE 4R o

[i)  Joint and several guarantees from the directors and (i)
shareholders of the Group in their personal capacities.
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2019 —hE+=-A=+—8

25 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continved)

The carrying amounts of the above bank and other borrowings
are repayable:

25 $R1T

FEMER®
iR R B B R R EE A BB AR -

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
S$ S$
#1037t T
Within one year —F R 447,756 4,083,125
Within a period of more than one year —FREMFE RN
but not exceeding two years 464,047 215,405
Within a period of more than two years GESTIEREEHS!
but not exceeding five years 1,179,755 645,217
Over five years AF& 658,937 14,807
2,750,495 4,958,554
less: Amount due within one year shown WRRBEBEE TR —FA
under current liabilities B HAFRIE (447,756) (4,083,125)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 7 3F it 8 & f&IE T 51 /R &Y K18 2,302,739 875,429

The effective interest rates [which are equal to contracted inferest
rates) of the Group's borrowings are as follows:

FEIRITERZ
B (F)H =

Effective interest rafes (per annum)
variable-rate bank borrowings

AEEERZERFE (FRENEHFIR)

T
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F

2.49%-5.04% 3.77%5.94%

At 31 December 2019, the Group had available $$5,558,652
(2018: S$3,489,242) of undrawn committed borrowing
faciliies in respect of which all conditions precedent has been

mef. Subsequent to year end, the Group has cancelled the

available facilities amounting to $$3,377,592.
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26 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2019

26 EEHERE

FEMBImRME

—E-AFT=A=1-A

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised NTREEANETEZEEHEEERAE
and the movements thereon: B
Revaluation
of freehold
building,
freehold land Accelerated
and investment tax
property depreciation Total
KAKERT
CKAHERE
THRIREYE
BEXNME EBEITE st
s$ s$ S$
e o e o AN T
As at 1 January 2018 RZZE-—N\¥—A—H 365,214 527,391 892,605
Charge fo other comprehensive RENEM2EFA NG

expense for the year (Note 28) (B7E28) 53,996 - 53,996
Under provision in prior year BEFERETR

(Note 9| (PH7E9) 78,634 = 78,634
(Credit] charge fo profit or loss RERERE (FEA) R

for the year (Note 9) (K3E9) (1,820 28,118 26,298
Exchange difference b ZE (1,447 3,597 2,150
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F

+TZA=+—H 494,577 559,106 1,053,683
Charge to other comprehensive RENHEMEEF R

expense for the year [Note 28) (KI3E28) (104,665 - (104,665)
Under provision in prior year BEFEREET R (ME9)

(Note 9| - 85,725 85,725
Credit to profit or loss for the year — RFREzEHA (FHFEQ)

(Note 9| (15,928) (125,462) (141,390)
Exchange difference PN =5 (274) (958) (1,232)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—-LF

+ZA=+—8H 373,710 518,411 892,121

The deferred tax liabilities are resulted from temporary taxable
differences arising from (1) accelerated depreciation in relation
fo capital allowance claims on qualified assets in accordance
with prevailing fax law in Singapore and Malaysia, and (2)
revaluation of freehold building, freehold land and investment
property in relation fo the fair value uplift as computed by the
external valuers and the book value of the freehold building,

freehold land and investment property.

R A B R IR AT

EREBRBABIIER (DREHNEES
KATZRITHRE REEREEZERNRR

B & (2)SINEE i {ERD

ATERKARERT KAXELRRE
YRR EE DA R REEEH G EKA
EREET KARBLHMEREVEELE

e R Z R AT E B
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

27 SHARE CAPITAL

For the purpose of presenting the share capital of the Group
prior fo the Group Reorganisation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, the balance as at 31 December 2018
represented the share capifal of the TSS and its subsidiaries as
the Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 19

27 BAE

RREEMBRRARAZINANEER KE
ElRmERANE R2F-N\F+=-A
S+ -BRERERARTAR T /\FH
A+ NBHERSESEMARIETSS R HEH
B AR

April 2018.
Number
of shares Par value  Share capital
Pin 8B FHEE (RN
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised share capital of RRBETE R
the Company:
At date of incorporation on R-ZZ—-\FEHA+IA
19 April 2018 (Note al (sEfAZ B HA)
(Mi5Ea) 38,000,000 0.01 380,000
Increase on 20 December 2018 M T — /\F
(Note ¢ +=—A=+H1#EMmn
(MtzEc) 4,962,000,000 0.01 49,620,000
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NFR_ZE-NF
and 2019 +=ZHA=+—H 5,000,000,000 0.01 50,000,000
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31 December 2019

FEMBRRMEE
—E-AFT=A=1-A

27 SHARE CAPITAL (coninved) 27 BRAE @
Number
of shares Share capital
vl S 4E] ;&N
S$
N T
Issued and fully paid of TSS and TSSKEHIE A BB BT REE
its subsidiaries
At 31 December 2018 and 2019 RZE—NFR
—E-hF+=A=+—H 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid of the Company: RRBDETRAR
At date of incorporation on R-ZZE—NFEWA+IA (5F
19 April 2018 (Note a) fip sz HE) (FisEa) 100 -
ssue of shares pursuant fo RIBEEHEBEITIRG (MHEb)
the reorganisation (Note b Q00 2
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+=-_A=+—H 1,000 2
Capitalisation issue [Nofe ¢ B BT (BifEc) 799,999,000 1,380,654
Share offer (Note d) fenEE (H3Ed) 200,000,000 345,164
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H 1,000,000,000 1,725,820

Notes:

al

b

On 19 April 2018, the Company was incorporated in the
Caymans Islands with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000
divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. As at the time
of its incorporation, one share was allotied and issued, credited
as fully paid at par, to the initial subscriber, which was transferred
for cash af par to SWL on the same date. On 19 April 2018, 99
additional shares were allotted and issued to SWL, all credited as

fully paid.

On 18 December 2018, 9 shares in TSH were allotted and
issued to the Company, all credited as fully paid, in consideration
for the Company allotting and issuing in aggregate 900 new
shares for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of TSS

by TSH.

GEE

al

b)

RZZE-NFOA+AR - AREARHEE
HBEMMAL - JEERAR380,0008 T -
5 /338,000,000 & IR EEO.0 178 TTHy AR
Do R E MR — RIREEAKRS
RERHBRNEERBETTIERBA
WHF B EEEETSWUARRE E -
R-ZZE-NFEATNE  OWARIIA
BT IMNR O BCEE M EIT T SWL .

RZE-NFE+ZA+NRB AR
RBROTSHIR DAL RET FTARE
AERA ARG TSHIRABTSS 2 882 TR
AN B 8 K BT & FROOORRFTAR 17 B (R (B »
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31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

27 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

c Pursuant fo the written resolution of the sole shareholder of the
Company dated 20 December 2018, it was resolved that
the authorised share capital of the Company increased from
HK$380,000 to HK$50,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 4,962,000,000 shares; and conditional on the share
premium account of the Company being credited as a result of
the Share Offer, an amount of HK$7,999,990 which will then
be standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company be capitalised and applied to pay up in full at par a
total of 799,999,000 Shares for allotment, rank pari passu in all
respects with all the then existing shares.

d On 14 January 2019, the Company successfully listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange by way of placing
225,000,000 shares (175,000,000 new shares and
50,000,000 vendor sale shares) and public offer of 25,000,000
shares at the price of HK$0.50 per share. The Company's share
of net proceeds after deducting the underwriting commissions
and expenses paid or payable by the Company in relation fo the
Share Offer amounted to approximately HK$66.8 million (S$11.7
million).

28 REVALUATION RESERVE

The revaluation reserve records increase in the fair value of
freehold land and buildings and leasehold building, net of tax,
and decrease to the extent that such decrease relate to increase

27 B @

Bsr: (4

c)

d)

REARRE-RER - N\F+-A

# 9, 962,000,0008% f& 17 #§ A A B TE
A& 7% Hr 380,000 JT 44 4 2 50,000,000/
T RAF AR R BAn i B R A ) & i
BISERE AR EERNERS
#7,990,0008 Tt & ¥ 1§ 8 £ B A0 A R
REEREHR A 799,999, 0008 -
NHEE ZEROESHTEHEMEER
REBRNDZEEREH -

RZZE-AF—A+EAR ARXBEBE
%225,000,0008 i 5 (175,000,0008%
1 A% 5.50,000,0008% & 77 #H & B 17) & 4%
FRRO.508 TTHER R B #E25,000,000
B Bt # 7 U Zh OB X P EAR £ 7 o AR
REANRBHEAE RAR BN HE
ENRENF R EAFRIBFRAL
6o.8BEEITT (1. 7BEMINKIT) -

28 Efhf#ME

EfHEREKAFTELREFRAS
BF R FEZ M EMERFIR) - R E
BTN EtEEEENERNFR—BE

on the same asset previously recognised in other comprehensive RiEEE-
income.
2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
S$ s$
#hn3 7T ¥ N T
At beginning of the year RE ] 11,653,314 11,220,786
Increase on revaluation of freehold properties Z{fsk A S % &
and leasehold building HEZF 2N 10,979 486,524
Deferred tax on revaluation of freehold BKAEEYE ZRIERIA
properties (Note 26) (FF7E26) 104,665 (53,9906)
At end of the year RER 11,768,958 11,653,314
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31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29 AATEBMBERRRBREEE

RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2019 2018
—E—-hHF —E-N\F
S$ S$
¥ 03 T N T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current asset RBEE
Investment in subsidiaries BB RRIZ®RE 14 14
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from shareholders & YIS R BRI = 173,374
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGO 11,429,523 -
Other receivables H 4y fE Y FT8 38,304 693,495
Bank balances and cash WITHB MRS 2,525,648 -
13,993,475 866,869
Current liabilities REBE
Amounts due to a subsidiary FEAS —REIMT B A B R IE - 2,767,437
Other payables H b &~ BUA 160,614 1,102,224
160,614 3,869,661
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE(BE)FEHE 13,832,861 (3,002,792
Total assets less current liabilities, EEHAERABES:
representing net assets (liabilities) NEEFE(EEFH) 13,832,875 (3,002,778)
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves BEXRfEE
Share capital (Note 27) f&AS (K15E27) 1,725,820 2
Share premium [ 15 % (B 13,487,471 -
Accumulated losses RitEE (1,380,416) (3,002,780
Equity attributable to owners of KAREEAELER
the Company 13,832,875 (3,002,778)
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31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

29

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29 A TR R EER @

RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: ARNBMREERENT :
Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
& PR 12 8 R EE Fob
S$ S$ S$ S$
T T T T
At 19 April 2018 R-ZBE-NENA+HHA
(date of incorporation) (EEf A B H#) = = - -
Total comprehensive loss HAZEERERE:
for the period:
— Loss for the period —HimE1E = - (3,002,780) (3,002,780
Transactions with owner, HFEFAR S BER
recognised directly in equity: R
— Issue of shares pursuant o —RIBESMAEITRD
reorganisation 2 = = 2
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\E
+=BA=+—H 2 - (3,002,780) (3,002,778
Total comprehensive profit FRARERNEHE:
for the year:
— Profit for the year —F R F) = - 1,969,992 1,969,992
Transactions with owner, HEFAZXZ BER
recognised directly in equity: B R
Issue of shares under RERNHEE
the share offer BT M 345,164 16,913,042 = 17,258,206
Issue of shares under REBEERLET
the capitalisation issue #17hkin 1,380,654 (1,380,654) - -
Share issue expenses R EITHRX - (2,044,917 - [2,044,917)
Dividends declared EERERE - - (347,628) (347,628)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-N#F
+=ZHA=+—8 1,725,820 13,487,471 (1,380,416) 13,832,875
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30 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

31

The Group manages ifs capifal to ensure that it will be able
fo continue as a going concemn while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged for

year ended 31 December 2019.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
bank and other borrowings, amount due to a related party and
shareholders, and obligations under finance leases, and equity
affributable to owners of the Group, comprising share capital
and reserves.

The management of the Group review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the management consider
the cost of capital and the associated risk with each class of
items in the context of capital structure, and take appropriate
actions to adjust the Group's capital structure. Based on
recommendations of the management, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through continuity of funding of cash flows
from operating activities.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

31 December 2019

FEMBRRMEE
—E-AFT=A=1-A

30 EXER

31

AEBEEEEAR  ARIR A B G
SEEE - B BB BT S 2 P
TEHARRBRBABR - BE-F—NF
toAS AR AEENERER
RETR -

AEEMEARBHRER (B RERT
R B ABE TR - AT B HsE 5 B AR SRR A K
BHEAE) URAEEREE ARG (8
AR R (i fhe ) HELAK

AEBEEEERRTEARARB -ERL
BN —Hr BEEESEEARETE
EREARANESFEHEBHBANORR
WERBGEE NEEAEARENERRE -
REEEENES AKEHABRELE
B RERETEEBRRELRRE

TRMTARMBERERE

Categories of financial instruments SRMIASE
2019 2018
=E-NF —E-N\F
S$ S$
¥ h03% T N T
Financial assets EMEE
- Amortised cost R 17
Trade receivables B 5 IR 12,377,622 10,851,673
Other receivables and deposits BB ke 102,261 176,386
Amounts due from shareholders JE UK J% 3R FRIE = 173,374
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIAS 16,310,340 4,025,006
- FVIPL — N FEFA B
Derivative financial instruments THESEIT A 2,502 51,237
28,792,725 15,277,676
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 31

MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Categories of financial instruments (Continved)

cRITEAERUERREREw

ERMIESEw

2019 2018
—Z2-NF AN
S$ S$
¥ h03% T ¥ AN T
Financial liabilities SRAE
— Amortised cost —# 8K
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNFIE 6,329,102 5,004,399
Amount due to a related party JE& <t — & B s 75 SR IR 6,432 =
Bank and other borrowings R1T R E M IERR 2,750,495 4,958,554
- FVIPL —tZ - FEFAEZ
Derivative financial instruments PTEERmT A 69,215 61,985
9,155,244 10,024,938
Obligations under finance lease A M S AR - 16,316
Lease liabilites HEealE 1,312,300 -
10,467,544 10,041,254

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include frade receivables,

other receivables, amount due to a related party, amounts due

from shareholders, bank balances and cash, trade and other

payables, bank and other borrowings and derivative financial

instruments. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed

in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial

instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and currency risk),

credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mifigate these

risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors

these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(al

Market risk management
Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in marketf interest rates. Management has
assessed there is minimal exposure of the interest rate risk
on the variable rate bearing bank balances and bank and
other borrowings. The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixedrate finance leases.
It is the Group's policy fo raise borrowings at fixed-rate
or variablerate according fo business needs and as to
minimise the fair value and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an inferest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors inferest rafe risk
exposure and will consider interest rate hedging should the
need arise.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower
over the bank and other borrowings and all other variables
were held consfant, the Group's:

e Profit for year ended 31 December 2019 would
decrease/increase by $$13,729 (2018: $$9,371).
This is mainly affributable to the Group's exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

31 December 2019

FEMBRRMEE
—E-AFT=A=1-A

31 e TEAERUKRREREw

BEEREEEEREEm®

(a)

™% Rk E R
T 7 3 & 72

MERBRRTSMNEEE K5 B/
TAZAFESIRKESREREH
FEk-RERENL FRRITHER
VA B8R AT Ko H At 5 5K g M =R 8 [ B
EM-AEETHEERT S/MENR
ENAFENERAR - AEBZHE
RBBEEBHFERERIIEEERE
MUV REREAFLERBEREF

7% 62 [ 35 Ry I 4 6 S 4 e BUR
EEEEREMNERR IH#EQM\EEW
ZRAETTH R

i ) R B ER 1 &E{‘Mﬁ?kiﬂjiTE%
SOMEER - MAARMEERFETE
REE:

s HBE_ZT-NAFt-_HA=1-—
A 1E 5 69 08 R #8412 i
13,7205 T (—F— N\F:
Q. 371# ML) c W EE AN
A6 B R Y BB A R E R
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 31
MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(o) Market risk management (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continved)

The directors of the Company consider the sensitivity
analysis fo be unrepresentative of the interest rate risk as
the exposure at the end of each reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

No sensitivity analysis is presented on the interest rate
risk on bank balances as the directors of the Company
considered that the exposure is minimal during the year.

Currency risk management

The Group fransacts business in various foreign currencies,
and has cerfain monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in US Dollar {“USD"), Australian Dollar (*AUD”), Hong Kong
Dollar {"HKD"), Malaysia Ringgit [“MYR"), Euro (‘EURO”)
and Singapore dollars ("SGD") other than the functfional
currency of the respective group entities, which exposes the
Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages the risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 31
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

cRTEAERUERREREw

BEEREEEEREEm®

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

mSRERERE (@)
B EE (&)

REBSHR NEBELIMNEHER
TZEBEERBBENREEN T

(o) Market risk management (Continued) (a)
Currency risk management (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the significant Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at

the end of each reporting periods are as below:

2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-N\F
S$ S$
¥ 03 7T TN T

Monetary assets EREE
— denominated in USD —AETTEHE 1,276,907 1,770,451
— denominated in AUD —LUBITEHE 5,483 1,777
— denominated in HKD — A TTEHE 12,642,268 120,607
— denominated in MYR — B RAEMEREE 425 920
— denominated in SGD — AT NI LT E = 1,252
13,925,083 1,895,007
2019 2018
—E—-hHF ZE-N\F
S$ S$
¥ 03 7T N3 T

Monetary liabilities EWaE
— denominated in USD —AZETEHE 1,695,009 1,486,964
— denominated in AUD —DUBRITEHE - 378,932
— denominated in HKD — A ITEHE 11,546 -
— denominated in MYR — B RAEMERFE 49,176 10,027
— denominated in EUR —LABTEHE 213,615 168,764
1,969,346 2,044,687
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(o) Market risk management (Continued)
Currency risk management (Continued)

The Group comprise of a number of investments in foreign
subsidiaries, whose net assets are exposed to currency
translation risk. The Group does not currently designate its
foreign currency denominated debt as a hedging instrument
for the purpose of hedging the franslation of its foreign
operations.

Further details on the forward exchange derivative
instruments are found in Note 21 to the financial

statements.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the sensitivity to a 10% increase
and decrease in the relevant foreign currencies against the
functional currency of each respective group entity. 10%
is the sensitivity rafe used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period
end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. The
sensifivity analysis includes external loans where they gave
rise to an impact on the Group's profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBImRME

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 31
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(@) Market risk management (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continved)

If the relevant foreign currency weakens by 10% against
the functional currency of each Group entity, profit or loss
during the year will increase (decrease] by:

Profit or loss AR

- USD impact — X E

- AUD impact —-BITE

— HKD impact —BLHE

— MYR impact -~ BRAGHEEFTE
— EUR impact -2

- SGD impact — ¥ T E

cRTEAERUERREREw

BEEREEEEREEm®

o) TEHERBRER @
HRJZ T ()

HARMINE L S REERNINEER
B21E10% » AR 2 4 J2 HA ) & i 7 3
EERE M O ) -

2019 2018
—Z-hEF AN
S$ SH)

7 003 7T HINE T
29,783 (16,308)
(391) 21,696
(899,741) (6,938)
3,473 (121,013)
15,217 9,708

- (72)

A 10% strengthening of relevant functional currency
against the above currencies would have had an equal
but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

HEDREERY L g¥ A E10%E
HEXMRERSRELSREMRAR
%ﬁ"(fﬁ““ﬁﬁ”ﬁﬁi\ﬁﬂ—lﬁliﬁh
T ,,,,,,,

EE% A ARNFERNAR YT
Jiﬂﬂiﬁézliif*é%ﬁF'EJE’JﬂM MR
Fﬁ%ﬁﬁ?\ﬁ%ﬁ%‘%ﬁ&l\ﬁ@ﬁﬁ°
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FEMFHRTRMEE
31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(@) Market risk management (Continued)
Oither price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
derivative investments in foreign currency forward contracts.
The foreign currency forward contracts chonge with the
exchange rafe and no sensitivity analysis on such risk has
been prepared as the directors of the Group considered the
carrying amount of derivative instruments are insignificant to

the Group.

(b)  Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on ifs confractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. At the end of reporting period, the Group's
maximum exposure fo credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arises from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group is exposed fo concentration of credit risk at 31
December 2019 on trade receivables from the Group's top
five major customers accounted for 74% (2018: 67%) of
the Group's trade receivables. The major customers of the
Group are certain reputable organisations.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company has delegated ifs finance team to develop and
maintain the Group's credit risk gradings fo cafegorise
exposures according fo their degree of risk of default. The
finance team uses publicly available financial information
and the Group's own hisforical repayment records fo rate
its major customers and debtors. The Group's exposure
and the credit rafings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 31

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2019

MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk management (Confinued) (b)

The Group's current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

Category
5l

Performing

Rif
Doubtful

AJ 5t

In default
B

Write-off

%

FEMBRRMEE
—E-AFT=A=1-A

cRTEAERUERREREw

BEEREEEEREEm®

FERBRER &)
REBHRBHNEERBRSRIELE N

THERIEA
Description Basis for recognising ECL
i BAAHCEEEEANEE
The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12m ECL

have any pastdue amounts.

RZEFEDRRIE X EEAE R

There has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

B R  EE AR

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired.

B R RAEELREERE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery.

BRREABEGABABRENM BRI BAiALE
Yz Bl 5K I8 H) 75 BT
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Amount is written off
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 31 ¢RI ERUMERBREE @
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERAREEEZEREE @
(Continued)
(b)  Credit risk management (Confinued) b) EERBRERE@®
The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group's TRAVAEEVBEENEELE
financial assets, as well as the Group's maximum exposure ARIREE R RS S0 A EE &
to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. SEERE-
Internal Gross carrying
Note  credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount (!
ME RABEETIR 12BAR2HEHEEEFE fRE A
S$
03 7T
2019
—E-NEF
Trade receivables 18 (9 Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 12,377,622
g 5 RN EHEBEESE (BLR%)
Other receivables and deposits 19 Performing 12m ECL 102,261
HAEKFIR R IZ S R# REARMEEER
12,479,883
2018
ZE-N\F
Trade receivables 18 |(a Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 10,851,673
g5 RRFR FHRBEEEHE (BLHE)
Other receivables and deposits 19 Performing 12m ECL 176,386
Hth e IR R IZ© RuF 128 A EBEERE
Amounts due from shareholders 200 Performing 12m ECL 173,374
FEU IR R 3RIR RYF 12[BAEREERE
11,201,433
(1) The gross carrying amount is equivalent to the nef carrying M BEREFAEERBE_Z-NLF
value as the Group has no loss allowance for the year TZA=t+—BERZZE-NF
ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018. TZA=+-HIEFETEEER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

lb)  Credit risk management (Continued)

(a)  For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in IFRS 9 fo measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group defermines the
expected credit losses on these items by using an
analysis of assefs by risk level of customers, estimated
based on hisforical credit loss experience adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic condifions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

Other than concentration of credit risk on bank deposits and
balances placed in 3 banks in which the counterparties
are financially sound and on trade receivables from fop 5
cusfomers, the Group has no other significant concentration
of credit risk on other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties.

[c)  Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulties in meeting ifs financial obligations as and when
they fall due. In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

31
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b) EERBRERE @
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BT A ERHEREE
BENBERE AKEERAT
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EEEBERMAFTLRES AR
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REMEHRAE  BEEEER
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BREER=ZFRT (XZEFHBR
BIMNBTERRERRKERERE
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK

31 TRIARHBREKRERE w

MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERAREEEZEREE @
(Continued)
[c)  Lliquidity risk management (Confinued) ) R"PELEREIRE (@)
Non-derivative financial liabilities FFITETHEE
The following tables detail the remaining contractual TRAMEITESREBER TSR
maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables HER - ZRDBBERAEERAN SR
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows BEKFZHNRMEBRRSRE M
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which E-RERENELRXASHEESRE
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both ZAEBRBRINBERSNMPERL
interest and principal cash flows. The adjustment column HEEEARRAGENRERE I E
represents the possible future cash flows affributable to the AGEMBRARNERAEERD
instrument included in the maturity analysis which is not BA-
included in the carrying amount of the financial liability on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Weighted
average
effeciive ~ On demand or Within Carrying
interest rate ~ within 1 year 2to5years  After 5 years Adjustments amount
IEF RERS
{3k RIER 2255 SEH# Eild e
$$ $§ $§ $§ $§
YL IR T FMRT F SR T HMR T
31 December 2019 R-B-NE
t=h=t-A
Floating rate - bank and ¥ E)F|E 1T R
other borrowings R 2.49% - 5.04% 528,761 1,816,545 679,314 (274,125) 2,750,495
Fixed rate - lease liobilies [l 1 %
-HEak 5.30% 256,662 483,567 1,301,916 (729,845) 1,312.300
Trade and ofher poyables B 5 RH
ENHE - 6,329,102 - - - 6,329,102
Amount die foareloled  FERI—REE
oaty 58 : 6,432 - : - 6,432
Tolal B 7,120,957 2,300,112 1,981,230 (1,003,970) 10,398,329
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31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 31 €@ TERMERBREE @
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEEZEREE @
(Continued)
[c)  Lliquidity risk management (Confinued) ) mBESERERLEE @
Non-derivative financial liabilities (Continued) FEITETFBE (')
Weighted
average
effective On demand or Within Carrying
interest rate within 1 year 210 5years  After 5 years Adjusiments amount
mEF RELH
BRAE RIER 2558 SER HE RAfE
s$ ) s$ 5§ $$

IR IR BT FIRT IR

31 December 2018 RZE-N\E

tZA=t-A
Floating rate - bonk and £ EIFIE —$RIT )
other borrowings Efthfe K 3.77HRES 9% 4,131,357 943,438 9,307 (125,548) 4,958,554
Fixed rate - obligations ~ [EITE 7%~ G &
under finance leases THERIE 4.89% 14,420 2,800 - [913) 16,316
Trade and other payables &5 R 2 At
R 5E = 5,004,399 = = S 5,004,399
Total Bt 9,150,176 946,247 9,307 (126,461) 9,979,269
The amounts included above for variable interest rate i B R 2 BB BN R E R
instruments for financial liabilities are subject to change if EZMEMEAE BIFtA Rt €5l
changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates BEZFRMETAZ AR T
of interest rates defermined at the end of the reporting WEEE-

period.
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31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 31
MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(c) Liquidify risk management (Confinued)
Derivative financial liabilities and assets

All derivative financial liabilities and assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are due
within one year. Defails of derivative financial liabilities and
assets are as disclosed in Note 21.

(d)  Fair value

Fair valve of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair valve on recurring
basis

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
model based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate fo their fair values.
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31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 31
MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(d)  Fair value (Continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial

liabilities that are measured at fair valve on recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities

are measured at fair value af the end of each reporting

period. The following table gives information about how the

fair values of derivative financial instruments are determined

(in particular, the valuation techniquel(s| and inputs used).

Fair value as at

TSRSz AT E

31 December
2019
“E-NF
+=A
==
S$
IR

Assets:
Current -
2,502
Liabilities:
Current -
69,215

BE RE-
2,502

8 RE-
69,215

There were no transfers between levels of the fair value

31 December
2018
—2-N\F
+=A
=t+-H

S$
BT

Assefs:
Current -
51,237
liabilities:
Current =
61,985
BE:RE-
51,237
BE:RE-
61,985

hierarchy during the year.

Fair value
hierarchy

DV EER

level 2

Valuation fechniquel(s);
and key input(s|

HERTREREARE

cRTEAERUERREREw

BEEREEEEREEm®

(d]

NE )

AEFLAEE LB EL LN FEFAES
BEERETHME EHNLFE

AEELEHMEERERABNE
BEPRBEQAFEFE-TRHIE
M ETESRMTANAFELZ
B (CERMEROBERMN R
ABE) -

Significant
unobservable
input(s)

EXFUER
BARE

Fair value is based on spot exchange rates [from observable  N/A

spot exchange rates at the end of the reporting period) and

contracted forward rates, discounted at a rate that reflects

the credit risk of various counterparties.

RPELENBHER (REREHRNOTBRNBES) TEA
FAOTEBERGE YRRRERZHFEERRMN

MR EER

RER RFERBRZEYLELRER -
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FEMFHRTRMEE
31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Some of the Group's fransactions and arrangements are with
related parties and the effect of these on the basis determined
between the parties are reflected in these financials statements.
Related parties refer to entities in which directors of the Group
have a beneficial interest in it.

The Group entered into the following fransactions with related

32 BBARS

AEBEETRS KL TIRBH TR LK
RIS BERAETUNZER S ML H

BB ER

=

VR E M B IRR AR AR - BARE T R A

SEEENETRAESHENER-

AREED HBEAB RIS ATRS

parties:

2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-N\F
S$ S$
03 7T T

Transactions with related parties BT 5
Sale of goods HEEmM - 2,609
Rental income HelA = 8,063
Rental charged (Note 1) BEMEe (M) (123,09¢) (163,273)

Note 1: This pertained to rental paid to Tai Sun Lim Kee Trading Sdn.
Bhd. The Group leases warehouse buildings for an average
lease term of 2 years with an option to extend another 12
months. In current year, the rental charged amounted to
S$123,096 pursuant to the lease agreements. Under IFRS
16, the Group recognised ROU asset of $$221,547 and
lease liability of $$232,257 as at 31 December 2019.
Correspondingly, a depreciation of $$108,877 and finance
cost of S$17,785 were recognised during the current year.
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31 December 2019

FEMBRRMEE
—E-AFT=A=1-A

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continved) 32 AR @
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FANEERHEMEZETEASNFTHET]
management during the years were as follows: NS
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
S$ s$
03 7T AN T
Short term benefits 52 HR 4@ A 3,820,048 2,094,763
Postemployment benefits BEER 1248 A 115,156 98,605
3,935,204 2,193,368
Guarantees from Directors EEER
As at 31 December 2019, certain directors of the Company RZE-NF+_A=+—HB ARQAET
provided personal guarantees in respect of the performance bond EERUAERRX T ANBOESRH
in favour of the Group, amounting to S$nil [2018: S$164,900). MEAEBRAS (ZZF— /\F:164,900%
NIKTT) °
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33 MEMHERE
At 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding commitments RZZB-NF+_RA=+—0 xEERXT
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as AREEREHER TEAREEAE SIHB
follows: RN
2018
—ZT-N\F
s$
¥ N3 T
Within one year —FR 229,554
In the second year fo fifth years inclusive FE_EZENF (BREEEWE) 371,090
Over five years HB@ERF 1,301,914
1,202,558
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

33 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (confinued) 33 REHERE@w
The Group as lessor AEBEAHEA
2019 2018
—B-NhEF —E-N\F
S$ S$
N3 7T AN T
Minimum lease payments received under R —RRE Y EWER
an invesiment property SEBERK 71,475 72,566
The Group had contracted with a lessee for the following future REEEABARTAHELLEEERT
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases FIARREERENRETZLAEL  HBH B
which fall due as follows: I
2019 2018
—B-NEF —E-N\F
S$ S$
1 hn3 TT AN 7T
Within one year —FR 23,702 23,746
Operating lease receipts represent rentals receivable by the KEMESW AR RS E KR E Y ERL
Group for investment property. The lease is negotiated for 2 years & BEMEBA2F - NRREENEE -
and payments are fixed over the lease term with no confingent BEEORNT |t ASKAHERE -

rent provision included in the confracts.
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34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

As prescribed by the Central Provident Fund Board of Singapore
and Employees Provident Fund of Malaysia, the Group's
employees employed in Singapore and Malaysia respectively,
who are Singapore Citizens or Permanent Residents and
Malaysian Citizens or Permanent Residents, are required fo
join the CPF and EPF scheme respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group confributes up fo
17% and 13% of the eligible employees’ salaries to the CPF and
EPF scheme, with each employee’s qualifying salary capped at
$$6,000 per month and no cap respectively.

The total costs charged to profit or loss, amounting to
S$532,454 for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
S$476,895), represent contributions paid to the retirement
benefits scheme by the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, contributions of $$156,520 (2018:
S$151,527) were due but had not been paid to CPF/EPF. The
amounts were paid subsequent to the end of the period.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2019 —ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H

34 EKEFEHE

P ARNEEREERAGLEE AR
THRE  AREEF NN FRATE RN
BREWBHMEARIKARRME KA
DRARFKARR AIAD B2 BFRRTR
T EINEEAERFE -BE_T—NF
RZZE-—N\FE+A=+—BILEFE K&
BOHRELERZ DRI RFTRIES RE
BRABETEATAERRBEFEN/%
K13% BREENAERFHE LRABIE
P8 A 6,000%7 hn3gk 7T Ko I & FFR

BE_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—BLFE"
FEABRBBEKARRS32,4543 KT (=
T—\F:476,8955 MET)  HALE
B FRAEME B M HER -

R_ZE-NAF+_-_A=+—HB 23HE
AXNHTARAREE REB LB
R B156,5208 T (ZF —)\F:
151,5275 3% 7T ) - s FERIEE RN BR
At
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

35 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The fable below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group's consolidated statements of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

35 MEEBMEARENYHE

TREJAKEERERDIELAEN
HE BRRELIRCEY BER
PRELABAEINRAKEESFERS
MERDBRBEZDMELHRSREN
RenE8XARAEREZAE-

ek
=

Obligations Amounts
Bank Lease under due to
borrowings liabilities  finance leases ~ shareholders Total
RITER HERE REHEERE REIRRIE At
s$ s$ S$ S$ $$
HANRTT HRTT HNETT AR HARTT
At T January 2018 RZE-N\F—H—H 1,424,145 = 32,857 3,695,086 5,152,088
Financing cash flows AMERERE 3,383,094 - (19,779 (3,695,935 (331,720
Non-cash changes EREEY
Finance costs recognised EHARENR
(Note 8] CEL) 150,415 = 3,238 = 153,653
Exchange difference BERER = = S 849 849
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+ZA=+—A 4,958,554 = 16,316 = 4,974,870
Adoption of IFRS 16 BRI B R E
ERIZE 165 = 1,289,328 (16,316 = 1,273,012
At T January 2019 —Z-NE-A-H 4,958,554 1,289,328 = = 6,247 882
Financing cash flows MERERE (2,312,271) (273,099 - - (2,585,370
Non-cash changes FHEE
New lease liabilities HHERRE - 218,392 - - 218,392
Finance cosfs recognised ERAREKAK
(Note 8] (HizE8) 104,212 78,545 = = 182,757
Exchange difference ERER - (866) - - (866)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+ZH=1+—H 2,750,495 1,312,300 = = 4,062,795

208 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2019



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
SFEMERTRME
31 December 2019 —ZE—HhLE+-_H=+—H

36 PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the

36 MEBRRAFE
ARRARZE-AER=F—\F+=A

Company as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out ST -HEERHERAONBARFE

below. HEmT -
Place of Group's
incorporation/ Paid up issued effective Held by the
Name operation capital interest Company  Principal activifies
B FREH LN
a8 REwR BRBRA BERED HEERE TEER
TSH BV Us$10 100% 100%  Invesiment holding
RBRAEE 10%7T REER
7SS Singapore $$300,000 100% - Packing and refailing of food products
K 300,000 REBERTE
AT
TSF Malaysia MYR2,300,000 100% - Producers, manufacturers of and dealers in nuts
HIRAED 2,300,000 BREER REBNRHEB
BRASHE R
TZF Malaysia MYR500,000 100% - Producers, manufacturers of and dealers in chips
BRAED 500,000 EREER BERNRHE
SRATHER
TSGI [Nofe] BVI UsSD 1 100% = Domant company
TSGI (FifzE) RERLES [E NEBRA
ZCC (Nofe] Hong Kong HKD 1 100% = Dormant company
ZCC (fifzt) BE 1B TEPRA

GERIES $ ) b v

Note: These entites are newly incorporated during the year.

BEMEB AR RFERBTEMNEEES-

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

37 BANKERS' GUARANTEES 37 RITHRR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
S$ S$
03 7T ¥

Bankers' guarantees with customers IRITH R P HER 274,139 382,839

The balances represent the performance guarantee provided by EREBREAEBUERTRFE A ARE

the Group in favour fo its cusfomers. KB AIE(R -

38 SHARE OPTION SCHEME 38 MBS

Pursuant to a share option scheme approved by a writtlen BEARABRRR-_Z—-NF+RA=+

resolution passed by the shareholder of the Company on 20 HRBNETAZRMH LN BERET 2

December 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme’), the Company (TEREE]) ARRAMAEEREE

may grant opfions fo eligible directors of the Group, eligible REZ CEREEREMEELMER

employees of the Group and other selected participants, for the HEBREASERSENER RE XKD

recognition of their contributions, to subscribe for shares (“Shares”) ERRER B TTUAREARQRIRD (A

in the Company with a payment of HK$1 upon each grant of 71) e

options offered.

The exercise price of the share opfion will be not less than the BREZTEBETEENUATRSE:

highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the [l RELETEREZEB ([Z20BH])
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date (the B X P g A MERFTME KRR B
"Offer Date”) of grant of the particular option, which must MW TmE ZBBAAESEH:
be a business day;

[i)  the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated (] EEBEREZEHNEHAAMEEEAE
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet for the five Bt <X P 53 H ¥R (B R AT AV AR 10 T 19 U
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date of the mE: &
option; and

lii)  the nominal value of a Share on the Offer Date. lii) REBABHAORMDEE-
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The share options are exercisable at any time during a period
of not more than 10 years from the date of grant, subject o
the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, or any
conditions stipulated by the Board of Directors.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the number of shares
of Company. Unless further shareholders’ approval has been
obtained pursuant to the conditions set out in the Share Option
Scheme, no person shall be granted an option which, if all the
options granfed to the person (including both exercised and
outstanding options] in any 12 months period up to the date of
grant are exercised in full, would result in such person’s maximum
enfilement exceeding 1% of the number of issued shares of
Company.

Up to the date of issuance of the consolidated financial
stafements, no options have been granted or agreed fo be
granted pursuant fo the Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no share opfions
have been granted nor exercised and there is no outstanding
share option of the Company as at 31 December 2019.

31 December 2019

FEMBRRMEE
—E-AFT=A=1-A

38 HERESTE W

RIBEEETE 2 R RGN ESTEA
HRE B R - B RN B B R T
THEB+FZMEAMERITE-

AR R AR A RO P8 e O B4 85 B
EFRAFEAARRRRMNAEI0% - BRIFE
R IR BB B ET B AR D1 6 1 S 1T EUS AR 1t
BRI REER N B BEEM ) 21E A 8
RA M F—BALTHBRE (BEDTT
EREARITENRERE) E2BITEEENR
ZBANTERBO ERBARNRAREELT
BB B1% BAAmZEALTEEBR
fEo

HEERAMBHRRETAY SEREER
AT EIR L R B R L R A -

BHE_T-NF+_A=+—HILFEH
B SEBRECERLHTRE TR -F
—NF+ZA=t—B ARAEERKT
{58 B0 R LA -

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39 BAXEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
S$ S$
3003 7T N TT
Commitments for acquisition of property, WHEYIR - BB MRt 2 g
plant and equipment 290,728 S
Commitments for renovation of B BMEET 2 &R
factory building 1,316,800 =
1,607,528 -
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2019 —Z—hE+-_A=+—H

40 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING 40 3REHI&ERE=IE

PERIOD

The Group will pay close attenfion fo the development of the
outbreak of the Covid-19 subsequent fo the end of the reporting
period and ifs related impact on the Group's businesses and
financials. Based on the currenily available information, the
Group considers the event would not have a material impact to
the Group's operation given that there is no major disruptions for
inventories supplies.

However, given the unpredictability associated with the Covid-19
outbreak and any further contingency measures that may be put
in place by the relevant governments and corporate entities, the
actual financial impact of the Covid-19 outbreak, if any, on the
Group's 2020 financial statements could be significantly different
depending on how the situafion evolves, the Group will closely
monitor in this regard.

In Malaysia, the government on 18 March 2020 announced
a 14-day restricted movement order ["MCQ"), where all
Malaysians are prohibited from leaving Malaysia, and all
firms are fo be closed except for those involved in certain
essential goods and services. On 25 March 2020, it was
further announced that the MCO will be extended fill 14 April
2020. The Group's certain manufacturing facilities in Malaysia
is subjected to this MCO and production is temporarily halted
in compliance with the MCO. During this time, the Group is
working closely with the Malaysian authorities and our cusfomers
fo get clearance for the production of our products as essential
goods. The Group has limited inventory during this MCO period,
and if the MCO is extended for prolonged period, it will have a
material effect on the Group's operations in Singapore which rely
on its Malaysian manufacturing plants for production capacity.
To mitigafe the impact from Covid-19, the Group is focusing on
fightening cost controls, improving productivity and enhancing
operational efficiency. During this difficult period, the priority
across the Group's global operations is the health and well-being
of its employees while ensuring the longerm sustainability of its
operations.

The financial statements of the Group for the financial period
ended 31 December 2019 have not been adjusted for the

financial effect as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak.
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